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Osprey Holdco Limited

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Diractors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of Osprey Holdeo Limited
[the ‘Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Principal activities, business review and future developments

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together ‘the Group') during the year were water
supply, treatment and distribution; sewage coltection and treatment; and retail services to water and water
recycling customers. The Group's principal business is Anglian Water Sarvices Limited ['Anglian Water'). The
Directors expect the activities as detailed in the Strategic Report to continue for the foreseeable future
without material change. The information that fulfils the requirement of the Strategic Report, including the
Company's financial risk management objectives, is set out on pages 7t 88,

Group results and returns to shareholders
The income statement on page 89 shows the Group's results for the year. No dividends (2023 £91.8 million)
were paid during the year. The Directors are not recommending payment of a final dividend.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report, unless otherwise stated, are set
out below.

Ros Rivaz appointed 25 January 2024
John Hirst resigned 24 January 2024
Sreve Buck resigned on 22 November 2023
Tony Donnelly appointed on 23 November 2023
Peter Simpsan

leremy Aflalo

John Barry

James Bryce

Deepu Chintamaneni resigned 14 December 2023
Niall Milis

Alewandros Nassuphis

Batiste Ogier

Luis Pisco

David Stirtan

Albena Vassileva appointed 14 December 2023

Claire Russell continued to serve as Company Secretary throughout the year,
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Directors' indemnities

During the 2023/24 financial year and up until the date of the signing of the financial statements, the Groug
has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for lagal action
brought against its Directors. The Company has also provided an indemnity for its Directors, whichisa
qualifying third-party indemnity provision for the purpose of section 234 ((2) - (6]) of the Companies Act 2006,

Shareholders
The sole shareholder of the Company i Anglian Water Group Limited.

At 31 March 2024 the following investor groups held unsecured loan notes of £0.01 each in the Company:

Number of

loan notes

hedd

CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (6] Inc. * 15,229,224 556
First Sentier Investars 7,187 825 BO7
Platinum Atfas 24 2014 Limited Parinership ** 7.715,399,999
Global infraCo (HK) D. Limited *#* 8,137,534, 734
Camulodunum Investments Ltd £,930,014,904
45 200,000,000

* an indirect subsidiary of Canada Pension Plan Investment Boand
** an affiliate of infinity Inestments 5.4
*2 an indirect subsidiary of IFM Investors

Palitical donations and expenditure
No political donations or expenditure were made during the year (2022/23: £nil).

Research and development

The Group has a continuing policy of undertaking market-focused research and development on process plang,
biosolide treatiment, sewers and water supply networks, and other water and water recycling refated matters,

Financial instruments disclosures
Details are included on pages 10-11 of the Strategic Report and in note 13 of the financial statements.

Employees

The Group keeps employees infarmed of changes in the business and general financial and economic factors
mfluencing the Company. Thes is achiaved through & systernatic approach to employee communication, which
includes regular briefings, presentations and electronic mailings. Weekly Newstream emails provide
employees with 2 round-up of important news across the Company, The Company’s intranet |5 also an
extensive source of Information. The Company’s Open House forum ks a chance for employees 1o hear directly
from members of the Management Board and senior leaders about the business, progress updates and ask
any questions. The sessions take place every quarter and travel to different sites across the region, with
employees #lso able to join remately. The sessions are recorded so employess can watch them at a later date
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Directors’ report (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

Anglian Water has implemented inclusive hiring in line with the Company's Business Disability Farum
membership by

«  Trialling providing interview questions to candidates in advance to support their intérview preparation.
This helps those who may suffer from ardety due to mental kealth conditions or neurodiversity,

*  Introducing updated neurodiversity e-learning for team members and managers, with a prompt for
managers 1o refresh thelir training befare interviewing.

«  Working with our internal Ability Network 1o gain deeper Insights on buillding trust with internal or
external disabled candidates.

Anglian Water is currently working on an application for Disability Confident Level 3 — Disability Confident
Leader. Anglian Water is currently championing Disability Confident with businesses and organisations within
the community and its supply chain to encourage them 1o join the scheme.

The Disability Confident scheme has also been reflectad in company policies; the Suppaorting Attendance Policy
Procedure covers disability, reasonable adjustments, return to work and sickness and absence. This policy s
briefed to all Managers and the Employee Relations and Occupational Health teams support employees and
managers where needed.

Employees are offered the opportunity to participate in the AWG Loyalty Savings Scheme. This schems
enables emplovees te save on a monthly basis and then potentially benefit from the financial performance of
the Group and the end of the three-year savings period.

Stakeholder engagement
Details of how Directors across the Group have engaged with customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders
including those representing communities and the anvironmant, can be found in the section 172 statement on

pages 26-31.

Emissions
Infarmation relating to carbon emissions can be found on pages 61-63.

Health and safety
Infarmation relating 10 health and safety can be found on page 33.

Events occurring after the reporting period

There have been no events between the balance sheet date, and the date on which the financial statements
were approved by the Board, which would require adjustment to the financial statements or any additional
disclosures,
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and consolidated financial statements in

accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law,
the Directors have elected to prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
internationsl sccounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
intermational Finandal Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1608/2002 as it applied to
the European Union, The financial statements also comply with the International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the 1AS8. Under Company Law, the Directors must nat approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements,
intermational Accounting Standard 1 requires that the Directors:

= properly select and apply accounting policies,

« present information, including accounting palicies, in @ manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

o provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the entity's financial position and financial performance; and

» make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the finandcial statements comphy with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regutation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreguianities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and Integrity of the group’s wabsite. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors section on page 1 confirm that, o
the best of their knowledge:

* the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS: as adopted for
use within the United Kingdom, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Group and the Company; and

* the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report contained in the Annual Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and the Company,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and consclidated financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandabie and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assecs the Group
and Company's performance, business model and strategy.
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Statement of Directors’ disclosure of information to Auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are Directors at the time when the report s approved, the following

applies:

a) sofaras the Director iz aware, there & no relevant audit information of which the Compam's Auditor is
unaware; and

b} he/fshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order 1o make

himzelffhersalf aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Auditor is
aware of that information.

This confirmation s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2006,

Auditor
The Auditor, Deloitte LLP, have indicated their willingress to continue in office and are deemed to be
reappointed.

Going concern

The Directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the Group has sufficient resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and, therefore, consider it appropeiate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the 2024 financial statements. Further details of this review can be found on pages
98.59.

By prder of the Board

m@

Company Secretary
10 July 2024

Registered Office: Lancaster House, Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park,
Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE29 6XU
Registered in England and Wales Mo, 05915869
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Strategic report
for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Directors present the strategic report of the Diprey Holdeo Limited Group (“the Group") for the year
endad 31 March 2024, This strategic report should be read in conjunction with the strategic report of Angilan
Water Services Limited, which does not form part of this report, which can be found at

hrrpss/ fwww . anglianwater.co.uk/about-usfour-reports/ and provides a more detailed insight into the
regulated business,

Group overview

Ospray Holdeo Limited's principal business is Angllan Water Servicas Limited (*Anglian Water'), the Group's
regulated water and sewerage company, which supplies water and water recycling services 1o almost seven
millian customers in the East of England and Hartlepool,

The Group also includes Angtian Venture Holdings Group, which comprises:

¢ Alpheus Environmental Limited = operates industrial and commerdal wastewater treatment works In
the LUK,

»  Celtic Anglian Water Limited - operates water and wastewater treatment works in the Republic of
Irefand;

» Tide Services Limited — operates property conveyancing, residential insurances and the provision of
web hasted information services for utilities on behalf of other group companies;

*  Wave Ltd = a 50.50 joint venture with Northumbrian Water Group Limited to provide water senvices to
non-household customers in the UK

» OHL Property Holdings Limited - oversess the construction of a new water recycling centre; and
OHL Piper Limited —a property rental business,

Financial and Operational Highlights
Chief Executive, Peter Simpson, commented:

“The last 12 months saw strong financial performance in the Osprey Holdeo Group, with revenue of £1.7
billion {up 8.2%) and consistent EBMTDA {up 0.6% to £805.1 million) and operating profit of £413.4 million
{down 1.2%). During the year we have made £953 million of capital investment, significantly more than
operating profit. Our shareholders agreed £350 million of additional investment, including £100 miflion to
accelerate our work on rei:lur:ing spills and pollutions. This is over and above the level agreed by Ofwat.

“Our continued focus on supparting customers was demonstrated through our improved CMeX, DMeX and
RMeX scares, while an independent survey, run by the Consumer Coundl for Water across Water and Sewage
Companies showed positive and above average scores, We also helped 385,371 customers through a £1369
millian support package and met aur Priority Services Register (PSR) target, with an industry-leading 12.7%
(380,853) of customers on our register,

*Steady progress an improving operational performance continued through extreme weather challenges as
our region experienced widespread flooding during the second half of the year; now on record as the wettest
six months ever. Despite this, our spills performance remained industry leading (22 vs 33 ) and at 22 per
overflow is encouragingly close to our 20 per overflow end of AMP target, especially given the exceptional
weather. Inthe 2023 calendar year, we had 11 Category 2 pollutions, which we know is unacceptable. Qur
turnaround plans have seen an improvement on kead measures, but we know we need to do more, faster, and
the additional £100 million supported by our shareholders will enabie this.
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Strategic report (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

“Dver the last 12 manths we've achieved our best-ever acceptance score for safe reliable drinking water —our
customers’ number one priorty —and the continued rapid deployment of smart meters, installing 262,621 in
2023-24. Alongside this, we saw our lowest-ever recorded threeyear rolling average for leakage,

*2023/14 saw enormous efforts right across the business, but the impacts of climate change, particularly
around flooding continue 1o pose a challenge. We are constant in our work to establish 3 better multi-agency
approach to fisoding, aiming to ensure complex flood risks are as low as reasonably practicable. and well
managed,

“A% a result, while l2ad measures improved in many areas, our performance did not meet the levels we aspire
to, and our customers rightly expect. This has culminated in a year-end 0DF penalty of £37.6 million.

“We will continue to invest ta meet the changing expectations of customers and stakeholders. Dur business
plan, worth over £9 billion, is the next step in our long-term plan to ensure we are resilient against the impact
of climate change, while keeping bills affordable [£1.45 per day in 2024/25) and supporting customers when
they need it most.”
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Financial highlights
2024 2023 Change 'ﬂ’lﬂl‘il!_'

Em £m £m 5%
Revenue 1,676.1 1,549.6 126.5 8.2
EBITDA® 805.1 200.0 5.1 0&
Operating profit 413.4 418.3 i4.9) (1.2)
Operating cash flow 741.7 7025 412 3]
Net debt before derivatives! 9,731.2 8.937.1 794.1 89

Einancial measures ar metrics weed bn this report 1hat are not defnad by IF85 3ra alternative perfarmance measwres. Tha
Group uwses sach meesures for perfarmance analyss becawse they prowde additiona! usetul informaticn on the performance
and position of the Group, Since the Group defings itz own altemativa performance measures, these might not be directiy
comparable ta other companies’ afterratve gerfarmance meaasures. These messires are not infended to be 3 substituta far,
or superor ba, IFAS maasuremaents and hava basn consistertly apphed within each yesr presgnted in these financal
staternants. EBTOA and Net debt excluding derivatives are aftermatine performance mensure 2t defined in note 23

ODI penalty

* Dperations across the region were significantly impacted by the prolonged period of wet weather seen
at the end of 2023 and start of 2024 that principally affected ODIs such as pollutions, which had the
biggest contribution to the £37.6 million penalty incurred.

» In 2023, we had 40 polfutions per 10,0004km of sewer network.

o We are disappointed with our performance. While no spill to the esvironment is acceptable,
our lead measures are showing improvements — a result of the actions already being taken as
part of our Pollutions Incident Reduction Pan.



Osprey Holdco Limited

Strategic report (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

» Despite the challenges faced this year, we've seen strong performance across a number of areas of the
business, most notably on customer experience, for which we are in reward.
o We finished Tth in the industry for CMeX {Sth in the Water and Sewerage Companies table)
and 4th in the industry for DMeX, our highest year-end position this AMP.

Revenue up £126.5 million [+8.2%] to £1,676.1 million

o The increase is, in part, as 3 result of prices se1 based on the November 2022 Consumer Price Index
[CPiH) inflation of 9.4%, and the impact of changes applied 1o our tariffs as agreed with the regulator,

EBITDA up £5.1 million (+0.6%] to £805.1 million

»  The increase in earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA] is consistent
with the increase in revenue described above. This has been partly offset by the increase in operating
costs, largely as a result of inflation and increased power costs.

» Jur proactive approach to energy hedging enabled us to have flexibility in the most volatile and
expensive market periods.

Operating profit down £4.9 milfion [-1.2%) to £413.4 million

» The decrease in operating profit is consistent with that seen in EBITDA, partially reduced by the
increase in depreciation.

» The increase in depreciation reflects the significant investment made in our asset base - the year saw a
record investment of £983 million.

Operating cash flow up £41.2 million (+5.9%) to £743.7 million

* The increase is principally driven by higher EBITDA, as described above, and favourable working
capital.

Net debt before derivatives up 794.1 million {+8.9%) to £9,731.2 million

# Net debt increased primarily bacause of our continued ramping up of our capital investrment
programme and higher acoretion on index-linked debt. We raised £1.4 billion in the period 1o fund this
programme for the remainder of the AMP,
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Reconciliation of operating profit to statutory profit before tax

Year Year
ended Ended
31 March 31 March
2024 1013
Em Im

Operating profit 4133 4183
Interest extuding ndexation [333.4) {277.4)
indexation {359.9) (3514
Finance income BB.6 433
Share of joint ventures’ profit/{koss) after tax 2.4 (0.4
Adjusted loss before tax {as defined in note 29) (208.9) 377.1)
Fair value gains on derivabves 204.9 B453
Statutory (loss)/profit before tax (4.0 268.2

Statutory loss of £4.0 million reflects a £272.2 million reduction on the prior year. This represents a significant
reduction in fair value gaing partially offset by a reduction in costs associated with indexation of debt. The fair
value gain in the period is an unrealised, non-cash item. This is as a result of decreases in derivative liability
positions, primarily driven by forecast increases in interest rates and decreasas in Inflation curves. Falr
valuation movements on derivative valuations can be volatile depending on the market rates forecast at the
time of reporting 2nd do not have a crystallised economic iImpact to the busingss until the time of actual cash
flow fixing.

Tregsury management

The treasury team, which reports directly to the Chief Finandial Officer, substantially manages the financing,
including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange for the Group. Treasury policy continues to be focused on
the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the Group. The activities of the

treasury function include the following:

o ensure that lenders’ covenants are met;

» spcure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities;

*  manage interest rates to- minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs;
» invest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk;

*  maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies;

= enhance control of financial resources; and

*  monitor counterparty credit exposures.

The Group's Board, through the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, regularly reviews treasury policy,
oTganisation and reporting to ensure continued effectiveness and relevance. More information on treasury
management can be found in note 19 of the consolidated financial statements.

i0
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Liguidity

As at March 2024 Anglian Water has access to £1,035.0 million of undrawn facilities (March 2023: £975.0
million), to finance working capital and capital expenditure reguirements. In addition, Anglian Water has
access 1o a further £425.0 million of Hguidity facilities (March 2023; £375.0 million), consisting of £254.0
rrilllien to finance debt service costs and £131.0 million to finance operating expenditure and maintenances
tapital expenditure in the event that the company was in an Event of Default on its debt obligations and had
insufficient alternative sources of Hguidity,

Osprey Acquisition Group's borrowing facilities, additionally, consists of £324.0 million undrawn revolving loan
facitities for general corporate requirements.

See note 16 for other movements in nat debt. The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out in note
13 of the consolidated financial statements.

Capital structure

The Group’s capital structure is largely driven by the requirements of Anglian Water's capital expenditure
programme and the need to support Anglian Water's investment grade credil status, which is met by a
combination of cash flow and debt issuance at the three levels of the Group structure with covenant tests at
the Anglian Water, Osprey Acquisitions Limited, and Aigrette Financing Limited leveds, At 31 March 2024
Anglian Water's and Osprey Acguisitions” net debt to capltal value ratio (net debt as defined in the Common
Terms Agreement axpressed as a percentage of Anglian Water's regulated capital value) was 63 per cent
[2023: 66 per cent) and 78 per cent (2023: 75 per cent) respectively, At 31 March 2023 Aigrette Financing
Limited's net debt to capital value ratio was B3 per cent (2023: 81 per cent). Aigrette Financing Limited's net
debt is similarly defined to those of Anglian Water and Osprey Acguisitions, but Aigrette Financing Limited is
not subject to 8 Common Terms Agreement.

Borrowing covenants

The financing within Anglian Water is secured under a Commaon Terms Agreement with investors, All ather
group borrowings are raised or guarantéed by the Company, Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc, AWG
Parent Co Limited, AWG Group Limited, Aigrette Financing Limited and in certain instances, subsidiary
Companies.

The central Treasury function is responsible for monitoring ongoing compliance with the Group's financial
covenants, which principally relata to Anglian Water's and Osprey Acquisition’s ratio of net debt to Regulatory
Capitsl Value and interest coverage. At 31 March 2024, all group companies were compliant with all
CoveRants.

Interest rotes

The Group’s policy, as agreed by the Board, is to achieve a balanced mix of funding to inflationinked, fixed
and floating rates of interest. At 31 March 2024, taking into account interest rate swaps, 47.9% (March 2023:
50.9%) of the company’s borrowings were at rates indexed to inflation, 33.8% (March 2023: 37.9%) were at
fined rates and 18.3% (March 2023: 11.2%) were at floating rates. At 31 March 2024, the proportion of
inflation debt to regulated capital value was 47.3% [March 2023: 47.9%).

11
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Ownership and company structure

Anglian Water Services Limited [AWS) is the principal subsidiary of Anglian Water Group Umited [AWG). The
AWG Board consists of six investor representatives, the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer and an

independent Non-Executive Chair,

AWGE Imeestors
v
Anglian Water Group Limited
v
Osprey Holdoo Limited
v
Aigrette Financing Limited
v

Csprey Imvestco Limited

v

Dsprey Acquizitions Limited

 J
AWG Parent Co Limited

v

AWG Group Limitad

oo e e

Anglian Waber Servioes
Holdings Limited
Y
Anglian Water Services
UK Parent Co Limited
v
Anglian Water Services
Limited ™

v |
Anglian Water Services
Financing Pic'¥

I — — —— — —

-E Anglian Water Services Financing
_t Group [AWSFG)

Direct subsidiary

- Collectively known as the
Angiian Water Services Group,
for which consolidated financial
statements are prepared,

Our corporate structure

AWG is owned by a consortium of committed, long-term Investors,
representing millions of indhvidual pension holders. Details of the
consortium, along with details of beneficial ownership of AWG (by
investor type), are shawn in the following diagrams,

The complete holding company structure is presented in the
diagram and the principal companies in the structure are
explained below,

When AWG was acquired by investars In 2006, it became the
ultimate parent company of the group. It 5 a Jersey-registered
company, but UK tax resident and, as such, is liable for 1ax in the
LK. All companies in the AWG holding structure are UK tax
resident and liable for tax in the UK. Osprey Holdoo Limited has
issued debt that is held by our shareholders in proportion to their
respective shareholdings. They are entitled to receive an interest
payment on the debt annually.

The group’s financing strategy for AMPT has reduced AWS gearing,

in arder to enhance and protect its current solid investment-grade
credit ratings. This enables AWS to borrow at bower rates, to
support the investments our customers have asked us to make,

AWG Group companies

Ajgrette Financing Limited, Osprey Investco Limited, Osprey
Acquisitions Limited and their UK financing subsidiaries have
borrowed funds externally during AMP7, in order to increase the
group's equity investment in AWS,

AWG Perent Co Limited and AWG Group Limited are holding

companies that were set up when AWG was a listed group. Both

companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries, are registered in the UK
and are UK tax resident.

12
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Anglian Water Services Anancing Group companies

Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited was put in ptace in 2002, when Anglian Water's covenanted and ring-
fenced debt structure was established. This group of companies (referred to as the Anglian Water Sendces
Financing Group, or AWSFG) protects customers and our bond holders from the risk associated with aother
non-regulated Anglian Water Group cormpanies, outside of the ring fence.

This makes us an attractive investment prospect for bond holders, which means we've been able to keep
financing costs lower, ultimately benefiting our customers in the form of lower bills.

Anglian Water Services UK Parent Co Limited is 3 second holding company in the fing-fenced structure, also
providing protection for customers and investors from the risks of other nonregulated group companies. All
companies within the AWSFG are UK-registered and UK tax resident companies,

Anglian Water Sendces Limited is the regulated entity that trades as Anglian Water, managing our water and
wiater recycling network and serving almost seven million customers. |t i the part of the business that mast
people think of as "Anghan Water".

The group's aquity Injections into AWS during AMPT have enabled AWS 1o reduce its gaaring.

Anglian Water Senvices Financing Plc |s the financing company that raises money on behalf of Angltan Warter
Services Limited. Funds raised by this company undérpin our investment in the region’s water and water
recycling services,

Details of the consortium of investars that owns AWGE are shown below;

* {(anada Pension Plan Investment Board (CPP Investments™ ) (ownership: 32.9%) is a professional
Investment management arganisation that manages the Fund in the best interest of the more than 20
million contributors and beneficiaries of the Canada Pension Plan.

» IFM Global Infrastructure Fund (ownership: 19.8%) is a fund advised by IFM Investors. IFM Investors is
& global institutional fund manager owned by 17 profit-to-member Australian pension funds,
specialising in infrastructure, private equity, debt and eguity investments. IFM invests on behalf of
approxdmately 120 million pensaners from around the world,

o Camulodunum Investrments {ownership: 15,05}k a joint investment vehicle for Dalmore Capital and
GLIL Infrastructure. GLIL Infrastructure is run by the pension funds of Greater Manchester, Merseyside,
West Yorkshire and Local Pension Partnership Investments. Dalmore has more than 1.3 miflion UK
pension holders invested directly in AWG.

v lgneo Infrastructure Partners (ownership: 15.6%) is an unlisted infrastructure asset management
business and is part of the First Sentier Investors Group (FSIG), a global asset management business.
F51G has £124.7 billion in assets under management (as at 31 March 2024) on behalf of institutional
investors, pension funds, wholesale distributors, investment platforms, financial advisers and their
clients woridwide.

« Infinity Investments S.A. {ownership: 16.7%) belongs to a proup of entities ultimataby wholly owned by
the Abu Dhabd Imestment Authority (ADIA) and focuses an infrastructure investments in Europe.

i3
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Beneficial ownership by Imvestor type:

L

Pensions [CPP Investments, GLIL Infrastructure, lgneo Infrastructure Partners Investors and [FM
investons); 75.8%

Asset manager (Dalmore Capital); 7.5%
Sovereign wealth fund (Infinity Investments 5.A.); 16.7%

Our business model
1) What drives us

DOur purpose is 1o bring environmental and social prosperity to the region we serve through our commitment
o Lowe Every Drop.

2) We deliver our value for our stakeholders

L]

L]

Environment and planet

Customers and communities

People and partners

Shareholders

Imvestors, banks and ratings agencies
Reguiators

Mational and local povernmient

3) Our fong term ambitions

Our ambitions respond to the pressures outlined in our 25-year Strategic Direction Statement.

Make the East of England resilient to the risks of drought and flooding.
Enable sustainable economic and housing growth in the UK's fastest growing region.

By 2030, be a net 2ero carbon business and reduce the carbon in building and maintaining our assets
by 705,

Work with others to achieve significant improvement in ecological quality across our catchments.

4) Our goals for 2020-2025

L]

To make fife better for our customers, every single day.
To deliver our 2020-2025 Final Determination,
To deliver our identified business priorities,

To create a sustainable future for our region.

14
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Whet will help us get there?

L

Skillad, trusted and customer-focused people who are happy, healthy and safe,
Maximising opportunities from standardisation and centralisation.

Smart use of information and technology.
World-leading alllances, working as ane team.

Collabaration Inside and outside the arganisation.

5) How we make decisions

Whe balanoe our six capitals to shape imvesbment decizions.

1.

Natural — The heaith of the natural systems and resources that we rely on and impact in our region
and beyond; the availability and quality of water in our rivers and aguifers; the protection of our seil
and biodiversity; and our impact on carbon emissions.

Social = The value of our relationships with stakeholders, including customers, communities and other
organisations; the impacts we have on people and society (both positive and negative) and the trust
they place in us as 3 result.

People - The inowledge, skills and wellbeing of our people; the heaith, happiness and safety of our
working environment; and our organisational culture and ways of working.

Financial - The financial health and resilience of the organisation and our actess 1o and use of
sustainable finance.

Intellectual — The knowledge, systemns, processes, data and information we hold, create and share
within our business and with our alliance partmers,

Manufactured = The ability of our infrastructure to provide resilient sendces to meet the current and
Tuture expectations of our customers.
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Osprey Holdeco Limited

Strategic report
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Financial performance
The financial results have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Alterative performance measures (APMs) used in this report have been defined in note 29 to the financial
statemants.

Legmental reporting

The key performance indicators of the Group's individual businesses are discussed in the “Anglian Water and
Head Office and Other” sections belows, This strategic report should be read in conjunction with the strateglc
report of Anglian Water 5ervices Limited, which does not from part of this report, which can be found at
hitps:fwwiw anglianwater co.uk/about-us/our-reports/ and provides a more detailed insight into the regulated

business.

EBITDA i= defined in note 29 as the profit from continuing operations before interest, tax, depreciation and
amartisation. The segment resuft comprises operating profit. In addition, compliance with the Group's
borrowing covenants is an additional key performance indicator for the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2024
Angian read Imeer-
Argllan Vanmurs Office zagment
‘Water Hpidings andOthar aliminations Total
£m Em im i i
Revenue
Externai 1&366 45 2 0.3 - 16761
Inter-segmant - ina - (18] -
16266 B0.0 0.3 108} 1676.1
Sepment resubt
EBITDA 8185 7.7 {221} . B05.1
Depreciation and amortisation (382 &) [1.4) 0.3 - {39L.7)
Share of joint venture's operating profit __E B.1 - - 6.1
430.9 10.4 [21.8) . 419.5
Cash fiows
Operating cash Flow Tart 4.3 [27.7) . T43.T
Capital gxpenditurg {992.3) (0.3 [0.1) - {992.9)
et debit exchuding derlvative financial instruments  [6,576.9) 3l [2757.4) - [@.73L3)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
Anglian Hzza irar-
Angian Varture Oiffice sEgmETT
Watsr  Holdings  sod Other  elimanations Total
Em £m £m £m Em
Revenus
External 14345 Ta 4 03 3 1585%
Inter-Sagment o cd = (5.4} =l
14545 GiE 03 [2.4) 15456
Segment result
EBITOA BO2E 91 (11.9j = 8000
Depreciation and amortisation @791} (2.8} 0.2 - (381.7)
Sharg of jont venturgs cperating profit = 2.1 = = 1
433 F Ea (11.7) . 4204
Cach flows
Dparating cash Maw 7insg &5 (134) - ]
Capital expenditure {660.0] (0.3} 0.4 . [655.9)
Met debt excluding derivative financial instruments
{6,247 9] [17) [26875) - (8937.1)
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Osprey Holdeco Limited

Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS

Pages 18 to 24 below set out the financial performance of Anglian Water, the principal business inthe Group,

followed by that of Anglian Venture Hoidings (AVH] and Head Office and Other on pages 24- 25.

Anglian Water's financial results are summarised in the table below:

2024 023
Tousl Tatal

Em Em

Revenue |excluding grants and contributions) 1528.8 13884
Grants and contributions 978 106.0
Cther operating income 15.8 160
Oparating coste [784.2) |678.0)
Lot allowance for expected credit loss [38.7) (30.1)
EBTDA* B19.5 anzg
Depraciation snd amortisation [388.5) (37,1}
Dperating profit 430.9 4337
Inferest (ercluding indexation) [187.5) {168.7]
Indexation charge (359.9) |561.4)
Finamce incoma d4.5 e
Adjusted boss before tax [TL.T7) {2E&H)
Fair value gaing on dernvaties 2049 pds3
Profit before taw on & statutory basiy 133.2 AR5
Tax [31.2) 190.2)
Profit after tax 1020 el 2

1 Az defined innote 29 finencsl medsired of mETmcs weed in This renoe that ang not defined by 7S are lternatve performancs méAsEed The groug

usgs duch mesiored for performance Bnsiyis berspse they provicie sddr ool wsetu| Informaton on the performencs and poution of the froup. Srcethe
Froup defings 15 owr allemethe parlormande msiased, (hese sight rol he el companebie 10 ciher cosnpesies alEraive perfommance measursd
These MEEuTEs #he not mtended 1o be & subsoiute for or ugenion 10, IR meaimementa, and hiave Been conslinently apphed within sach year presensed

i these fingil matees

2w prtlar to show pre-fas perlormance based on mansgemens & viee of an underiving Besls, the fair valus gains o nsseson finercil danusties have

beon snoan sonarately In the bl barzise thase 372 volanda nor-cach movements That SR the s0nus) Lndeshing sConomis gerfarmanos
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ANGLUAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS [continued)
Revenue

Revenue, excluding grants and contributions, for the year was £1.528.8 million (2023: £1,328 2 million], oran
increase of £139.9 million (10.1%). The nef increase In revenue is 35 3 result of the following factors:

*  The price increase for customers following the regulatory pricing formula, resulting in a £165.4 million
increase. This is reflected in an average increase of 10.7% in dual-service hills.

» A netdecrease in cemand of £5.8 million. Household consumption is down £8.0 million reflecting a cooler,
wetter summer compared with the prior vear, Non-household consumption is up £2.2 million as we maove
back towards pre-Covid 19 levels of consumption,

* Adecrease of £12.0 million relating to discounts for the LITE tariff funded from prior year cross-subsidy
contributions

s QOther offsetting movements in revenue of £7.7 million

Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions represent the cash and asset contributions made principally by property developers
and local authorities for connecting new property developments to the water and sewerage network, and for
work on existing infrastructure needed to accommiodate development.

Foliowing strong growth in the housing market and construction sector within our reglon during the prior year,
a5 a result of the cost of lving crisis, 202324 has seen a decling in this activity. This has resulted in a reduction in
grants and contribution income of £8.2 million to £97_8 million.

Other operating income
Other operating income comprise primarily external income from power generation, bio-solid sales to farms, rents

received and various other non-core activities, this was consistent with preor years.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS [continued)
Operating costs (including loss allowance for expected credit losses)

Dperating costs increased by £114.8 million to £822.% million [16.2%). This was principally due to inflation and
power cost increases, with the prior year being hedged prior to the spike in prices following the Russian
imvasion of Ukraine. These movements are explained in the table below:

Em
Prior period 708.1
Funded by Final Determination (FD)
Infiatan 318
Weather-related costs
Urwind of drought-related sxpenditure (12.8)
Increase in cost due to impact of wet winter weather g3
Povaner 8.4
Rates 51
Loss allowance for expected credit osses 56
Other sipnificant kems
Regulstory licence fees 15
Other 13.3)
Total increase 1148
March 2023 g9

Inflation

The inflationary increases in our cost base formed part of the Final Determination and are therefore, whilst
subject 1o a timing delay, funded through the inflationary increases in revenues,

Weather related

The first sit months of the prior year saw very little rainfall and as a result we saw exceptionally hard and dry
ground conditions which can cause pipes to move and split. As a consequence of this, in the prior year, we
experienced increased costs, particularly around leakage.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS [continued)

Relatively benign weather conditions were present for the first half of 2023-24, however these gave way 10
extremely wet weather, leading to floading, in the second half which has put pressure on our water recycling
operations,

As a result, we have seen a reduction in the drought related expenditure, with increased costs assodiated to
the impact of the extremely wet weather,

Fower

The increase in power (s due to the prior year énergy prices being locked-in ahead of the war in Ukraine,
whergas the current year reflects the significant cost increases since then. Our proactive energy hedging
approach enabled us to have flexibility in the most volatile and expencive market periods.

Rates

A refund was received a5 a result of 2 rates review in the second half of 2022/23. Our rates charge is therefore
higher in the current year.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses

The increase is primarily a result of the increase in revenue seen in the year, Our cash collection performance
remains strong, despite a slight reduction on the prior year due to the wider economic conditions,

Dther significant itams

These include a £1.5 million increase in the Ofwat licence fee with the balance relating to a range of
individually small offsetting tems.

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) is defined in note 29 and is the profit
from continuing operations before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation. This has increased by 2.1% to
E£819.5 million, which is consistent with the effect of the increases described above.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amaortisation is up 2.5% to £388.6 million, primarily as a result of higher fixed aszet baiances
% we construct and commission asters in line with our capital investment programme.

Operating profit

Operating profit has increased by 1.7% 1o £430.9 million, which is consistent with the increase in EBITDA
partially offset by the increase in deprediation.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS [continued)
Financing costs and profit before tax

Adjusted net finance costs (excluding fair value gains on financial instruments) were £207.9 million lower than
the prior year at £502.6 million. This is primarily a result of the non-cash impact of lower infiation on index-
inked debt which decreased by £201.5 million to £359.9 million and an increase in finance income on our
deposits due to higher market rates.

Fair value gains in the period, which are unrealised, non-cash items, are the result of decreases in derivative
[iability positions, prirmarily driven by forecast increases in interest rates and decreases in infiation curves. Fair
valuation movements on derivative valuations can be volatile depending on the market rates forecast at the
tme of reporting and do not have a erystallised econamic impact to the business until the time of actual cash
flow fixing.

The business is funded based on its embedded cost of debt and relative performance against the iBoxx index.
A5 3 result, these non-cash fair value gains and losses do not impact the immediate commercial performance
of the business, Ofwart obligations or shareholder distributions during AMP7,

Taxation
Year Year
Ended Endhed
31 March 31 March
204 223
Em £m
Current tan:

In respect of the cutrent period (47.3) (25.4)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (0.4) 0.7
Total current tax credit 147.7) (24.7)

Deeferred tax:
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences BiE 1130
Adjustments in respect of previous periods {3.9) 19
Toltal deferred tax charge T8.9 1129
Total tax charge on profit on continuing operations 3.2 5902

Compared to the same period in the previous year, the total tax charge has decreased by £59.0 million from a
tharge of £90.2 million to a charge of £31.2 million. This is primarily due to the lower gains on derivative
movements in the current year.

In addition to the £31.2 million tax charge on the income statement, there is a credit of £3.4 million (2023:
credit of £35.5 million) in the statement of other comprehansive income in relation to tax on actuarial losses
on pension schemas and fair value losses on cash flow hedges,
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS [continued)
Continuing to defiver our AMPT capital investment programme

2023/24 was the fourth year in the five-year AMPT investment programme, Over the five years to 2025,
Anglian Water will invest a record £3 bilion through its capital investment programme. This spend will help to
achieve Business Plan commitments and includes significant investments to ensurs the region is resilient to
the impacts of drought, climate change and population growth, alongside the largest ever programme of
schemes delivering environmental protection,

Delivery against this investment programme remains strong with gross annual capital expenditure across the
appointed business increasing from £725 million in 2022/23 to £963 million in 2023724 [£340 million oh capital
maintenance, £623 million on capital enhancement).

Financial needs and resources

At 31 March 2024, Anglian Water had borrowings net of cash of £6,976.9 million {exduding the fair value of
derivative financials instruments) an increase of £729.0 million from 31 March 2023. The increase in net
borrowings primarily reflects accretion on index-linked debt, capital expenditure and Interest payments.

During the period there were new issuances of £300 milllon 5.875% fixed rate 2031, £560 million £.0% fixed
rate 2039, JPY 8.5 billlon 1.917% fixed rate 2034, £375 million 5.75% fixed rate 2043 and 2 £100 million CPI
2040, These new fssuances were partially used to repay £200 million 6.575% fixed rate 2023, 5170 milllon
3.84% fixed rate 2023, £93 million 3.537% fixed rate 2023 and £83.5 million EIB debt repayments,

Liguidity

The company’s objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access to
different markets and debt instruments. At 31 March 2024, Anglian Water held cash, deposits and current
asset investments of £1,004.4 million (March 2023: £633.1 million). The increase in cash amounts held is
reflective of higher new debt issuances than debt repayments and capital expenditure in the period.

As at March 2024 Anglian Water has access to £1,025.0 million of undrawn facilities (March 2023: £975.0
million), to finance working capital and capital expenditure reguiraments. in addition, Anglian Water has
acress to a further £426 0 million of liguidity facilities {March 2023: £375.0 million}, consisting of £294.0
milllion 1o finance debt service costs and £131.0 million to finance operating expenditure and maintenance
capital expenditure in the event that the company was in an Event of Dafault on its debt obligations and had
insufficlent alternative sources of Bguidity,

All bank facilities and debt capital market issuance are issued pursuant to the Global Secured Medium Term

Note Programme dated 30 July 2002 between the company, AWSF and Deutsche Trustee Company Ltd (a8
agent and tnestes for isell and each of the finance parties). This agreement provides that any facilities drawn
by AWSF will be passed directly on o the company upon utifisation of the facility,
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS [continued)

Interest rates

The company’s policy, as agreed by the Board, is to achieve a balanced mix of funding to inflation-linked, fixed
and floating rates of interest. At 31 March 2024, taking into account interest rate swaps, 50.5% (March 2023
66.6%) of the company’s borrowings were at rates indexed to inflation, 28.4% (March 2023: 26.25%) were at
fived rates and 11.1% (March 2023 7.2%) were at floating rates. At 31 March 2024, the proportion of inflation
debt to regulated capital value was 47.3% (March 2023; 47.9%).

Pension funding

A1 31 March 2024, the closed defined benefit scheme had an 1AS 19 accounting pension surplus (before
deferred tax) of £30.7 miilion, compared to £51.1 millicn at 31 March 2023. This decrease in surplus refiects 3
decrease in the scheme's liabilities resulting from an increase in the corporate bond rate used to discount
those fabilities on an accounting basis compared to a greater decrease in our assets which are hedging gilt
based liabilities.

ANGLIAN VENTURE HOLDINGS FINANCIAL RESULTS

Anglian Venture Holdings has its own Board, which consists of five Directors: Anthony Donnelly, Declan
Maguire, Claire Russell, Peter Simpson, and Wayne Young.

Hmnancial performance
Yoar Yaar
ended mnded
31 March 31 Mach
2034 FFE
Em Em
Revenue 600 63.3
Cperating profit 43 6.3
Share of joint ventures ocperating profit (%] 21
Segment result 10.4 B4
Operating cath flow 4.3 55

Anglian Vienture Holdings generated revenue of £60.0 millien (2023: £63.8 million) and an aperating profit of
£4.3 milllon (2023; £6.3 milllan) as set out below.
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ANGLIAN VENTURE HOLDINGS HNAMNCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Revenue Operating profit
Mz 03 2024 2023
£m £m Em £m
Alpheys Emvironmental 10.4 117 1.0 10
Celtic Anglan Water 36.0 395 16 B
Tide Services 6.4 &7 0.2 02
AVH Parks 3.3 - ol -
Anglian Venture Holdings - 21 (0.1) 0.9
OHL Piperiid 21 149 1.8 14
Property 1.8 19 - (0.2}
AVH Solar Ltd . > (0.a4] (0.3}
0.0 G638 4.3 6.3

Share of joint venture's operating profit
Wianne L F.35
Segment result 10.4 8.4

Revenue for the year decreased from £63.8 million to £60.0 millicn, with operating profits of £4.3 million

compared to £6.3 million in 2023, The Group’s share of Wave joint venture’s operating profit was £6.1 million
compared o2 profit of £2.1 million in the prior year, In the year, Wave improved its operating margins with an
increased focus on reducing margin leakage, The overall decrease In operating profit, excluding Wave, reflects

lower profits in Celtic Anglian Water due to increase in repaics and maintenance costs as well as higher

chemical prices,

HEAD OFFICE AND OTHER FINANCIAL RESULTS

The decrease in operating profit, EBITDA and operating cash flow outside of Anglian Water has been driven by
increase in Head Office costs year on year, primarily dus 1o project costs in relation 1o Corporate Finance work.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Company has elected to disclose a section 172 statement on @ voluntary basis, outlining how the directors
promote the successes of the Company.

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation of the
business is predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Sendces Limited. Due to this refationship,
the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anghian Water Services Limited and
therefore interested parties should read the disclosure below, which is an extract from the Anglian Water
Services Limited annual integrated report (AIR). As such, all references below refer 1o Anglian Water Services
Limated.

Engaging with our stakeholders

In July 2019, with the approval of our Board and shareholders, we became the first major utility company to
amend our Articles of Association to enshring, for the long-term, the principles set out in section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 and our long-standing commitment to working in the public interest.

Section 172(2) states that, where the purposes of a company consist of purposes other than, or in addition to,
benefiting the company’s shareholders, the section 172 duties will take eftect. as if the reference to promoting
the suecess of the company for the benefit of shareholders were a reference to achieving those alternative
purposes. Anghian Water's Purpose {as set out in our Articles of Association) is to conduct its business and
operations for the benefit of members, while defivering long-term value for its customers, the region and the
communities it serves, seeking positive outcomes for the environment and society. It follows that the Directors
of Anglian Water have a duty 1o act in a way that can be considerad as most likely to promote the comparny
Purpose. The section 172 duties, 1o which the Diractors are subject, must therefore be considered in the
context of this Anghlan Water's Purpose.

The disclosures 58t out demonstrate how the Board has had regard to the matters set out in Section 172(1) (a)
ta (], which are now enshrined in Anglian Water's Articles of Assoclation, and include cross-references to
other sections of the report for further information.

Making long-term decisions

Anglian Water's long-term strategy is driven by our 25-year Stratégic Direction Statement (SDS). Our 5D5 was
first published in 2007 and refreched in Movember 2017, The 505 was most recenthy reviewed by the Board
early in the AMP and the updated version now covers the period 2020-2045. The four key ambitions et out in
our 505 are shown in our business model in the Annual Integrated Report.

Much of the Board's focus ovar the financial year related to the development of Anglian Water's PR24
Business Plan for the period 2025 - 2030 and the assodiated Long-Term Direction Strategy (LTDS). Further
information on the Board’s stakeholder engagement in relation to both the PR24 Business Plan and LTDS can
found in the case study on page 101 of our Annual Integrated Report. The LTDS is aligned with our existing
strategic frameworks as well as the Government's long-term objectives, in order to create a coherent strategy
1o 2050,
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In August 2023, we published the revised draft of our Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP), which sets
out how we will maintain 3 sustainable and secure supply of drinking water for our customers, over the period
2025-1050. The WRMP considers the challenges that our region faces, allowing Anglian Water 1o implemsnt
an affordable, sustainable pathway that can provide benefit 1o our customers, society and the environment.
The Board oversaw and scrutinised the development of the revised draft WRMP and also provided assurance
that Anglian Water had met its obligations in developing the WRMP: namely that it is the best value plan for
managing and developing water resources — based on sound and robust evidence and Costing processes —
which also enables us to continue to meet our abligations to supply water, protect the environment and
provide sacietal benefit,

Similarly, in May 2023, we published our first Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP) to set out
how we will manage and recycle water in our region over the next 25 years. In it, we address the triple
challenge we face from our rapidly changing climate, a fast growing population, and the need to protect our
region’s precious chalk streams and rivers. Again, the Board had oversight of the DWMP and gave assurance
that the resulting plan is the best value plan for custormers and the environment and is based on robust
evidence and costing processes.

The Board has also approved Anglian Water's long-term viability within which the Directors have assessed the
company’s prospects over the next 10 years.

Board engagement with stakeholders

Dur Board has st out to define discrete stakeholder groups, but it recognises that in many cases they have
complementary interests and shared priorities. On occasion, their concerns may even conflict with one
another. The Board's duty, In reviewing, challenging and shaping plans and setting strategic direction, is to
consider and bafance the impact of its decisions on a wide range of stakeholders. More information on our
business model, including how we use six capitals thinking to shape decisions and measure outcormes, can be
found on page 15. Information on our key stakeholders can be found throughout this report and below,

We have developed an annual stakehalder engagement strategy, which is approved by the Board. Thiz is
designed 1o demonstrate how Anglian Water it delivering on its Purpose and o increase the breadrh and
depth of understanding of the value that Anglian Water delivers. The Board regularly engages in the delivery of
the stakeholder strategy.

In November 2023, members of the Board attended the launch event for the Thriving East report at
Westminster,

There are some key Issues of such strategic importance that the Board judges it should engage directly with
relevant stakeholders. However, much of our engagement happens at an operational level.

Where the Board has not engaged directly with stakeholders, it receives regular reports from management, so
that the Directors can understand and take account of the key lssues 1o which they must have regard,
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Having regard to employees’ interests

The welfare and development of our empioyess, and the company’s culture and values, are key areas of focus
for the Board and it committess, and emploves-related issues are covered 31 every Board mesting, Areas
considered by the Board range from health, safety and wellbeing 1o inclusion, employes engagement and
succession planning. The Board meets the Head of Safety on a quanery basis, which enables the Board 1o
monitar key safety trends and to challenge performance where appropriate,

In Dctober 2023, the annual Love to Listen survey was undertaken with the aim of seeking and acting on the
views of our employees, The results of the survey, together with plans to address its findings, were discussed
by the Board. In line with the Anglian Water Services Corporate Governance Code 2020, the Board has
appointed John Barry as the Non-Executive Director responsible for engaging with the workiorce.

Anglian Water has offered employess the opportunity to participate in the AWG Loyalty Savings Scheme. This
scheme enabled emplovees 1o save on a monthiy basis and then potentially benefit from the financial
performance of the company at the eénd of the three-year savings period.

During the year, two ‘'market stalls’ events were held which gave the Directors and employeas the apportunity
to engage with esch other and discuss, in detail a variety of important matters affecting the company.

Further information on how the Board and management engage with employees — and the impact of that
engagement — can be found on pages 67-75 of our Annual Integrated Report.

The Board, stakeholder engagement and the development of PR24 Business Plan and LTDS

Engagement with customers and communities is fundamental to the development of our strategy and plans.

The Board-approved PR24 Business Plan and LTDS were submitted 1o Ofwat in October 2023, The Board has
been engaged throughout the business planning process for both the PR24 Business Plan and the LTDS, as far
back as March 2021, when the Board approved the overall strategy for the peried 2025 = 2030 (AMPZ). Since
then, the Board has regularty reviewed and challenged all aspects of the PRI4 Business Plan's development. In
September 2021, the Board agreed it was important 1o adopt 2 multi-AMP focus 1o ensure the need for
imvestment would be balanced against the challenges facing bill payers. At its meeting in May 2022, the Board
confirmed the importance of ensuring the PR24 Buginess Plan aligned with what customers valued most and
noted the involvement of the company’s Independent Challerge Group (Lthe ICG 14 a group of indepandent
subject experts and regulators, who scrutinise and challenge Anglian Water's business plans to make sure they
reflect customers’ priorithes).

In September 2022, the Board hosted a “market stall” event attended by the CEQ of Ofwat. The session
provided an opportunity to demonstrate how Anglian Water was focused on improving environmental
outcomes while keeping bills affordabie.
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To understand the perspective of our customers, some Directors attended customer engagement events and
ICG meetings. Alex Nassuphis attended the ICG"s Affordability and Acceptability Qualitative session in April
2023. In Juby 2023, the whole Board met Craig Bennett, the Chair of the ICG. This meeting allowed Mr Bennett
to detail the work undertaken by the ICG in challenging Anglian Water's position in respect of key aspects of
the Company’s PR24 Business Plan including the LTDS, water resources, affordability and customer
engagement

Between May and July 2023, nine deep dive sessions covering key elements of the PR24 Business Plan and
LTDS were held with individual Directors. The purpose of these sessions was to allow the Directors to consider
and challenge specific aspects of the PR24 Business Plan in greater detail. These sessions were each led by an
independent Non-Executive Director, selected based on their skills, to ensure an appropriate level of

challenge. For example, Zarin Patel led the sessions on the PR24 finandals, given her role as the Chair of the
Audit Cornmithes,

Fostering business refationships with suppliers, customers and others

Our most important supply chaln relationships are with our alliance partners, who play a crucial role in the
delivery of our infrastructure and services, The Board receives an update on the progress of the capital
investment programme a1 each Boaard meeling. This update provides an opportunity for the Directors 1o
review and challenge progress across the different delivery routes. Duning the year, the Board alsa receved
#nd considered — in detail — & number of updates on the progress of the Strategic Pipeline Alliance [SPA),
which is tasked with the delivering hundreds of kilometres of new, interconnacting pipelines.

Under Anglian Water's 5cheme of Delegation, the Board must approve the approach to the award of contracts
with suppliers, above a certain value. This ensures that there is the appropriate level of oversight of these key
contracts. During the year, the Board approved procurement strategies for operational technology delivery
and consultancy services, the management of recreation services and grounds maintenance. Each year the
Board also approves Anglian Water's Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement, which detalls the
steps we have undertaken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not taking place in any part of the
business, or within Anglian Water's supply chain,

The Board zlso engages with our different regulators including Ofwat, the Environment Agency (EA) and the
Drinking Water Inspectorate. As part of her induction programme, Dr Rivaz has met the Chairs of both Ofwat
and the Environment Agency,

Another important stakeholder group is debt investors, banks and rating agencies.

Emgagement i key to understanding their requiréments, demonstrating our long-term sustainable vision and
helping them to understand what makes Anglian Water a sound investment. Engagement oecurs through
dedicated investor events — held at least twice a year, to coincide with the company's resulls announcements
— and additional events such as the ‘Our Plans for the Future' event, which took place in October 2023,
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Impact on community and environment

The emilronment is at the heart of our Purpose and our 505 |5 fully aligned with the Government's own 25-
year Environment Plan, In July 2021, we published our Net Zero Strategy to 2030, This route map, which was
fully supported by the Board, et out how we 2im to reach net tero carbon emissions by 2030. As referred to
above, the Board approved both the revised draft WRMP and the DWMP during the vear. The Board regularly
considers environmental matters, incleding abstraction, compliance against the EA's Environmental
Performance Assessment, the progress of our WINEP, the water resource position and pollution reduction
schemes. The enviranment is at the heart of our purpose, and our 505 is fully aligned with the gavernment’s
own 25-year Environment Plan,

Throughout the year the Board has monitored the progress of both Ofwat's and the Environment Agency's
imvestigations into sewage-treatment-works compliance. The Board has also supported the continued focus on
reducing storm spills together with the deployment of smart technology and machine leaming at pace to help
predict and prevent pollutions. See page 17 of our Annual Integrated Report.

Dur purpose regudres us 1o consider the Impact of our operations on our communities, The Board retelves
regular updates on stakeholder engagement activities.

Maintaining high standards of business conduct

We seek to maintain high standards in all that we do a3 a business, We have robust risk-management and
internal-control processes, which are reviewed by the Board, or the refevant Board committee. Our code of

conduct, ‘Doing the Right Thing', applies to all employees and sets out what is expected from our people in
different situations.

Anglian Water also holds itseif to account against a set of Responsible Business Principles which are approved
by the Board,

Acting fairly between members

The Anglian Water Group is owned by 2 consortium of five, long-Term investors, representing milions of long-
term pension holders in the UK and overseas. These shareholders are represented on the Board of our
ultimate parent company Anglian Water Group Limited. There are also shareholder représentatives on the
Anglian Water Board. In this way, we ensure that we treat all shareholders fairly and that their views are heard
when making key decisions. These Directors bring with them a broad range of skills and experience, This is
extremely valuahle during Board discussions. Qur shareholders have made a long-term commitment to our
organisation and have a shared interest in, and respansibility for, its success, As the ultimate owners of the
business are the source of equity investment — not the group — it's vital that we engage them in strategic
planning and share our progress and results with them.

Further information on our company structure and ownership can be found on page 12, and in Board
hingraphies on pages 123-127 of our Annual integrated Report.
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Responding to stakeholder concerns

Thie Board has always taken an intense interest in Angllan Water's environmental performance. Over the last
couple of vears, the Board has recognised that = a8 2 business with a stated purpose to bring environmental
and social prosperity to the region we serve — pollution performance has been disappointing for all
stakeholders,

Following the development of the Pollution Reduction Programme 2023- 2025 (the PIRP), the Board has met
regularty with Emily Timmins, Director of Water Recycling, to understand and challenge progress made against
the PIRP. In November 2023, the Board challenged Ms Timmins to further develop additional investment
opportunities, which would be likely to have a beneficial impact on Anglian Water's pollution performance.

At its meeting in January 2024, the Board dlosely considered the detalled investment case to drive pollution
reduction, The Board recognised that there were multiple benafits 1o investing in pollution reduction,
including reputational improvements, 3 more positive relationship with regulators and reduced penalties.

Therefore, after careful consideration, the Beard approved the first tranche of £50 million of £100 million from
our shareholders to tackle pollutions and storm spills. This investment will deliver schemes, such a5 ereating
mare Capacity in sewers across the region and increasing storm water storage at water recycling centres, 50
they can deal with events like the intense rainfall we witnessed this year
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MON-ANANCIAL REPORTING STATEMENT

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation of the
business ks predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this relationship,
the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anghian Water Services Limited and
therglors interested parthes should read the disclosure below, which is an extract from the Anglian Water
Services Limited annual imegrated report (AIR]) www anglianwater co,uk/abour-usfour-reports. 4s such, all
references below refer 1o Anglian Water Services Limited,

The statements below reflect our commitment 1o, and management of, employees, communities, the
environrment, human rights, anti-bribery and anti-corruption in the last 12 months as required by sections
414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006.

We integrate this information throughout this report; the information is designed to help you find key
elements on non-financial matters., Links 1o policies, standards and relevant documents can be found at

anglianwater.co.uk,
Reparting Relevant poicies, documents | Sections within the Annual Integrated Report whese you can resd
FEqUrEmEREL af Teporis thal Favern our miore sboul our currenl activities and sk management
approach
Erwironmental and | » Articies of Assodation « Chair's welcome pages 5-7
climate matters # Strategic Direction # Chief Execlitive’s statamant pages 5-10
:’n““::ﬂ"_“'t”ﬂ; Statement = The Year in contaxt; pages 14-24
o nga * Integrated Management -
mm W Eﬂﬁrmk“Fﬂﬁw : ;hu:d?]m“lt T:.;hl:mm i B
enviranment s i B ng ourselves to account pages 35-36
Em in the s ot Pl » Responsible financing: Sustainable finance pages 27-30
Articies of ool * Cimate-refated [CR] financial disclosures:
Association of » Drought Plan (2} governance amangements pages 92-63
Anglian Water * Water Recycling Long- [b] how CH risks and opportunities are identified, assessed
through our stated | Term Plan and managed page 101
purpose: ToBANE | » Drainage and Wastewater | (c) how processes for ident/fying, assessing and managing CR
m:‘:-';ﬂ Management Plan risks are integrated within the company’s overall risk
Hhes regitnr W ARIVE # Pollutlon Incident management framework page 101
through aur fiesponse fan {d] description of:- {{] principal CR risks and opportunities
commitment to » Climate Change pages 94-97 [ii) time peariods to which these are assessed
Love EveryDrop, | Adaptation pages 94-97
* Net Zero Strategy 2030 (e} actual and potential Impacts of the principal CR risks and

opportunities on the business model and strategy page 54-97
[f} resilience of the business model and strategy, taking into
conskderation different CR scenarios pages 94-100

(g} targets used to manage (R risks and realise CR
opportunities and performance agzinst targets pages 84-101
[h] Kifis wsed to assess targets above and caiculations on
which these are based, pages 101-102

# Dur stakehokders: our ervironment pages 44-53

+ Section 172 statement pages B4-86

# Climnate-refated financial discosures, pages 91-103

» Principal risks pages 108-116
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Repaorting Relewant policies. d ooumants Sections within the Annuzl Integrated Reporn whers you can read
requirsmant or reparts that gavern auwr more sbout owr current actvities and risk management
approach
Emiplovess & Values framewark * Chair's welcome pages 5-7
iDur approach ko # Dioing the right thing - » Chicf Executive’s statement pages B-10
our emplayees is code of conduct * Dwr stakeholders: our peopde peges 6775
Bikied by the: * Inchusion pian « Saction 172 statemant pages 84-86
values that drive
i et « teakth and Safety policy | « Corporate Governance Report pages 128-136
progress: Together, | * Digmity ot work policy and | & yomination Commities Report pages 144-147
we build trust: we | Procedure

+ famunaratlon Committes Aeport pages 148-173

sodial prosperity to
the reglon we serve

do the right thing: | * Personal relationships at
we are ahways work policy
exploring. » Gender pay gap report
» Whistleblowing palicy and
procedure
« Fthnichy pay gap report
= Board diversity policy
Human rights » Daing the right thing — * Our stakehobders pages 48-83
Qur policies and code of canduct » Nomiination Committes Report pages 144-147
processes are » Dignity at work code of
underpinned by our | conduct
values; in « Data protectson policy
ﬁgﬂ;‘:ﬁ » Data retention palicy
» Customer privacy notice
¥ Modarn shavery and
human trafficking statement
 Human rights policy
Social matters # Anglian Water Artiches of | = Chair’s welcome pages 5-7
Our commitment | Association « Chiel Executive’s statement pages 8-10
to serving cur = Anglian Water Strategic = # Tha year-in-contest pages 14-24
customers and our | Direction Statement :

s i ST Cisie » Dur sirategic ambitions page 12
enshrined in the i I * Holding ourselves to account pages 35-36
Articles of gutd-ﬂnes—mmﬂtﬁ » Our stakehokders: our customers & communithes pages 54-
Association of 56
Angyiy Waler « Saction 172 statemant pages B4-86
through our stated
purposs: To bring
erwironmental and

through owr

commitment to

Lowve Every Orop.

anti-corruption # Dioing tha right thing — * Principal risks: Legal page 116

and bribery code of conduct = Audit Committee Report pages L37-143
Cur podicies and » Anti-bribery policy

processes ane » Anti-fraud policy

underginned by our
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Reporting Relewant poboies. dotumants Sections within the Annuzl Integrated Report whers you can read
requirsmant or reparts that gavern auwr more sbout owr current actvities and risk management
approach

values! in # Corporate hospitaliity
particular: we do palicy
the right thing. = Whistlablowing policy

» Board protocol for dealing

with conilicts of interest

# Tay and transparency

paolicy
Description of the | + Our business model page | « Board statement of Company direction and performance,
business model 11 Annual Performance Report {available at

wiwnw, angiianwater. co.ukfabout-us/our-reparts)

Non-financial key # Non-financial performance | » Dellvering our culcomes: Performance Commitments
performance maasured against a set of dashboard pages 37-43

vt » [wr stakehobders; Pariners pages 76-78

¢ Health and safety

measures and targels

# Environmenial

performance assessment
Description of * The year-in-context: pages | « Risk managemant pages 105-118
principal risks and | 14-24 » Principal risks pages 10B-116
Impact of business | « isk management pages | 4 Rusiness long-term viabllity statement pages 119-121
activity 105-118

A copy of our code of conduct ('Dolng the Right Thing'), together with cur Whistieblowing palicy, our Antl-
bribery policy and our current Madern Stavery and Human Trafficking statement can be found on our website
at anglisnwater.co.uk Our custamer privacy notice can be found at anghanwater co uk/shoutus/legal/privacy-
notice
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OUR APPROACH TO THE CLIMATE AND NATURE CRISES

Climate change is no longer a future threat, The impact is being felt globally, across sectors and ecosystems,
today. Water is a primary factor; across the world, we are witnessing more flooding, increased risk of drought
and rising sea levels', And, s populations grow, there is a higher demand for water, which requires more
transportation and energy-intensive pumping, Competing demands for water can impact biodiversity and
wildiife, alongside extreme weather events, which can detriment water guality. Sustainable water
management is key to building resilience in the face of the climate and nature crisis.

At Anglian Water, we manage water resources in a region that is water scarce and vulnerable to climate
change. It also has many precious environmental sites to protect, a growing population and a sizeable
agricultural economy that relies on water to feed the nation. In addition to supplying fresh, clean drinking
water and recycling wastawater, we must think about water in its widest context. Water underping economies
and businesses, it impacts the quality of green and blue spaces and is a key enabler for housing growth,
particularly in our fast-growing region.

The Intrinsic relationship that we have with nature and the énvironment means we address the challenge
through various strategies,

Geagraphically, our region is the driest in the UK, while heavy rainfall and rising sea leveks increase the risk of
flooding across our [arge coastal areas. The flat landscape we operate in means we must use energy o pump
water around the region and — with our population set o grow by 720,000 over the next two decades — there
is a dermand for low-carbon alternatives. Treating water also requires carbon and energy. So, we must seek
innovative ways to reduce the need for carbon-intensive, chemical processes and Instead opt for nature-based
solutions.

Extreme weather can also put stress on our infrastructure, impacting our day-to-day operations. For example,
much of the land is drained and rich in soils that are highly shrinkable, often chemically aggressive and
structurally unstable. Extreme temperatures can lead to shrinking and expanding soils of this kind,
exacerbating ground movements, which can increase failures of water distribution mains. Building climate
rasilience across our assets is key.

The region we serve is also home to many of the country's most precious chalkstreams and rivers. Improving
river health is & key focus area and we are leading on a range of multi-sector projects that will benefit entire

landscapes. Around the world, 85% of wetiands — which act as carbon sinks - have disappeared®. We have a

responsibility to reverse the declineg on nature oo,

Addressing these complex challenges now — and in the long-term — Is crucial and requires us ta be adaptable.
To stand still, a5 our climate changes and population grows over the next 25 years, will reguire unprecedented
transformation of our company and our sector

" ernatar ong water-facspiwatar-and-climate-chargs
L um prglandchenatechangadseen ool imate- s yes biadhnernity
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At Anglian Water, we have long known about the impact of dimate change and have been taking action to
manage our key climate change risks since the 1990s, In 2007, we get four long-term ambitions — all of which
retate 1o chimate change — 1 guide our forward planning. Refreshed in 2017, our Strategic Direction
Statement and the four ambitions remain fit for purpose and inform our long-term planning to 2050,

We have several strategies and plans to build resilience against climate change:

»  Drainage and Wastewsater Management Plan (DWMP)
»  Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP)

+ Drought plan

»  Net Zero 2030 strategy

* long-term Direction Statement (LTDS)

» Pollution Incident Reduction Plan {PIRP)

« Augat System Resilience Appraisal (ASRAP)

»  Our 2020 Climate Change adaptation report

This section houses our key climate and nature dischosures:

Tnaiiti i
Dur transition risks are inciuded i a number of our relevant strategies.

Tazk Force for Climate-Ralated Financial Disclosures [TCED)

Dur climate-related risks and opportunities are disclosed under the recommendations of the Task Force for
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TOFD), We continue to improve our climate-related disclosures, year on
year. Find out more on page 37.

Nature-related disclosures

As stewards of a natural resource, we rely on — and have the potential to impact — the natural environment.
This means managing the impacts, dependencies, risks and opportunities we have in relation to nature is not
only the right thing to do, but fundamental to our business. Find out more on page B5.
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
Making information about climate-related risks and opportunities available to our stakeholders.

Since 2017, we've made disclosures under the recommendations of the Task Force for Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD), adopting them well ahead of thelr mandatory introduction in 2022. We continue
to improve our climate-related disclosures year-on-year and our approach is consistent with all 11 TCFD
recommendations.

Introduction

As a water company, we have an intrinsic relationship with the environment = the health of the environment

both influences and s impacted by our operations. And, our emvironment is changing as a result of rising global
temperatures. This relationship has driven a range of dimate-related commitments and targets.

Our Annual Integrated Report complies with the reguirement of LR 9.8.6R by including climate-related
financial disclosures,

Highlights

» A-CDP Score, demonstrating we are implementing best practice towards environmental stewardship

o £1.7 billion raised green bonds in the year and 3 total of £3.2 billion of sustainable financing since
2017

o Delivering in line with our ambition to achieve net rero operational-carbon emissions by 2030

o  Dntrack to achieve a 70% reduction in capital carbon by 2030

*  Platinum certified by Achilles Carbon Reduce signalling 10+ consecutive years of carbon reduction

Governance
Disclose the organisation's governance around climate-related risks and opportunities,

Pageinthe AIR  Further references in the AIR

92 See organisational structure on page 92

See climate-related governance on page 92 to 93

Strategy

Discloze the actual and potential impacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation's
businesses, strategy, and financial planning where such information i material.

Pageinthe AIR  Further references in the AIR

o4 See climate-related strategy on page 98
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Risk management

Dischose how the organisation identifles, assesses and manages climate-related risks,

Page inthe AIR  Further references in the AIR

101 See climate-related risk management on page 101
See pur approach to risk on page 105
See our principal risks on page 108

Metrics & targets

Disclose the metrics and targets used 10 assess and manage relevant ciimate-related risks and opportunities,
where such information is material,

Page in the AIR  Further references in the 4IR

101 See climate-related risk managemeant on page 101
See our approach to risk on page 105
See our principal nske on page 108

Climate-related governance
Where we manage climate risks and opportunities

» Baard of Directors - Oversight of climate-related risks
»  Remuneration Committes - Rermuneration policy linked to ESG
» Audit Committee - Review the company’s top-ther risks
*  Management Board

#»  (limate Change and Carbon Steering Group

* Resilience Steering Group

o Sustainability Centre of Excellence

» Finance, Treaswry and Energy Policy Group

¢ Sustainability Team

»  Finance Climate Group

o Carbon Neutrality and Climate Change Team

o Sustainabifity Community

Board oversight

The Anglian Water Services (AWS) Board retains overall oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities.
The Board discusses climate related issues, for example reviewing our draft Water Resources Management
Plan, Climate-redated risks are included within the company’s top-tier risk register and managed through risk
management and internal control systems. In 2017, the Board led the business to be one of the first utifities to
raise finance through a Green Bond due to the governance structure we have in place.
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The Board drives and oversees our climate refated commitments including:

»  Anglian Water's Climate Change Adaptation Report

= Anghian Water's commitment to be net zero carbon by 2030: our Chief Executive Peter Simpson was co-
sponsor of the sector wide \Water UK commitment. Our net 2ero 2030 commitrment cosers our Soope 1
and 2 emissions, together with those Scope 3 emissions we're required to report, with the Board
MONILOFNg progress.

* In addition, we've also committed to reducing our capital carbon emissions — 5cope 3 emissions that arise,
as 8 consequence of building and maintaining our assets - by 70%, sgainst a 2010 basefine by 2030.

Leadership

As a founding member of the UK Corporate Leaders Group {the Corporate Leaders Group, run by the
University of Cambridge institute for Sustainability Leadership), Peter Simpson has championed business
action on climate change for many years. He was co-Chair of the Institute between 2020-21 and again in 2022
23. Our Senior Independent Non-Exeputive Director, Dame Polly Courtice, i Emeritus Director and Senior
Ambassador of the Cambridge Institute of Sustainability Leadership. Peter works with Business in the
Community [(BITC), as Chair of the East of England Leadership Team. He alsa sits on the Waterdld Board of
Trustes<,

The role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committae plays a key role in monitoring the company’s financial reporting, reviewing the material
financial judgements and assessing the internal control environment, ensuring information & accurate, timely,
refiable and compliant. The Committee provides effective oversight of both financial and non-finandal
disclosures, including chmate-related financial disclosures. Climate change is an area of focus as described on
page 138 of the AIR. The Committee approves our annual internal sudit plan, driving areas of focus. The
Committes also bi-annually reviews the top-tier risk register.

The role of the Remuneration Committes

The Remumeration Committee plays a key role in ensuring that climate change, and other Environmental,
Social and Governance [ssues are considered at the top of the organisation. A portion of variable executive
remuneration is already aligned to our purpose and selected ESG measures. These measures incude our
performance as a business in operational and embedded carbon, 5ee the Remuneration Report within the AIR
for more detail

The role of management
Management Board

The Management Board meets threa tmes a month to discuss issues, many of which relate to climate change,
The Management Board corsists of our Chief Executive along with key decision makers, who chair many of the
groups below.
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Climate and Carbon Steenng Group

The Clirmate and Carbon Steering Group s responsible for progress against climate change mitigation and
adaptation.

The group meets monthly, to discuss specific themes, including our proposed AMPE (2025- 2030} net zero
investment plans, which include a focus on renewable-energy generation, reducing fugitive emissions at 17 of
our largest sites and moving towards lower carbon HGVs, The group is chaired by a member of the
Management Board, with two other Management Board members attending, to ensure integration with the
overall business strategy, Updates are provided to the Management Board when reguired, for example on our
et 2ero carbon trajectory.

This group has been integral to the development of our climate adaptation imvestment plans for 2025-2030,
our future Climate Change Adaptation Report and progress against our 2030 earbon commitments.

The Resilience Steering Group

The Resilience Stzering Group, chaired by the Chiefl Exacutive, 15 responsible for 2ssecsing and improving
Anglian Water's resilience, Anglian ‘Water has introduced six capitals thinking and integrated them into the
governance process for projects within the organisation, so that all six capitals = natural, financial, social,
manufacturing, people and intellectual - are considered when making investment decisions,

Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group

The Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group also plays an important role in managing transition risks and
opportunities. Chaired by our Chief Financial Officer, the group leads on raising sustainable finance and
identified sustainable projects such a¢ renewable energy generation. The group's members include the Chief
Financial Officer, the Group Treasurer, other Management Board Directors and the Head of Carbon Neutrality.

The groups above take the principsl role in managing climate-related rick. Other organisational groups play an
important role in developing dimate-elated approaches.

Six Capital Steering Group

The 5ix Capitals Steering Group has developed a methodology to assign values to measures across each of the
six capitals and their contributing factors, allowing for project appraisals to consider value in the broadest
possible sense. Anglan Water has developed a methodology for capturing and reporting on this data, allowing
for reports on performance against the six capitals to be included in a wider purpose dashboard that will be
reported to the Board on a regular basis. The Six Capitals Steering Group has been subsumed by the
Sustainability Centre of Exceilence,

Finance Climate Group

The Finance Climate Groups' purpose is to coordinate, coliate and share best practice on financial planning and
reporting with regards 1o sustainability, carbon and climate-change issues, The group has improved the link
between finance functions and those delivering climate solutions around the business. Our Chief Financial
Officer attends once a year for an update on progress and prioritisation.
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Suztainabllity Community and Sustainability Centre of Excellence

Anglian Water's Sustainabliity Community allows Anglian Water employees and alliance partners to engage
with sustainability-refated activities, ensuring that input into the climate change, carbon and sustainability
2genda is open to all. This community 3ims 1o hameass these ideas and the widespread commitment 1o
sustainability across Anglian Water and our partners.

Headed by the Chief Sustainability Officer, our Sustainability Centre of Excellence is a consultative and
collaborative forum for those leading on sustainability and purpose throughout the organisation to maximise
impact and increase transparency.

Engaging with our customers
We are constantly engaging with customers, with over;

« 1 million direct customer confacls a year,;
337 customer panels; and
# 100,000 respanses to our customer feedback surveys,

Our customers are valued stakeholders who we consult with on our key plans.

In preparation for our AMPE proposals, we carried out almost 35,000 in-depth enpagements with our
household customers and over 2,500 engagements with our non-household customers.

We also issue key climate-refated plans for public consultation — induding our Drought Plan, Water Resources
Management Man, Climate Change Adaptation Report and Drainage and Waste Water Management Plan —
and we Incorporate and reflect the feedback we receive,

Customer feedback channel include the ICG, our online community and our Customer Board:

Anglian Water's Independent Challenge Group (ICG): A group of independant subject experts and regulators —
with an Independent Chair — that scrutinises and challenges Anglian Water's business plans, to make sure
they reflect customers” priorities. Replacing the previous Customer Engagement Forum in 2022, the ICG
constructively challenges Anglian Water on.

» the guality of its engagement with customers and the wider communities and stakeholders it serves;

» the extent to which customer priorities are reflected in what the company does; and

= the company’s delivery against those priorities.
Dur online community is formed of 500 customers, whose views we seek weekly on a wide range of topics.
Dur Customer Board comprisas a reprasentative selection of members from the online community, to provide
Turther guidance and directly feed in customers’ views.
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Climate-related strategy
Climate-related risks, opportunities and impact

As stated in our Climate Change Adaptation Report (published in 2020, with an updated version due by the
end of 2024) — and more recently confirmed in our Thriving East research — climate change in our region will
fead vo less rainfall in sumimer and wetter weather in winter, We have been fooused on building resilience for
years and expect the more extrama weather conditions we've witnessed in recent years to continue.

Drganisational resilience and scenario planning

Anglian Water's overall resilience to climate-related risk is addressed through various strategies and plans, as
outlined in our approach to climate change on page 35, As an example, climate change will have an impact on
available water resources, Our long-term strategy to managing supply and demand is outlined in our Water
Resources Management Plan. Successive plans have ensured a safe, secure supply of water to our customers’
taps. New water treatment works, the laying of strategie pipelines to take surplus water to areas in deficit and
improving the connectivity of our region have contributed to resiience.

Our Long-Term Defivery Strategy contains our adaptive approach to 2050. As we look to 2050, our strategy will
mitigate the impacts of challenges like ciimate change, population growth and new regulations to ensure there
is no deterioration in the service we provide to customers, Key focus areas include: demand reduction; new
water supply infrastructure; ensuring that our water recycling systems protect the environment from harm;, a
tircular economy approach to all waste streams; and 3 significant step change in the use of nature-based
solutions 1o solve water-security ssues,

Our five-year investment periods (short-term) and associated Ofwat Performance Commitment Levels (PCL)
are setin the context of @ much longer timeframe — in line with our Purpose and Strategic Direction
Statement. Anything between five and 25 years is defined as medium term. Long term is defined as 25 years+,
In the table below, the metrics cited are our Ofwat PCLs. These are a subset of a wider range of performance
measures, which ladder up to our long-term ambitions,

Identifying risks and climate-related opportunities

Dur governance structure enables us to identify dimate-related opportunities across the organisation. Thess
are centralised and reviewed within the Climate and Carbon Steering Group and outlined below:
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Hnancial Impact

Historically, we have ring-fenced an element of the Opex budget centrally, 1o ensure this is available when we
incur additional costs a5 a result of weather events. In light of the weather extremes experisnced in recent
years, this ring-fenced budget was increased for the year to March 2024,

We had very little rainfall in 2022, resulting in dry ground conditions. This impacted our leakage performance
and we experienced increased costs as a result. We had stable weather for the first half of 2023/24, however,
the last six months gave way to extremely wet weather, which put pressure on our water recycling operations
and impacted us across pollutions, spills and flooding. In cost terms, this translated in additional operating
costs of £9.3 million, as a result of the wet weather, offset by the unwind of the prior-year drought-refated
Costs not repeating {12.6 million).

Furthermare, we have not reached our regulatory Tangets for some key measures, As a result, we are in a
penalty of £37.6 million, Read more about our Ofwat-related performance commitments on page 74.

The impact of climate change is incorporated mto our key assumptions and significant judgements on page
112 to 117. This discusses the risks in relation 1o our water maing network, in conjunction with our proposed
imvestment for climate vuinerable mains — as highlighted in the risks 1able above,

Green finance

We have developed a Sustainabifity-Linked Finance Framework to issue finance instruments tied to our
sustainability objectives, including carbon reductions. The investments made through the Green Bonds issued
to date are expected to support a 63% reduction from the company's 2010 capital carbon baseline,

Greenhouse Gas Report

Our annual Greenhouse Gas Report charts the dedine in Intensity factors used to indicate the decarbonisation
of our services, Where relevant, we have also aligned with industry best practice for emissions measurement
and reporting. This approach has been verified, since 2010, by CEMARS a8 being measured, managad and
reduced in-accordance with 150 14064, Dur strategy for operational carbon reduction has been verified against
I50-14064 since 2010 and in 2021 were awarded Platinum status on Achilles Carbon Reduce,

Transition to Net Zero

By 2030 we aim to be a net zero carbon business, This is defined as net zero emissions where we have
operational control as set out in our Net Zera Carbon Routemap 2030. This means we will reduce our carbon
emissions through, for exampie, the consumption of renewable electricity, transitioning away from fossil fuel
vehicles and reducing our energy consumption. In 2030 we will likely have sorme residual emissions, Tor
example from process emissions from waste water treatment and Heavy Goads Vehicles, which will be offset
through carbon offsetting mechanisms,
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Our Net Zerg 2030 Strategy contains maore detall on the risks associated with transitioning 1o 8 net zerd carbon
business. Owverall, we have 3 comprehensive approach to dimate change, of which our transition risks form a
key part. Key documents outlining our plans include our: Net Zero 2030 Strategy; Water Resources
Management Plan, Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan; Strategic Direction Statement; Climate
Change Adaptation Report; and Long Term Delivery Strategy.,

Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP)

This year, building on our experience of assessing flood risk, we undertook our most detailed flood-risk
assessment ever for our Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP). We folliowed a three step
PROCRSS:

Step one used a range of climate change scenanos, Including UKCP1E RCP2.6 and RCF 8.5, four time horizons
{2025, 2030, 2035 and 2050) and she storm return periods (1:30, 1:75, 1:100, 1:250, 1:500 and 1:1,000). This
identified the likelthood of flooding at our sites,

Srep two established prionity sites, based on risk and consequence,
Step thres developed solutions that would protect our assees for submission as part of our PR24 business plan,

The results clearly show the impact of dimate change as we look ahead to 2050. Using the RCPB.S scenario
(broadly equivalent to a 4 degree C temperature rise), we can see that fluvial flood risk (when a river bursts its
barks) reduces sfightly, while pluvial flooding (when heavy rainfall overwhelms the ability of the ground to
absorb or drain water) increases shighthy.

The likely cawse of this is that base river flows may be lower in summer, due to reduced rainfall, while more-
intense summer storms will increase the risk of curface-water flooding. This analysis allows us to take a more
ruanced view of our risk, enabling us to make informed deckions about the risk of flooding and take an
adaptive approach to investment, where reguired.

Water Resources Management Plan [WRMP)

We develop a Water Resources Management Plan [WRMP) every five years, setting out how we plan to
manage water supplies in our region to meet current and future needs over a 25 year period. Qur WRMP24 is
our biggest and boldest yet - it includes two new resenvoirs, a reuse scheme, transfers and a demand
management strategy underpinned by our ambitious smart metering roll-out.

In prepaning our WRMP we conducted the most robust level of dimate change assessment (Tier 3 in the Water
Resources Planning Guideline supporting guidance) for our whole system.

We used climate-change projections, based on UKCP18, through 12 bias-corrected Regional Climate Model
(RCM) Factors for RCPA.5. This modelling was earmied out for aach Water Resources Zone (WR2) within our
syster,
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The results of the dimate-change-scenario analysis identified that two of our 28 WRZ are particularly
vulnerable 1o climate change and that there would be 3 material impact on the supply demand balance in
another five WREZs. Climate-change impacts were combined with other factors, such as growth, to understand
the total impact on the supply/demand balance in each WRZ. This has helped inform better resilience
serategies Tor the WRIs,

Addressing climate-related supply challenges

We began engaging with our supply chain on climate change in 2007, when we invited our key partners to HRH
The Prince of Wales' first Mayday Summit. Since then, we've worked with our design and construction
partners to reduce capital carbon by more than 64%.

In 2023 we brought our value chain together to discuss dimate change resilience and adaptation and our
journey 1o net 2ero carbon. The event openad with a keynote speech from Chris Stark, the then Chief
Executive of the Climate Change Committee. A number of collaborative workstreams were taken forward after
the event.

We're focused on reducing the carbon associated with the matarials usad to build our 355815, In 2006 we
became the first organisation to be verified against PAS 2080, the world's first standard for managing carbon
in infrastructure. Designed 1o drive best practice in managing carbon across the supply chain, in 2023 PAS 2080
was revised, We have been verified against this revised standard.

An example of value-chain collaboration is our Ofwat-funded research project to better understand Whaole Life
Carbon — that is the carbon associated with constructing, operating, maintaining and managing the end of life
of our assets. Whole Life Carbon will integrate carbon and cost models into a single digital approach, enabling
users to consider options that avoid construction of new assets, through re-using existing infrastructure, or
selecting lower-carbon materials. The project has already identified future opportunities to combine carbon
and dimate resitience.

@ong

In 2023, the Anglian Water @one Alllance was awarded the Saint Gobain's Sustainability Leadership Award,
Saint-Gobain designs, manufactures and distributes materials and services for the construction and industrial
markets. The @one Alliance team has collaborated with Saint Gabain, to usa the UK's first 100% recycled
ductile ron pipe from Saint Gobain's new low-carbon electric arc furmace.

Water UK Carbon Network

In November 2023, we were instrumental in restarting the Water UK Carbon Network, which is co-chaired by
our Head of Carbon Neutrality. This group meets monthly with a purpose of shanng of best practice,
knowledge and development for carbon practitioners, shaping of net zero policy and strategy from a water
SeLIor perspective.
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CreDo

Alongside working with our supply chain, we are partnering across sectors 10 build ciimate resilience. In 2021
the Climate Change Committes assessed infrastructure interdependencies as having a low-guality plan and
found that infrastructure owmers were making shower progress than needed to manage risk,

Dur assets operale in an interrelated infrastructure system. We are refiant on the power network for
electricity, the telecoms network for communications and the road system for access, In turn, the power and

telecoms networks are in some cases reliant on the water network. A failure in ane of these elements of the
gystem can lead to cascade failure, where other elements of this linked infrastructure network faif as a
consequence. Exdreme weather events can cause this failure,

Simce 2021, we've partnered with British Telecom and UK Power Nebworks on.a project, led by the National

Digital Twin programme (NDTp) and Connected Places Catapult, known as the Climate Resilience
Demonstrator [CreDo).

Initially funded by BEIS and Innovate UK —and now having secured innovation funding from both Ofwat and
Dfgem — CreDa 15 combining datasets from Anglian Water, BT and UKPN into one system maodel, to develop a
cross-sector picture of extreme weather events, In bringing together data and insights acrogs sectorial and
organisational boundaries, the project shows how we can collaborate on a national network of connected
digital twins, to create resifient infrastructure.

The project eriginally focused on the impacts of extreme flooding and creating a working moded for effective
data-sharing between the partners. In 2023, the project expanded to investigate extreme-heat events, Funded
by the Ofwat Water Breakthrough challenge, the second phase of the project examines the potential impact of
such extrerne heat scenarios on the wider infrastructure network. The CReDo team now has a working digital
twin, which provides a greater understanding of the interconnectedness of the networks, along with an
increased understanding of how more-extreme tlimate events could impact this systemn of systems.

The next phase is preparing the digital twin architecture, to scale the working model to become UK-wide.
We're alsa considering other future scenarios, Including extreme wind and storm events and invalving more
2s55el owners, Lo cover infrastructure such as roads.

Innovating to reduce carbon emissions

Dur Research & Innovation Team invests around £30 million per year in ground-breaking research and
projects. This includes the Ofwat-funded Triple Carbon Reduction project, which is exploring how to reduce
process emissions — after electricity, these are our bigeest source of emissions. The project is also looking at
reducing energy consumption in water recyeling and producing hydrogen, with hydrogen having the potential
to result in significant carbon reductions. Currently, there is uncertainty surrounding how this new model may
work.

As part of Ofwat’s Water Breakthrough Challenge, we 2re leading on seven projects and have secured £20.4
milllion in Ofwat Innovation funding, to create solutions to our industry's biggest challengas, including process
SIMILLIons,
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In Decemnber 2023, Ofwat visited the Cambridge Water Recycling Centre in Miltan to hear about the Triple
Carbon Reduction project. The project aims 1o evidence a step-change reduclion in greenhouse-gas emissions
and electricity wsed in the water treatment process, which could significantly reduce the amount of emissions
created, The project uses renewable-energy-powered hydrolysis; 1o produce hydrogen and oxygen from
water, The hydrogen is collected 1o be used a3 a fuel, while the oxygen i used 1o replace traditional aeration.
The results of this trial will feed into the development of our hydrogen strategy over the coming years.

Michael Taylor, Innovation Integration Manager at Anglian Water said: "The Dfwat Innovation Fund has
allowed us to have genuine ambition in taking big strides towards a transformed water sector.

*The Triple Carbon Reduction project is a great exampie of a complex innovation tackling barriers in
technologies, processes, systems and markets, in parallel. The collective approach, at this scale, wouldn't be
paossible without support from the Ofwat Innovation Fund. | cannat wait to see what is possible, through our
continued collaboration on mohbilising transformational projects

Although still In the early stages, two projects funded via the Ofwat innovation fund have now been through
thelr full lifecycle and are delivering benefits via changes 1o our investment planning, early-stage capital
delivery processes and operational strategies,

Generating renewable energy

The vast majority of our operational emissions are associated with the electricity used to pump, treat and
recycle water. One of the opportunities for reducing our emissions — and our costs - i to generate renewable
energy from our sewage sludge, and to generate renewable power on our sites from wind and solar. Not only
does generating renewable energy reduce our impact on the environment, it also mitigates the transition risk
associated with changes in policy and cost linked to decarbonising the UK's electricity.

Since 2004, we have grown our fleet of combined heat and power generation sites. We have ten sites
producing 100-120GWh per antum, subject to asset performance. We generate around 13GWh from three
wind turbines inctalled at Tetney Newton Marsh and March Water Recycling Centres, |n terms of solar, our
partners operate solar arrays across 15 operational sites, generating around 17GWh per annum = of which we
consume approximately 15GWh,

The past year also saw the advancement of our activities in the procurement of corporate Power Purchase
Agreements, Supported by framework partners appointed in early 2023, we have procured 71,6G6Wh from
accredited renewable energy installations in and around our region. Further CPPA supply contracts are
forecast to commence in 2024/25.

Our aspiration is that, by 2030, we will use 100% renawable energy, with 25% of our electricity being delivered
from renewable sources generated at our own sites. We're also working towards upgrading three siudge
treatment centres to export biogas to the grid.
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Energy efficlency

As weall as generating our own renewable energy, we're akso pursuing other opportunities to reduce our
tarbon emissions and reduce costs. Thede include an energy efficiency Spend-to-5ave programme, designing
carbon out of the new assets we build and reducing travel emissions.

This programme was launched in 2006 and delivered savings of more than £10 million within four years.

We continue to reduce energy consumption across the business, targeting 13 GWh in reductions by 2024/25.
Climate-related risk management

Identifying and assessing climate-related risks

We outline our 13 principal risks on page 68. Climate change Is a consideration in gach. Identification of
current and emerging climate risks, including risks presented through implementation of change, is
undertaken as part of our embedded risk processes. Our process utilises expert judgement, historical data,
external data and forward-looking analysis. We use scenarios to inform our future direction.

The assessment and management of climate-related risks i consistent with the approach used to manage risk
throughout the business. Climate-related risks were identified and assessed during the production of our latest
Climiate Change Adaptation Report. Climate risks are also identified and managed through the preparation of
long-term plans and the delivery of individual investments. We review the current risk level and how aur
controts provide confidence and assurance around our rmanagement of that risk

Our Long Term Delhvery Strategy (LTDS) sets out how we will achieve our future vigion, with our cone pathway
outlining the Investments we expect to make to 2050, We have used Ofwat's common reference scenarios —
technology, demand, climate change and abstraction reduction — to test our future plans. And we have
looked to the future through a variety of lenses — including digital, innovation, partnership working and place-
based approaches — o ensure we have considered every possible solution. This enables us to ereate a core
pattway and 3 set of alternative routes, in the event drcumstances change.

Managing cimate-related risks

The management of dimate-related risks is consistent with our approach to manage risk throughout the
business. More in our Risk section on pages 105 to 108 of AIR.

Integrating cimate-related risk into overall risk strategy

Our approach to climate-refated ricks are fully integrated within our overall risk strategy, a< outlined on page
108 of AIR.

Within this system, we define what constitutes substantial financial and strategic impact to the business. &

critical impact at Anglian Water is defined in the risk register as being greater than £25 million, while a
significant impact is between £10 million and £25 million.
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Climate-related metrics and targets
We've developed a process to assess and manage the climate resilience of our investments.

Qur Six Capitals Framework is used to consider the broadest value we can create through investment
decisions. And our approach has been externally validated by sustainability consultants, Route 2. These
metrics have been incorporasted into our value framework — which attributes a notional financial value 1o
elements such as biodiversity and amenity value — and into our risk, opportunity and value tooks and process.
Imvestments are then assessed for climate resilience, operational-carbon performance and capital-carban
performance, throughout the process,

As an organisation, our belief is that reducing carbon results in cost reductions, whereas previously, it was
seen as an additional expense or burden, This mindset shift, alongside ambitious targets (5% capital carbon
reduction target by 2025 and 70% by 2030 against a basefine of 2010) which is underpinmed by a rigorous
process verified to PAS 2080 has proven much more effective in driving down emissions.

This is mast clearly seen in the delivery of our five year plans, in accordance with PAS 2080.

The data collected on our carbon versus cost saving can be used to estimate an implicit financial value for a
tonne of carbon.

The Perfarmance Commitments section, pages 74 to 83, contains a set of metrics and targets we are using to
understand progress against climate-related risk. Performance against these metrics is set out annually in our
Annual Performance Report. Our Climate Change Adaptation Report also includes other key metrics we use to
measure and mitigate our impact. An updated report will be published in 2024,

Scope 1, Scope 2 and relevant Scope 3 Greenhouse Gas Emissions [GHG)
Metrics and targets

This table meets the requirements of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting |SECR) regulations.

Units 2022/213 2023/24 Inclusions
Energy consumption  kKWh 1,073,538,749  1,069,978.529 Electricity, gas, fuels combusted on
used to caloulate site (fossil fuels and biogas), ransport
emissions kWh {company cars, fleet vehicles, personal

and hire cars on business use) plus
liquid fuels consumed on site

SCOPE 1=Gas and Tonnes COZ2e 10,541 10,945 Fossif fuel combusted, natural gas and
fuel oil consumption biogas
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Units 2022/23 2023/24 Inclusions
SCOPE 1 - Process Tonnes CO2e 25, 850 84,780 Water and waste water freatment,
and fugitive biogas
BmiEsions
SCOPE 1 - 0wned Tennes CO2e 21,904 21,759 Fleet vehicles and company cars
transport
SCOPE 1-Total Tonnes CO2e 118,304 117,483
SCOPE 2 —Purchased  Tonnes COZe 121,994 134,587  Grid electricity — location-based
electricity electric Tor vehiches
SCOPE 2 —Total Tonnes CO2e 121,994 134 5497
SCOPE 3 —Business Fonnes C02e 621 740 Private cars, public transport
tranef
SCOPE3- Tonnes C02e 13,142 18,434 Qutsourced tankers
Qutsourced
transport
SCOPE 3 =Pirchased Tonnes COZe 11,154 11,632 Transmission & distribution
electricity
SCOPE 3 —Total Tonnes CO2e 24,920 30,806 We have not included commuting,
significant capital carbon and emissions from use
af water in customars’ homes.
TOTAL ANMNLUAL Tonnes C02e 265,219 282 886
GROSS EMISSIOMNS
Exported renewables  Tonnes CO2e 6,334 6,549 Exported renewables REGO certified
Green tarif! Tonnes CO2e 0
TOTAL ANNUAL NET  Tonnes COZe 158,684 276,337
ERISSIONS
INTENSITY RATIO — Kg CO2e per 192.48 191,99
water freated Al
INTENSITY RATIO = Kg CO2e per 409.54 4547
recycled water il
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Units 202223 2023424 Inclusions
INTENSITY RATIO = Kg CO2e per 22719 236.1 Full flow to treatment
recyclad water Ml
Methodology:

Emissions have been calculated using Carbon Accounting Workbook v18 {2024), an industry standard reparting
tool. We have followed the 2020 UK Government emdronmental reporting guidance. We have used the GHG
Pratocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting standard (revised edition) and emission factors from the UK
Government's GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2023 1o cakculate the above disclosuras, There
have been no methodological changes in the way emissions have been caleulzred in financial year 2023-2024
againsr 2022-23.

The reporting boundary covers the emissions within the regulated activity of Anglian Water Services Ltd,
where we have operational control, Le. all Scope 1 emissions, all Scope 2 emissions and Scope 3 emissions of
autsourced transport, business travel and transmission and distribution losses.

The numbers reported have been verified by Achilles Carbon Reduce (formerly CEMARS) as belng measured,
managed and reduced in accordance with 150 14064-1. This verification process has been followed since 2011,

Weaim 1o be anet zero carbon business by 2030, This is defined as net 2erp emissions where we have
operational control as set out inour Net Zero Carbon Routemap 2030,

Energy consumption has increased slightly in 2023,/24 over 2002/23 primarily because of the very wet weather
and the subsequent increased pumping required to pump higher volumes of wastewater, This was somewhart
offset by lower water demand and pumping requirements for water supply, including abstracting raw water
from rivers into impounding resenvoirs,

Organisational targets 1o manage climate-related risks and opportunities

Our key short to medium term ciimate-related targets are as set out below. We frequently monitor and
forecast our position towards our net 2ero commitment. The below targets are in addition to our Performance
Commitments,

* e anet zero carbon business by 2030 (emissions where we have operational control and as sat out in our
Met Zero Carbon 2030 Routemap);

* Deliver a 65% reduction in capital carbon by 2025 against our 2010 baseline;

o Deliver a 70% reduction in capital carbon by 2030 against our 2010 baseling;

*  Deliver a 10% reduction in operational carbon by 2025 against a 2020 baseline; and

* Between 2020 and 2025 ensure that 2 climate change resilience assessment & completad for all relevant
Investments.
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Operational carbon &5 the carban emitted a8 a consequence of the day-1o-day operations of our business —
energy use, process ermissions from the water recycling process, emissions from our vehicle fleet, erc. Capital
carbon s the carbon emitted a5 consequence of the manufacture and installation of assets we construct, for
example, our new strategic pipeling or, a new treatment facility.

From 2022/23, a proportion of senior leader remuneration is linked 1o perfformance against these climate-
related targets: 2.5% of senior leaders’ bonuses are linked to the achlevement of our annual net »ero carbon
performance target and 2.5% is linked to the achievement of our annual capital carbon performance target.
See more in our Renumeration report on page 148 of AR,

Cur longer-term climate-related targets are in line with our purpose and Strategic Direction Statement to
2050:

* Resilient to the risk of drought and fiood;

» Enabling sustainable economic and housing growth;

» Work with others to achieve significant improvements in ecological quality of catchments;
» Acarbon neutral business.

I termis of our carbon emissions, wa intend to:

» Develop a strategy 1o further reduce our capital carbon beyond 70% post 2030,

* By 2050, our ambition is 1o move beyond net 2ero and become a carbon positive business, reducing
rather than contributing 1o the UK's emissions.

*  Develop a hydrogen strategy to best understand how we could generate hydrogen, wse any oxygen
generated from hydrolysis and understand how our HGV fleet could be powered using hydrogen,
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OUR NATURE-RELATED DISCLOSURES

a5 stewards of 3 natural resource, we rely on and impact the natural environment, Water underpins
ecosystems, nourishes bicdiversity and continues to shape our natural environment. This means managing the
impacts, dependencies, risks and opportunities we have in relation to nature is not anly the right thing 1o do,
but fundamental to our business.

Being in a heavily-regulated industry also means there is 3 substantial overlap in our current reporting of
nature-related issues and voluntary nature-related disclosure standards such as TNFD (Taskforce on Mature-
related Financial Disclosures). In addition to the existing environmental reporting in this report, we are in the
process of preparning a nature-related disclosure, drawing insight from the TNFD recommendations and other
disclosure frameworks. We'll share more on this later this year and will continue to review and enhance our
nature-related reporting, as standards evolve.

Mavigate 1o the relevant sections of our AIR, across the following four pillars; Governance, Strategy, Risk and
impact management, Metrics and targets,

Governanoe

Page 92 Our management of nature uses a similar governance process to that of dimate, drawing on
many of the same povernance groups and principhes.

Page B4 We set out our stakeholder considerations and engagement in our Section 172 Statement.

Page BO Cur nature-related advocacy can be found within ‘National and local government' in our
stakehaolder section.

Page 87 Relevant policies, documents or reperts that govern our approach 1o Human Rights can be
found in our non-financial information statements.

Strategy

Page 44 We cover our broad impacts and dependences on nature in the Environment section of this
report.

Page 14 "‘Our year in context” sets out our response to key nature-refated dependencies and impacts
during the reporting year, including flooding, pollutions and spills and our key infrastructure
projects.

Page 110 The business’ key environmantal risks are summarised within our Princlpal risks under
‘Environment’,

Page 11 Mature contiderations are integrated into our Business Model and Strategic direction through

our six capitals approach to decision making.

Page 77 In this part of the report, we cover how we engage with our alliances and wider supply chain.

65



Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Risk and Impact Management

Page 101 As with our climate-related risks, our approach 1o identifying, assessing and managing nature-
refated risks is aligned and fully integrated within our overall risk strategy, as described in our
TCFD disclosure.

Page 105 The business' risk management approach is set out in rmore detail in the Risk Management
section of this report.

Metrics and targets

Page 37 Many of our performance commitments belp us assess and manage nature-refated impacts

and dependencies. These, along with information on how we monitor our progress and how
we have parformed against our targets during the reporting year, are detatled in ‘Delivering
our outcomes’

RISK MANAGEMENT
Managing risk in line with our strategy

Our management team, with oversight from the Anglian Water Services [AWS) Board, is responsible for
developing our strategy. Our strategic planning process aims to ensure we have developed clear objectives
and targets, and identified the actions needed to deliver on our commitmenis, including the management of
risi.

Risk management approach

We have an established Risk Management process in place with defined Principal Risk Areas and regularly
reviewed risk appetite statements which are reviewed regularly. Our top tier and business stream risks are
zligned to our Principal Risk areas and are enabled by our risk management procass and supporting acthvities.

Dwr risk management framework enables the identification, assessment and effective management of
business risks, both individually and In aggregation. The consequences and likelihood of these risks are
determined and ranked using a scoring matrix aligned to our risk appetite. This ensures that a consistent
approach is taken when assessing overall impact to Anglian Water and our customers,

Risk appetite

Risk appetite defines the opportunities and associated risks which Anglian Water is willing to accept in the
pursyit of achieving its strategic objectives. Thesa statements are used to drive rick-aware decision-making by
key busingss stakeholders,

We consider risks aligned 1o our Principal Risk Areas and strategic priorities. Underpinning each statement ic 2
series of Risk Appetite thresholds. These assist in providing 2 view as to whether we are operating within our
appetite, or whether additional risk mitigation may be reguired.

Anglian Water |s exposed to a variety of uncertainties that could have a material adverse effect or Impact on
our financial condition, our operational performance, our business resilience, and/or our reputation,
133
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We have a structured approach to risk assessment, with the Board reviewing and challenging management's
assesement of risk, together with the mitigation measures in place 1o manage principal risks in the context of
our obligations 1o keep employess safe and provide an essential and efficient service 1o customers, The
Board's assessment of risk determines what level of risk it is willing to accept, which helps senior management
to understand the mitigating activities required to control risk likelihood and impact to acceptable levels,

For principal risks, we réview the current risk level and how our controls provide confidence and assurance
around our management of that risk. Where a gap exists between our current position and our mitigated
aspiration, we instigate new or revised actions to close or reduce any risk gap. Peer review and discussion at
the Board or Management Board form the basis for establishing our overall principal risk status. There may be
occasions when a higher level of risk is acceptable, but this is only in cases where the risks are well understood
and can be demonstrably managed. The Board regularly reviews Anglian Water's internal controls and risk
management protestes T SUPPOTE its decision making.

Principal risks

The Board has a responslbility to disclose “significant fallings and weaknesses, or areas of concern that have
not been resolved by year end”. The Board's interpretation of this requirement is that there is 2 need to
disclose any control failure or omission that, if unchecked, has the potential 1o result in significant financial,
operational, or reputational damage 1o the business,

We carefully assess the principal risks facing us. These risks centre around the criticality of our infrastructure,
the importance of our customers and our people, climate change and the environment, health and safety in
our service delivery, cyber security, and our ability to finance our business appropriately, and are reported
regularty to the Board, as s&t out below,

In addition to the principal risks, we also actively manage several low-leve| business stream nisks which feed
inite our principal risks. Principal risks are assessed considening a combination of factors including emarging
risks and external threats,

We carry out horizan scanning annually to identify any emerging risks that may impact the business. The
scope, speed, impact, and interdependence of risks are growing and which is creating further complexity,
meaning we are also having to manage multiple events at a time.

The past year we have continued to experience unprecedented level of change and disruption, both in the LK
and globally. Anglian Water has faced significant challenges due to complex and interrelated issues, induding
global instability from engoing confiicts and increased tensions in the seas. Energy costs, although decreasing,
remain volatile, and the continued impacts from the ongoing cost-of-living crisis. Additionally, our region has
been affected by extreme weather events such as consistent high levels of rainfall. Our risk profile has changed
a5 3 result and in response to our evolving risk profile, we have implemented additional controls and
mitigating measures to address and stabilise our risk position.
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Current Predicted
Principal risk risk profile Trend Dutlook Business outcome
1. Customer proposition i — - Delighted customers
2. Erwwonment =] T = Flourishing environment
2, Water supply and quality = i e Safe, clean water
Our people; healthicr, happier,
=
4 Health and safoty B T o
5. People = - § Dipe -
Resilient business/inyesting
¥
6. Technology 5 > for e
Fair charges, fair returns/
7. Finance = — enie i ot Vet
&. Reputation . T‘ 1" Delighted customers
9. Asset infrastructure B e =y Investing for tomorrow
10. Business resiience = —> shede Resifient business
1. Commercial and third-party B — — Bugmess resilience
1Z. Strateqic cxecution [ ] i 3 inveating for tomommow
13 Legislanon - - > Resilient business
Risk profiles Risk movement
. High ek =5 Mochange

B veam s

]:I Medim = Low Rizk

B o

T Rk moreasing

L ik decreasing

Further details of the principal risks can be found in the Risk section of the Anglian Water strategic report
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Emerging risks

We define emerging risks 25 3 new risk, or a familiar risk in 3 new or unfamiliar context (re-emerging) which is
changing in nature, and where the likelihood and impact is not widely understood. These risks are more likely
to have & longer-term impact. However, there is potential for the velodty to significantly increase within a
shorter time frame and affect our performance. Anglian Water continually scans the horizon for emerging

risks,
Emerging risks
ENERGY COSTS

Consumers have seen a reduction in energy costs leading into 2024,
However the market remains volatile due to geopolitical tensions causing
disruption 10 supply chains, changes in demand and oil-price fluctuations.

Related PRA
Customer proposition

People
Financial
Business resilience

Commercial and third-

significantly increasing the risk of cyber-attacks and breaches from third
parties.

party
COST OF LIVING Custamer proposition
The UK continues 1o feel pressure from the increased costs of Iiving which is Pegile
putting significant strain on household wallets. Low-income families have
already been hit the hardest by increasing household bills and food prices Financial
and are the most likely to have seen both their financial dreumstances and S rabienica
their health deteriorate. Local cost pressures and supply challenges are not
sel to ease anytime soon with a lot of pressure still on the economy.
CYBER ATTACK Water guality and supply
Geopolitical instability has heightened the risk of cyber-attacks. Also, as Technologe
businesses move thelr data and infrastructure to the cloud and incraase
reliance on third-party software applications and service provides, they are Financial

Business resiienos

Commercial and third-

Ongoing, new conflicts and tensions in the oceans is adding further
pressures and disruption to supply chains.

party

CYBER ATTACK ON CRITICAL NATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE Technology

Geopolitical tensions are heightening the risk of large scale cyber-attacks. Finandal

The threat of attacks is heightened for critical national infrastructures such

as water supply systems, energy companies and transport networks, This Business resilience
| maybe direct or indirectly such as on a critical supplier,

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING People

According to ONS, there are over 2.8 million workers out of the labour force Ry

due 1o long tamn sickness which will mean employers will continue to face

challenges during 2024, The cost-of-living crisis may see employees Business resilience

struggling to manage the threat of finandal security and this could provoke

direct feelings of anxiety and worsening mental health,

DISRUPTIONS IN GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAINS Financial

Buziness resilience
Commercial and third-
party

63



Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Emerging risks Related PRA

CLIMATE ACTION FAILURE Environment
W.! face the reputational impact of not being seen to :nntrm_ute towards the Water quality Snd supply
mitigation of dimate change via achievement of net 2era emissions by 2030,
Finarcal
Strategic execution
CHEMICAL RESILIENCE Erwironment
The chemical mdustry has heer.s a major contributor to businesses and global Water quality and
trade prowth for decades. The industry has been hit hard by recent trade o
barriers, increased levels of protectionism and the COVID-19 pandemic.
With current global instability, the need for a resilient supply chain in the Business resilience
chemical industry has never been greater. Commmardal and third-
party
ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE/BIG DATA Water guality and supply
Drata is increasingly being used to provide meaningful insights for Technol
companies, to support key decision making. The fast-paced evolution of
generative Al tools, alongside the opportunities it brings, raises concems Strategic execution
around fack of transparency, over refiance, bias and diserimination,
vulnerability attacks, lack of human oversight, high cost and privacy
concerns, This, coupled with the diginal skills gap/shortage, increases the
risk.
EXTREME WEATHER Custamer propasition
Meteorologists warn extreme weather is set 1o continue in the UK and the EA AL
risk of failing to deal with the impact of extreme and/or unpredictable
weather events on our assets and infrastructuse is increasing. Finarcial
Asset infrastructure
Business resilience
SHORTAGE OF SKILLED WORKERS/DIGITAL SKILLS GAP Water guality and supply
There is currently a shortage of skilled workers at a time of high demand for p
: eople
labour. With the increasing use of technology, it is reportad that over the
next 10~ 20 years, 90% of all jobs will require some form of digital shill. Financial

Business resilience

themes such as ongaing on emerging conflicts, energy security, supply chain
disruptions, resource shortages, and a heightened risk of cybersecurity

Strategic execution
GEOPOLITICAL INSTABILITY Financial
Geopolitical shocks continue to impact globally in 2024 with overarching Business fesdience

Commercial and third-

increasing over the last 20 years and every year the risk increases further.

threats. The upooming elections, could create an uncertain political party
environment regarding future policies and regulations.

INFECTIOUS DISEASES People
Infectious diseases continues to be a giobal nsk. This risk has been Financial

Buziness restlience
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Emerging risks Related PRA
REGULATORY REFORM Environment
The upcoming elections and pozsibility of a different governmental

leadership, create uncertainty regarding future policies and regulations, i oot bnckaia
There is potential regulatory reform/changes to the number of regutators People
governing the water industry, of 3 merger. We could see the introduction of Financial
financial penalties for accountable individuals, bigger fines, or criminal

proceedings for falling to meeting regulatory requirements/expectations, Business resifience
AGING POPULATION Peopla
According to the health organisation, in the next 25 years, the number of finsndal

people ofder than 85 will double to 2.6 million. A rise in the elderly
population will place greater pressure on public finances, as 2 relatively Business resilience
smaller working-age population supports growing spending on heaith, social
care, and pensions. An aging population could lead to a shortage of workers
and push up wages, causing wage inflation.

GENDER AND ETHNICITY PAY GAP REPORTING

Gender pay gap reporting legisiation came into force in April 2017 and requires all UK employers with 250 or
mare employees 1o publish annual information (lustrating pay differences between male and female
employees, As such, all references below refer to Anglian Water Services Limited and it should be read in
conjunction with the full disclosure within the AWS Annual Integrated Repart.

Genger pay gap

We want everyone to feel included, regardless of their background. This applies to afl areas across our
inclusion agenda, not only gender.

As reported in detail [n our full Gender Pay Gap Report 2023, our workforce composition — as of April 2023 —

wiag 33.5% women, 66.3% men and 0.2% other. Our mean gender pay gap for the perfod was 6.5%, a reduction
of 3.0% from 2022, while our median gender pay gap was 14.0%, down 3.0% from 16.4% in 2022,

Although there has been improvement to our gender pay and bonus gaps in the [ast year, significant change
will only be possible once there is a substantial shift in gender balance at all levels of the busingss. As outlined
on page 166 of the Annual Integrated Report, we have 3 multi-stage, long-term plan to shift the balance
towards greater inclusion,

Steps we're taking steps to address our gender pay gap include;

= Setting annual and mid-term {to 2025} targets, to improve gender equity across the business.

= Ensuring pay and reward processes are transparent and free from bias. Our reward team monitors pay
according to gender, investigating any gaps in excess of 5%,

»  Working to address and eradicate bias at each stage of internal and external recruitment, including
advertising placement, imagery, wording of job deseriptions and gender compaosition of interview panels.

* Encouraging young wamen [0 apply for our apprenticeship and graduate programmes, through dedicated
outreach programmes and recrultment drives .
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s Ensuring we're an attractive employer for women and minority genders of all ages and stages. We offer
enhanced marernity and adophion leave, shared parental leave, paternity leave, flexible working and part-
time working, This i underpinned by a suite of supportive policies, such as pregnancy loss, transgender
and transition and domestic abuse policies. As a result of our efforts, we're seeing more women hired
across the business:

» In 2022/23, 20% of new hires were women, excesding our target of 36%.

v 38% of senior manager positions are now held by women, exceeding our target of 36%. This is an
improvement from our 35% baseline for both, when we first set targets in 2021.

o We've ssen an increasé (n the number of women employved in STEM-refated roles; 213 in 2023 {13%
in 2022).

Semor Leadership at Anglian Water

We have several key senior women on both our Anglian Water Board of Directors and Management Board.
Board of Directors in 2023/24:

= Five out of eleven are wornen (45%)

Management Board

s Fiveput of 12 are women (425)

This yesr, we welcomed to our Board Dr Ros Rivaz as the first female Chair of our Board.
Ethnicity pay gap

We published our second Ethnicity Pay Gap Report in April 2024 as part of our angoing commitment 1o
transparency and Improving the diversity of our employees,

Unlike gender pay gap reporting, ethnicity pay gap reporting is completed on a veluntary basis This year the
number of employees who self-reported their identity rose to 73% (2022; 70%) which gave us a slight increase
on the available reporting data. As a result, our data is increasingly representative of our actual ethnically-
diverse population, and more employees overall have been included In the reported figures. However, the
ethnicity of the remaining 27% of our employees is still outstanding and for this reason, we believe the actual
figures may differ.

This year, we have seen a slight increase in our reported pay gap figures compared to 2022, As this is only our
second reporting year, it is too early to say whether the fluctuation is related to the increased level of
recorded ethnicity, however this is something we will be monitoring in future years.

In calculating our ethnicity pay gap, we have used the same principles that are applied to statutory gender
pay gap reporting. The ethnlcity pay gap shows the difference in the average pay between people from
Ethnically Diverse Communities (EDC), which includes people who are Black, Asian and Mixed Race, compared
to White employees (including those that identify as White Other),
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Steps we're taking to close the ethnicty pay gap

We're working to bulld an organisation that s diverse and inclusive, with equality and representation at all
tevels. We're taking the following actions to improve the ethnic diversity In our workforce:

Actively recruiting for a diverse workforce and setting diversity hire targets,

Target Target for 2023 2023 End of AMPT
Outeame target (2025)

InErease Thie paroenTagy of T [rwatesesd o FOG hires by B % Ay the anicl of 2075 wi

new hEea from ethnecally in 20023 bringing the total number wont 20% of all new hires

diversecommunitos (FOGsl ot EDE hyes b 4% (in 2022 new o oe from EB S

ey [t Peflecl ilie vride Biites Tedon EDC was 9%

gemiogmphio of aur regian

Inereage the nurmber of Tov Incroade tha number of senior b% By theend of 20025

g posilions held by posibong held by ernployees Nom wie wahil B% ol senior

peapdes freem EDC2 feflecting. CDCE 10 4% (n 2022 3% ol talea pisikons held by

ot bronder amployes wiere hinld by eonplayess fraém emiplayees from FOCS

percantage {4.8%) EDCs)

In addition we are:

* Introducing independent voluntears to review and constructively challenge conscious and unconscious
bias anywhere in the recruitment process = from the writing of adverts all the way through to offer stage.

= Piloting mandatory Independent panel member on Interview panels, with the sole purposs of challenging
bias for the hiring of specific roles [rypically in operations).

o Changing the way we recrult graduatés and apprentices, focusing on the skills and behaviours that really
matier. We've also improved our in-person assessments to make sure they're fair and welcoming
environments where everyone can shine.

*  Working 1o address and eradicate bias at each stage of internal 2nd external recruitment, including
advertising placement, imagery, wording of job descriptions and gender composition of interview panels.

*  Directing hiring managers 1o undertake unconscious bias I!":'Iil'lil:‘lg as par of our Recruitrment and
Interviewing Skills training course.

=  Strongly recommending to hiring managers to make interview panels diverse.

o (Closely monitoring the ethnicity split at application as well 35 at various stages within the assessment and
selection pipeline {particutarty for early careers) to ensure we are attracting from as wide a talent pool as
possible.

= Publishing key policies on our careers website, including our matemity leave policy, flexible working
policy, shared parental leave policy and transgender and transition policy.

For more information please see our Ethnicity Pay Gap Report 2023,
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ANGLIAN WATER PERFROMANCE COMMITMENTS DASHBOARD

To measure our progress towards our 2020-2025 outcomes, we S8t targets as part of our business planning
process with our regulator Ofwat.

Known as Performance Commitments, these are summarised below, with information on how we monitor our
progress, how we've performed this year, and whether rewards or p=nalties are attached to each
commitment. Most common Performance Commitment Levels (PCL) are the same for companies whose
systems are mainly in England or in Wales.

This year is the fourth of our current five-year regulatory cycle [AMP7). While we've achieved strong
performance In many areas, we have not reached our targets across all PCLs, An explanation ks given in each
section, Dur net outcoms for 202324 |5 -E37.57 million. We received £4.58 million® in reward and £42.15
million® penalties.

Despite the many challenges we've faced this year, we've sean strong performance across a number of areas,
maost notably, CMeX, PSR and Water Quality Contacts. We've continued to invest in what matters most to our
customers, drinking water guality, alongside future-proofing water supplies to protect the environment;
creating our vast interconnecting network of pipelines through our Strategic Interconnector Grid, preparing for
two new resenvoirs and making progress to Get River Positive

Furthermare, we are making extensive use of new monitoring technologies to help us manage our assets and
asset performance. We are seeing sustainable improvements as a result. Hamnessing data on our performance

also gives us richer insights, enabling us to prevent potential issues, Greater insight is enabling us to make
mare effective interventions, with clear benefits to customers and the environment.

* Phease nose. 1he Total Boeliudated in 2007708 prces and Soes ned matth e im of ihe indhidus? Performinoe CommameaT rewinds andg penaites
dus o rounding
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Supply meets demand
What are we How are we measuring it? | Prior year Current Current Reward or
measuring? performance | year year penalty
(2022/23) performance | target outcome
(2023/24) (2023/24) | for
023/24
Leakage A percentage reduction in 6.2% B.i% 12.4% -£5.40
the amount of water lost to reduction reduction reduction million
leakage across the regon In (against a (againsta | [againsta
megalitres per day (Mi/d). 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
One megalitre is a million baseline) baseline baseling)
litres.
Per capita A percentage reduction in 2.5% 2.2% 4.5% nfa
consumption (PCC) | the averape water increase reduction | reduction
consumplion per household
per day for properties in our
regon.
Srnart metering The number of smart water 543,686 80&,307 8771114 nfa
delivery meters that are installed at
customer properties.
Internal The number of megalitres 6.501/d 8.9 MI/d 0 MiLd nfa
interconnector per day extra capacty
delivery delivered to ensure that
customers in the region
have sufficient water in the
future.
Elsham DPC nfa n/fa n/a nfa
(Underperfarmance)
Measures the progress in
implementing a direct
procurement for customers
process to support the
appointment of 2
Elsham DPC competitively appointed nfa n'a n/a nfa
{Outperformancea) provider o construct and
finance the Elsham
treatrmernt works and
transfer scheme,
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Leakage: This year we achieved an in-year leakage result of 182.1 megalitres a day which saw our lowest
three-year rolling average ever recorded (3 6.2% reduction from the 2017-2020 three-year baseline period). In
calculating our 2023/24, figures, we needed ta make an adjustment to our 2022/23 figures because of a minor
error in the coding we use 1o caleulate non-household consumption, This means weve Incurred an extra £1.9
million penalty for yvear three (2022/23). We have notified Ofwat, 2nd an adjustment has been made 1o our
penalty, which will be shared back with customers in next year's bills.

Per capita consumption: We achieved in-year performance of 132.0 fitres per person per day, a reduction of
over & litres a day, compared to 2022/23 (138 4). This reduction is underpinned by our large scale roll out of

SMAart meters.

Smart metering delivery: We have a target to install over 1 million smart meters by the end of this AMP. We
fitted 162,621 smart meters in 2023/24. This brings the total number of instaliations for the AMP to 806,307,
In June 2023 we were given funding to install a further 60,000 smart meters under Defra’s Accelerated
Infrastructure Defivery programme, Those smart meters are in addition 1o the numbers quoted above, We
plan to fit the additional 60,000 smart meters in 2024/25.

Internal interconnector delivery: Timeseales for the delivery of our Strategic Interconnector Grid, being
delivered by our Strategic Pipeline Alliance [SPA) are being rephased. A number of external factors have
worked against us: Covid-19, to the war in Ukraine, inflation, and more recently some of the wettest weather
on record, It will now be completed during the next AMP cyle, 2025-2030, rather than by the end of 2025, as
originally planned within the AMPT Performance Commitment. Delivery by the end of the current AMP was a
hugely ambitious timeframe for such a complex and important infrastructure programme.

Delighted customers
What are we | How are we Prior year Current year | Current year Reward or penalty
measuring? | measuring it? performance | performance | target outcome for
(202223) | (2023f24) | (2023/24) 2023/24

Customer Customer survey JB.E/100, 71.5, putting This iz a £0.86 milllien
Measure of | conducted for Ofwat | putting usin | usin 7 place omparative
Experience | called CmeX which 10™ place easure — we
{CrmeX) assesses the aim 1o perform

experence the in the top 25%

company provides of companies

10 residential (4" position or

CUSTOmETs, higher)
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What are we
measuring?

How are we

measuring it?

Prior year

performance
{2022/23)

Current year

performance
(2023/24)

Current year

target
(2023/24)

Reward or penalty
outcome for
2023/24

Developer
Measure of
Experience
{DmeX]}

Survey conducted
for Ofwat called
DmeX which
assesses the
expenence the
company provides
to developer
SETVICES CUstOmErs
who build new
hores.

£7.3/100,
putting us In
9" place

91.22, putting
us In 4™ place

Thisis a
comparalive
Megasre — We
aim to perform
in the top 25%
of companies
(4" position or
higher]

£2.15 million

Properties at
rizk of
persisient
low precsure

Mumber of
properties that are
affectad by
persistent low
pressure, Persistent
low water pressure
is an ongoing low

pressure problem
rather than short-
term low pressure
caused by & water
mains burst or
unususl peak in
demand for water,

B5

£0.54 million

Internal

SEWEr
flooding

The number of
times that
properties are
flooded internally
per 10,000
Custamer
connections 1o the
SEWer,

159

2,27

1.44

~E9 08 milfion
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What are we | How are we Prior year Current year | Current year Reward or penalty
measuring? | measuring it? performance | performance | target outcome for
(2022/23) (2023f24) (2023/24) 202324

External The number of 4,673 &,564 4,041 -£9.38 million
SEWEr times that
flooding properties are

flonded externally.
Non- This measure 86,7 81.3 780 nfa
household assesses the service
retailer provided by the
satisfaction | company to non-

houzehold retailers,
Water Average kength of 14m 355 9m 3s Sm 235 -4.30 million
supply supply interruptions
interruptions | per property (for

interruptions over 3

hiours).

Customer Measure of Experience (CmeX): We finished 7™ in the industry, and 57 in the Water and Sewerage
Companies table (Wa5Cs). We're one of only & small handful of companies bucking the trend and improving
our scores by sharing our stories around reducing pollutions and focusing on the environment.

Developer Measure of Experience [DmeX): With our improving gualitative score and our quantitative
performance contributing to our overall score, we ended the year in 4% place, our highest year end position
this AMP, The score & a3 significant improvement on 2022/23, jumping up Tive places and putting us in reward,
Qur success this year can be put down 1o collaboration across each of our workstreams, building new and
developing existing relationships, sharing best practice and technical experience with the customer at the

forefront.

Properties at risk of persistent low pressure: The number of reportable properties on the register is &5, This is
well within the PCL of 150 properties. During the year, 19 properties were added 1o the register and we

removed 7 properties as a result of capital works, such as instalfling a booster pump or switching the supphying
for a property to a different zone.

Internal and External Sewer flooding: Saturated ground and high ground water levels across our region has
meant that high vaolumes of excess raimwater was carried into already full-to-bursting rivers, ditches and
storage, resulting in widespread and prolonged intemal and external flooding. Throughout this year, we've
doubled the operations of our pumping stations compared 1o usual levels To manage excess rainwater, And, as
we head into the last year of this AMP, we have developed 3 new, multi-agency approach to prevent flooding

impacts,
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MNon-household retafler satisfaction: This year we have outperformed our Retailer Satisfaction commitment.
The metric s comprised of three parts. The first, the Retailer Net Promotor Score, 1S 2 64 point pasitive rating.
The second, Market Performance Standards, measures how quickly and accurately we update our data in the
Non Household Market, and we achieved a score of 37.45%. Finally, for Operational Performance Standards,
we achieved a score of 82.52%. This is our most challenging ares of performance, and we are focusing effores
to improve all metering related activities.

Water supply interruptions: Two significant events in October resulted in us being off target, with customers
being off water for an average time of 9 minutes B seconds. In October, Storm Babet brought heawvy rains and
flooding to parts of Suffolk and Norfolk. During Storm Babet, one event was a result of one of our assets being
flooded during the storm. Aside from these events, we maintained a steady service of supply to customers,
staying close to our Ofwat target throughout the year. We are committed to delfivering a good service for our
customers, and are investing in technology to monitor pressure on our network so we can pinpoint and reduce

risk.
Fair charges, fair returns
What arewe | How are we measuring it? | Prior year Current year | Current year | Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | target penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) outcome for
2023/24
Managing void | The percentage of 0.10 0.08 0.30 £1.04 million
properties properties that are falsely
identified as void
properties. This means that
they are occupied and
should be charged by the
COMmpany.
Value for A survey of customers by B1% agree | T agree | B2% apree n/a
money the Consumer Council for we we provide | we provide
Water about the value provide walue for good
for money provided by the value for maoney value for
Company. maney money

Managing void properties: This is the percentage of properties that are falsely identified as void properties.
This means that they are ocoupied and should be charged. The Ofwat target was 0.30% and we out-turned at
0.08%, resulting in an reward of £1 million. The performance shows the continuing impact of the considerable
wiork we put in to identify false voids. Activities in the year have included reviewing all properties void for
mare than four manths, reviewing water consumption data, sharing data with water only companies, using
bureau and land registry data, making doorstép visits and sending letters and emails.
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Value for money: We have scored highest in the industry for value for money for our sewerage serviee, with
78% of customers agreeing that they were “satisfied” or "very satisfied” when asked by Consumer Council for
Water about our services, We also scored highly for our water services with our score of 76% being only one
off the top score of 77% and ahead of the industry average of 89%. Dur weighted average score is T7%.
Despite the overall downward trend across the industry, we have maintained a strong position as we regularly
engage with customers on value for monsy,

Safe, clean water
What are we | How are we measuring it? | Prioryear | Currentyear | Current Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | year target | penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) | outcome for
2023/24

Water quality | This is the key measure used 252 157 0.000 -E1.63 million
(Compliance by the Drinking Water
Risk Index) Inspectorate to determine

aur overall compliance with

stringent regulatory drinking

waler standards.
Water guality | The number of complaints 101 0.86 0.85 -£0.03 million
contacts from customers about

water quality per thowsand

people served,
Event Risk This assessment looks at the 2.771 109.302 15.000 n/a
Index Company’s approach to risk

mitigation of water guality

EVEnts,

Water quality contacts: This year, we built on our best-ever ‘acceplability’ score, achieving 0.86, narrowdy
missing our 0.85 target, Acceptability scores are based on the number of customer contacts about the

appearance, taste or smell of their water per thousand people served. This remains our best performance to
date and is indicative of an improving trend over the past decade.

Compliance Risk Index: Compliance Risk Index: Our Compliance Risk Index (CRI} score demaonstrates how we
manage water guality. Our CRI score is 3.57. This is higher than our 2022 score of 2.83, and misses the Ofwat
target of 1.5, but, compares favourably to other water companies. CRI was impacted in 2023 by an increased
riumber of water quality exceedances from our storage points and water treatment works In comparison to
2022. We have instigated a programme that is aimed 1o reduce the number of water guality exceedances from
our assets. We comply with very strict regulations on drinking water quality, which means we report each of
these fallures to the DWI. We also carry out full investigations on each falling sample, Overall, 9.95% of our
samples passed this year,
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Event Risk Index: ERI scores consider the type of event, the population impacted and the duration of the
event. Our ERI score this year is 109 — while this did not meet Ofwat's target of 15, and is an increase from
our 2022 ER score of 2,77, it was below the median for the industry and the second lowest score for any of
the farge water and wastewater companies, The increase from 2022 was impacted by a singhe, short-lived
event assoclated with our Heigham Water Treatment Works In Norwich following hesvy rainfall. While all
water guality samiples were satisfactory, 3 number of customers noticed a very slight discolouration 1o their
water, particularly in their baths. As a result of this event, we have made changes 1o the way we abstract
water from the nearby River Wensum during heavy rainfall to ensure that the event doesn't happen again,

Resilient business
What are we | How are we measuring it? Prior year Currenl year | Current Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | year target | penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) outcome for
2023/24
Risk of severe | The percentage of properties 5.2% 5.2% 21.8% n/a
restrictions in | at risk of service restrictions in
drought the event of a 1-in-200-year
drought.
Risk of sewer | The percentage of properties 0.749% 0.75% 9,750 hfa
flooding ina | that we serve that are at risk
sTofm of sewer flooding during an
extreme wel weather event.
Percentage of | Percentage of population 22.3% 22.3% 20.0% £0
population served by a single supply
supplied by system. Our goal is to increase
single supply | the number of properties
systerm supplied by maore than one
water treabment works o that
if something goes wrong at
one works, our customers’
wiater suppiies are protected.
Cyber security | Percentage of risks mitigated Ongoing Ongoing 100% by rfa
against the cyber threat 1o 2025
operational technology (OT)
and to comply with the
network and information

systems (NIS) regulations.
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Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Risk of severe restrictions in drought: The percentage of the population we serve that would experience
severe supply restrictions during a drought Is 5.2%, based on 25-year prediction modelling, This result has not
changed from the previous year,

Risk of sewer flooding in a storm: This measure is based on modelling that predicts the likelihood of floading
im our network in a 1-in-50 year storm. Targeted investment on assers such as storm tanks and sustainable
drainage solutions helps to improve sewer capacity.

Percentage of population supplied by a single supply system: This measure is linked to the delivery of our
Strategic Interconnector Grid which, on completion, will provide more than B0% of customers with a dual
supply system. We have reprofiled delivery based on supply chain issues earlier in the AMP, with the project
now expected to complete in AMPS [2025-2030).

Cyber security: Our cyber security performance commitrment is not assessed until 2024/25. We have
conducted an estate-wide risk assessment across 388 Water Supply sites to determine areas of high risk, The
risk assessment has identified one water system containing 19 operational sites with a higher risk profile and
these sites are to be remedfated via our AMPT NIS Compliance Programme. The Compliance Programme’s
structure and governance have been implemeanted, with site surveys and dasign efforts focusing on the high-
risk sites currently in progress, We will deliver remediation to all high-risk sites by the end of AMPT,
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Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

A Smaller footprint
What are we | How are we measuring it? | Prior year Current year | Current Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | year target | penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) outcome for
2023/24
Operational Percentage reduction in B.0% -1.6% g% n/a
carbon carbon emissions from day-
ta-day operations compared
10 3 2019/20 baseline.
Capital carbon | Percentage reduction in B3.72% 64.7% B4.0% nfa
carbon emlssions from
CONSUrUCTION activity
rmeasured in tonnes of CO0;
equivalent comparad 10 3
2010 baseline,

Operational carbon: Our operational carbon target of 10% reduction is phased over the AMP. This year we
have increased by 1 6% against our targel. As'maore [arge consumers have chosen to procure renewables
directly, the proporticn of renewables remaining In the ‘residual’ grid mix for standard grid electricity has
declined. This increases the carbon emissions associated with all the grd electricity we consume that isn't
directly from renewables, It's important to emphasise that, while the emissions from standard grid electricity
Is outside of our control, we have increased our consumption from renewable energy from 25% 1o 28%. We
continue to switch 1o more renewables - with an aim to power 45% of our electricity requirement from

renewable sources by 2025.
Flourishing environment
What are we | How are we measuring it? | Prior year Current year | Current year | Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | target penalty
(2022(23) (2023/24) (2023/24) | outcome for
202324
Pallution Number of pollution 33.36 40.16* 22.40 -£7.90 millian
incidents incidents due to escapes
from our sewerage network
per 10,000 km of sewer
network.
Bathing Number of recognised 32 29 5 rfa
waters bathing waters in our region
attaining rated ‘Excellent’ (based on
‘Excellent’ standards set by the
status European Bathing Water
Directive).
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Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

What are we | How are we measuring it? | Prioryear | Current year | Current year | Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | target penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) [2023/24) putcome for
2023124
Abstraction &n incentive to reduce the 17 M 29 M 87 M =£01.0& million
Incentive water we take from
Mechanism semsitive rivers or wetlands
during very dry periods.
WINEP The progress of the 1349 1,533* 1577 -£0.62 millicn
Company in delivering its
WINEP agreed Water Industry Not met Nat met Met nfa
delivery Mational Enwvironment
Programme (WINEP)
schemes in a timely manner. |
Natural capital | This measures progress Fall Fail On track nfa
towards meeting
improvements in natural
capital within our region,
Regional This measures progress On track On track On track nfa
collaboration | towards the dovelopmant of
a regional approach to
assessing and considering
natural capital.
Sludge This measures progress 0= 0.0 100% by nfa
treatment towards delivering 2025
capacity additional sludge treatment
capacity,

Pollution incidents®: In 2023, we had 40 pollutions per 10,000km of sewer network. We are disappointed with
our performance as it does not reflect the hard work taking place across the business. The investment and
action taken in line with our Pollution Incident Reduction Plan are paying off: our lead measures on pollutions
and spills are showing improvements.

Bathing waters attaining ‘Excellent’ status: There are currently 51 designated bathing sites across the Anglian
Water region. In 2023, 30 of our bathing waters attained ‘Excelient’ status, compared to 32 in 2022. Four
beaches moved from Excellent to Good. We have investigated the reasons behind dedining water guality and
whe are working with Local Authorities and the Environment Ageney to better understand these reasons and
where future improvements can be made. Where bathing water quality has been impacted by spills from our
assets this year, a result of the prolonged wet weather, we will prioritise WINEP spill reduction schemes in
these areas to make iImprovements,

* Af the time of FrEporting, these figores &8 proviEional and awening confirmation from the Environment Agency and the Drinking

‘Water inspecTorate.




Osprey Holdco Limited
Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Water Industry National Environment Programme (WINEP): Since 2020, we have delivered 1,533 obligations
through WINEP. Our PCL is based on figures ariginally proposed in 2019, which have since been reprofiled.
Against the revised profile agreed for 2023/24 we missed three schemes, which, slthough physically deliversd,
did not pass Environment Agency inspections due 1o operational issues. These iksues have now been resolved.
Dur focus over the next twelve months i to conclude our WINEP obligations for AMPT. We will conclude
almaost 300 obligations, the majority of which relate 1o sustainable abstraction and reducing nutrients in the
water we retum to the environment.

Abstraction Incentive Mechanism: In 2023/24 we have had limited opportunities for active Abstraction

Incentive Mechanism management due to operational issues, owing to the high rainfall during 2023.

Sludge treatment capacity: We are enhanting our capacity to treat bioresources and have planned a scheme
to do 3o at Whitlingham Sludge Treatment Centre near Norwich. Desighs are cormplete and work has started

on site, The schame is scheduled to ba complete by March 2025,

Matural capital: The Natural Capital Impact PCL captures the improvemments we have miade through four sub-
measures, The ground water quality, surface water quality and blodiversity sub-measures are all on-track but
the water quantity sub-measure remains behind 1arget. This is due 1o the angoing impact of the Covid-1%

pandemic on demand. Al sub-measures must be on track o meet the PCL

Paositive impact on communities
What are we | How are we measuring it? Prior year Current year Current Reward
measuring? performance | performance year target | ar
(202223} (2023/24) (2023/24] | penalty
outcome
for
2023/24
Priority The percentage of customers | 11.4% reach 12.7% reach £.1% reach nfa
services for recorded as requiring pricrity | 62.4% actual | 56.2% actusl 35% actual
customers in | services due to baing contact pontact contact
vulnerable in vulnerable circumstances 100% 96.9% 0%
circumstances | and the percentage of people attempted attempted attermpted
contacted (o ensure contact contact contact
records are kept up to date.
Customers Percentage of customers 61.8% B3.4% B1.0% nfa
aware of the | made aware of our Pricrity
PsR Services Register (PSR}
and how they can benafit
from being on it
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What are we | How are we measuring it? Prior year Current year Current Reward
measuring? performance | performance year target | or
(2022/23) | (2023/24) (2023/24) | penalty
outcome
for
2023/24
Helping those | The number of customers who 344 483 389.371 296,618 nfa
strugglingto | are struggling 1o pay their
pay water bill and who receive
financial support through one
of the Company's financial
A Support schemes,
Community The percentage increase in 10.4% 81.4% 3.5% nfa
investment Community investment
programmeas through which
the Company adds socizl value
1o s communities (compared
o 2020/21).
Customer The improvement i Company 0.09 0.08 003 nfa
trust store for a survey of
customers by the Consumer
Council for Water about the
trust that customers place in
the Corrpany.
BSI Standard | To maintain certification for Maintained Maintained Maintained nfa
for Inclusive the British Standard for
service Inclusive Service Provision
{B5 18477).

Priority services for customers in vuinerable circumstances: We are significantly ahead of target on all areas
relating to our support for vulnerable customers, including, most notably, take-up of our Priority Services
Register, which has already met the full AMP target. 12.7% of customers are signed-up to the PSR against a
national average of 5-6%.

Customers aware of the PSR: This year we excesded our end of year performance with 63.4% of customars
aware of priority services compared 1o our target of 1%, This is a result of our extensive customer

engagement strategy and proactive signposting of priofty servioes.

Helping those struggling to pay: This year we exceeded our target of 296,618 by over 90,000, providing
finzncial support to 389,371 customers.

Community investment: This year there was a 81.4% increase in the number of people we directly reached or
supported through our community investment activities (compared to 2020/21) which add social value ta our
communities, We have exceeded our target of 3.5%. In total, an estimated 51,826 people were directly
reached or supported by Anglian Water and our Alliance partners.
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Customer Trust: Levels of customer trust in water companies fell in 2023, However, trust in Anglian Water was
higher than the average lor the industry, and we have cutperformmed this year's PCL.

Partnership working on pluvial and fluvial flood risk: This PCL encourages us to work with partner
organisations 1o protect our waste water treatment sites and water recycling network from plusal, fluvial and
coastal flooding. Our PCLis to complete 92 schemes by the end of 2024/25. We completed 12 schemes in
2023/24, which brings our total number of completed schemes for the AMP ta 61

BSI Standard for Inclusive Service: This year we have maintained our certification for incusive service by
achieving the more stretching international standard (1S0), which has replaced the British standard (BSI).

Investing for tomorrow
What arewe | How are we measuring it? | Prioryear | Current year | Current Reward or
measuring? performance | performance | year target | penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) | outcome for
2023/
Mains repatrs | Number of repairs made 1o 173.2 1230 134.2 £0
water mains per 1,000 km
of total water mains.
Unplanned Percentage of maximum 1.91% 2.05% 2.34% £0
oulage water treatment works
output unavailable during
the year.
Sewer Number of sewer collapses 5.19 543 5.50 £0
collapses per 1,000 km of sewers.
Traatrent Percentage of water and 98.6% 98.4%" 100% -£01.75 miillion
works sewage freatment works
compliance mieeting permits for the
guality of water discharged
1o the environment
Reactive Reactive bursts are those 5,140 3,444 3,063 rnfa
mains bursts | that are identifled and
reported by a customer or
third party before

they are identified by the
Company.

* At the time of raporting, thess figores sse provizioral and awaiting corfirmation from the Ervironment Agency and tha Drinking

Water Inspeciofate
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Mains repair and reactive mains bursts: We have improved our performance agamst this measure this year,

Sewer collapses: There were 308 sewer collapses in 2023/24 compared to 259 in 2022/23. This measure also
includes 114 reactive burst rising mains (which is a reduction compared to 2022/23). The total is 422 for
202324 which is divided by the total length of sewer reported for 2023,/24 {77, 7B0xkm), resulting in 3 rate of
5.43, This is an increase in total compared to 2022/23 . The decrease in burst rising mains in 2023/24 is due to
our proactive sewer monitoring alerts within our network, which inform us of rising mains that are operating
under higher than normal pressure and allow us reduce the pressure before they burst,

Treatment works compliance®: Our compliance was 98.5% in 2023 compared to 98.6% in 2022. This is
classified as Amber in the EPA. and continues to be a significant area of focus. in 2022 we had 12 failing works
and in 2023 we had 13, with prolonged wet weather putting pressure on our systems at the end of the year.

Unplanned outages: Our unplanned outage figure showed a small increase compared to 2022.33 (1.91%). Of
the 38 contributing events, three contributed over half the score. & number of capital investments have been
completed In that dme which will reduce the number of future outages,

*Ar the tims of reparting, thess figures 808 provisional and swaiting confrmation fram the Environment Agancy and the Deinking
Water Inspartorats.

Approval of the Strategic Report
This Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Claire Russell
Company Secretary
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2024

otes

4 Revenus
Other operating Income
5 Ctperating costs
DOperating costs before depreciation, amortisation and loss allowance for
expecied credit losses
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss allowance for expected credit losses
Total operating costs

Operating profit

EFi

Finance coste
] Finance income |, Including falr value gains on derivative financial instrurments

Net finance costs
Share of profit/{lozs) of joint wentures
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before fair value gains on derivative financial instruments®
& Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments
[Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations
T Ta charpe

[Loss)/profit for the year from confinuing operations

*As defined in note 29

Motes 1 1o 31 are an Integral part of these financial statements,

Yoar Yaar
ended Cal=

1 March il Marh
2024 123

£m Em
1,676.1 1549.6
15.8 180
[B48.1) {735.4]
[391.7) {38L7)
_Asn (302
(1,278.5) {1,147 3)
4134 4123
[6593.3) (B33 E)
2135 BR91
{419.8) {129.7)
2.4 10.4)
.'!‘M.H 'Eﬂ':r.il
[4.0) 2682
[7.1) [E4.5)
{11} 237
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Nates
Profit for the year

items that will not be reclassified to income statement
21 Actuarial loszes on retirement benefit surplus
7 Income tax on items that will not be reclassified

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement
23 [Losses)/gains on cash flow hedges recognised in equity
23 [Losses)/gzins on cost of hedge relationships
23 Gaing/Tlosses] on cash flow hedges transferred to income statement
Currency translabion differences
7 Income tax on items that may be reclassified

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of fax

Total comprehensive [expenselfincome for the year

ended
31 March
2024

(11.1)

[28.5)

L5

(21.4)

[36.5)
(2.7)
32.3
(0.4)

(5.4)

(26.8)

(37.9)

Yaar
ended

31 Masch
0713

£m

23T

{206 5)
{154.8)

78
18

(31.1)
0.7
0.2

(0.5
(155 3}

484
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group balance sheet
as at 31 March 2024

At At
31 March 31 March
2024 piifE
Motes Em £m
Mon-cuwrrent assats
10 Goodwill 4458 4458
11 DOther intangible assets 259.4 239.3
12 Property, plant and equipment 11,4169 10,7062
13 investment properties 3.4 36
14 Investmants in joint ventures 146 122
19 Derivative firancal Instruments 2331 1944
21 Retiremant bensfit surplus 63.9 BO.0
134371 117105
Current assets
Inventones 8.2 T8
15 Trade and ather recebvables BLTA goEqg
Investments - cash deposits 552.1 316.7
16 Cash and cash eguivalents 6054 5180
Dervative financial instruments 0.3 5.8
1,844.0 15172
Total assets 14,277.0 13,2217
Current Habilithes
17 Trade and other payables (738.1) {700 4}
Current tax liabilities {0.1) (0.1)
18 Borrowings [1,103.6) (L7130
19 Derivative finandal instruments [92.8) [53.4]
Prowisions (5.2) (53]
(1,939.8) {2,472.7)
Met current fiabilities {95.9) {955.5)
Momn-current liabilities
18 Borrowings [9,785.1) {8,058 8)
19 Dervative financial Instruments {796.5) {293 5]
20  Deferred tax liabilities (1,402.5) {1,405.0)
i | Retrement bensfit deficit [30.3) [31.0
Prowisions [5.3) (58
(120203)  (103362)
Total abilities (13.960.1)  (12,B58.3)
Met assets 3X.9 J5E R
Continwed on the next page
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Group balance sheet (continued)
as at 31 March 2024

Biotes
Capital and reserves
22 Share capital
Retained earmings

#3 Hedging resere

43 Cost of hedging reserve
Translation resenve
Total equity

Notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.

(0.4

J20.9

At
31 Marnch
022

Em

3015
58
178
17
10
358.8

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

ﬁnﬁ-.;-

Peter Simpson
Chief Exetutive

Company number 05915365

/l.d_-l L‘L"_‘i“_“y

Anthony Donnelly
Chief Financial Officer
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Company balance sheet

as at 31 March 2024

Meotes

12

18

18

Motes 1t 31 are an integral part af these financial scatements.
The Company’s loss for the year was £13.0 million {2023: profit of £96.4 million).

Mon-current assats
Other imeestmests

Current assets
Trade ard other recenvables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Dorrowings

Met current iakilities

Mon-current liahilities
Bowrrowings
Total liabilities

Met asseis

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Aetained earnings
Total equity

At AL

31 March 31 Marnch

2024 0213
Em £m
1,635.3 LEFE3
1.695.3 1673
0.5 0.7
103 17.5
10.8 183
1,706.1 185712
(1.6} (LE]
(598.0) (L0252
[549.6) {1,030.8)
[538.8) (1,0125)
(503.1)

{1,052.7) {1.030.8)
a53.4 &RiS 4
A0S LS
[ 3649
653.4 BEE.4

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2024 and signed on its behalf by

e S

Peter Simpson
Chief Executive
Company number. 05915869

Ash’l hﬁb

Anthony Donnedly
Chief Financial Officer
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Osprey Holdco Limited

Group statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2024

At 1 Agril 2022

profit for the year

Cither comprehensive
income/[expense)

Aciugrial kosses on retirement
benefit surphes

income t3x charge on it=ms that
will not be reclassified

Gains on cash flow hedges
Loszss on oot of hedps
reiationships

Amounts on hedging ressrves
transferred to incoms statement
Deferred tax movement on
hedging reserves

Currency translation aifferences

Total comprehensive
income/{expense)

Dividends
&b 31 March 2023

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive
(Expenas])/income

&ctuarizl kosses on retirement
benefit surplus

Income tax Charge on items that
will not be reclassified

Losses on cash fiow hedges
Losses on oo of

Amounts on hecging resenves
transfermed to income statement
Deferred tax movement on
hedging reserves

Currency transkation differences

Totzl comprehensive expense

At 31 March 2024

Cost of

Srated Rarsined Hedging Feoging Trensliation Tous!
captal SRITHANES rEEEnE TEERNYE TEEENE aquety
_Em Em Em Em B _Em
3015 TB.7 04 0.3 13 402.2
= 037 = = 203.7
[206.5) [206.5)

517 - - - 517

275 278

- - - 18 - 1.8

= 3 {31.1) + 2 31.1)

- - LB 102 - 0.2
- z = 0.7 0.7

{154.8] {26 14 0.7 [155.3)

4E9 {2.6] 14 o7 48.4

- (91.5) - : - ng)
3015 358 178 17 20 358.8
G (11.1) % > {11.1)
(28.5] {28.5)

71 - = - T4

{36.5] - {36.5)

= = = {2.7) = 27

= = 323 = = 32.3

13 LG - 118

= = 2 = io2) (0.49)
{21.4) {23) {2.1) (0.4) ({26.8)

- {32.5] (28] 12.1) (0.4} 37.9)
3015 3.3 14.9 (0.4) 1.6 320.9



Osprey Holdco Limited

Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2024

At 1 April 2022

Prafit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Dividends

At 31 March 2023

At 1 April 2023

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive expense

A 31 March 2024

Stated Retained Total
capial ERTINEE BTy
Em Em Em
IS 3003 o618
BE4 96,4

96.4 6.4

(91.8) [91.8)

3015 3649 666 ¢
3015 3649 665 4
{(13.0} {13.0}

(13.0} (13.0}

3015 3513 653.4
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Aigrette Financing Limited

Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Group_ Company
Year Yaar Yaar Yaar
ended anded ended snded
31 March 31 March 31 March 33 March
2004 priPE 2004 2023
Motes £m £m £en £m
Dperating activities
Operating profit/{loss) 413.4 3183 [0.4) (0.5
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amartisation 351.7 3BLT - -
Assets adopted for Enil consideration (48.2) (45.0) s
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment [L5] (3.9) - .
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions [3.6] (2B 0.3 -
Net movement in provisions [L.8) 15 . .
Working capital:
Increass In inventories {0.4) [4.0) - -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (65.5) (46.1) 0.2
Increase in trade and ather payables™ 50,6 93 . -
Cash generated from operations 7437 7025 0.1 [ﬂ.ﬁ
Income taxes paid [0.6] o) (o4} -
Net cach flows from//{used in) operating activities 7431 7019 {0.3) (0.5]
Investing activities
Repayment of loans by subsidiasies . . 18.6 13
Purchase of shares in subsidiaries - - [36.0) -
Repaymant of loans joint ventures i3 144 -
Purchase of praperty, plant and eguipment {943.3) [SBE.5) -
Purchase of intangible assets 151.5) [75.8] -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.9 44 - .
interest received 54.9 M1 3.0 18
[Increase}/decrease in investments — cash deposits [235.4] 1140 = .
Dividends received from subsidiaries - - 31LE 1200
Net cash jused in)/from investing activities [1,172.1) [507.4) 18.4 1237
Financing activities
Interest paid |340.6) (3005) [25.4) (25.4)
Debt issue costs paid {16.8) [2.4) z z
Interest paid on leases [L1] [D.E] *
Procesds from amounts bormowed 14210 11173 -
Repayment of amounts borrowed {527.5) {1,005.8) =
Repayment of principal on derivatives {11.5] - -
Repaymenk of principal on leases {7.00 [B.4] . .
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - s - fm)
Net cash from|used in) financing activities 5164 (280.9) [25.4) (117.2)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents B7.4 (95.4) [7.3) 60
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 51B.0 g11.4 17.6 115
16 Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 6054 5180 03 176

Exciuding mavement in capital creditors which is presented in investing activities

96



Osprey Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the Year ended 31 March 2024

b

b)

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. Unless otherwice stated, these policies have bean consistently applied to all of the years
presented and are applicable to both Group and Company,

Basis of accounting

The Group and company finandal statements have been prepared (in accordance with section 474(1) of
the Companies Act 2006) under international accounting standards which are sdopted for use within
the United Kingdom by virtue of Chapter 2 or 3 of Part 2 of the International Accounting Standards and
European Public Limited-Liability Company (Amendment etc.} (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
tesued by the 1ASE the Company financial statements have been prepared in accordanee with UK
adopted international accounting standards and as applied In actordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, The finandal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as madified by finandal assets and finandial lizbilities (induding derivative instruments) a1 fair value
throwgh profit and loss.

The prepgaration of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actusl results
may ultimately differ from those estimates,

Adjusted prafit before tax excludes the fair value gains and losses arising on derivative financal
instrumeants and energy derivatives that the Group holds 25 economic hedges, These introduce volatility
into the accounts due to the present value of future cash flows, which management believes is not
representative of the underlying operational performance of the business. Altemative performance
measures are defined in note 29,

Basis of preparation

The Group and Company financial statements comprise a consolidation of the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings at 31 March. The results of companies acauired or
disposed of are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition or to the effective date of disposal,
Inter-company sales and profit are eliminated fully on consolidation.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acguisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
summ of the fair values, as at the acquisition date, of assets transferred by the Group and liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acguires in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
fair value, as at the acquisition date, and included as part of the consideration transferred in abusiness
combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that gualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with correspending adjustments against goodwill,
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Osprey Holdco Limited

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

1.
b

Accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additienal information obtained
during the ‘measurement period” [which cannot exceed one year from the acguisition date] about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acaquisition date,

¥When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously-held interests in the
acquired entity is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, i any, s
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss,
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Going concern

The Directors have undertaken a detailed review to assess the liquidity requirements of the Group
compared against the cash and barrowing facifities available to the Group, as detailed betow.

Given the relative size and importance of Anglian Water Services Limited [AWS) to the Group, the
assessment initially focused on the going concern of AWS and is then updated to include wider Group
considerations, including the Anglian Venture Holdings businesses and its ability to support the Wave
|oint wenture if required.

The Directors have considered the potential impacts of the current market volatility and uncertainties
within the sector in relation to proposed PR24 Business Plan to Ofwat, and on-going Investigations.

The base forecast, which has been updated for the latest interrial and external information has been

subjected tora range of severe but plausible downside scenarios as noted below. These farecasts include
the additional £350 million Totex over and above what was allowed by Ofwat.

Anglian Water Services Limited has a single debt platform (sometirnes known as a “common terms” or
“CTA" debt platform) that has been structured so as to align with, and enhance, the regulatory
protections contained in the Water industry Act 1991 and Anglian Water's Licenca |an "Aligned Debt
Programme” ). Alignad Debt Programmes operate on & single covenant package and shared security and
Intercreditor arrangement that binds all debt providers.

In addition, Osprey Aoguisitions Lirmdted also has a common terms debt platform similar to that at
Anglian Water Services Limited and operates 3 single set of covenants that applies to all debt raised at
this level of the Group.

The CTA introduces two terms, a Trigger Event and an Event of Default. The intention of a Trigger Event
i that it is an early warning event designed to reinforce credit worthiness and to protect the Company
and its finance creditors from an Event of Default ocournng and consequently it is not considered to be a
EDing concern event. |t does not enable creditors to destabilise the Company through enforcing their
SECUrity.

We have identified three stretching scenarios to stress test our base forecast. These scenarios, low,
rmedium and severs facus on the impact of the cost-of-living crisis and higher unemployment, the
impacts of lower inflation and higher interest rates, as well as specific risks 1o the business, such as
cyber-attacks or increased costs/reduced revenue due to adverse weather events,

a8



Osprey Holdco Limited

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

i
b

Accounting policies [continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

In assessing Going Concern the Directors have considered a number of perspectives, including liguidity
and debt covenants and tested these against both the base scenarnio and the three downside scenarios.

& Liguidity = the Group holds sufficient liquidity to cover the going concern period even under the
most severs downside scenario. There i@ no requirement for the business to raise further debt
in the period and therefore the volatile market conditions have limited impact.

= [Debt covenants — The business has significant headroom against Default Events (where EBITDA
to et inberest cover ratio is less than 2.0x or where net debt to RCV rafio is less than 95 per
centiunder its securitised covenants with no plausible scenario identified that would cause an
Event of Default. Whilst undesirable, a Trigger Event would not impact on the going concerm
assumption for the reasons noted below.
While certain worst-case scenarios indicate the potential for a Trigger Event, the Directors da not
consider this possibility to constitute a material uncertainty related to going concern. As noted, a Trigger
Event is not considered a going concern event and whilst it would result in dividend lock-up and prevent
the business from raising new debt we have sufficient liquidity during the going concern period in this
event even when including planned debt repayrments,

In Oetober the business submitted its PR24 Business Plan for consideration by Ofwar Whilst this falls
outside of the going concern period it IS worth noting that the plan submitted s financeable and
financially resillent 1o downside stress tests performed.

In addition to the impact of current volatitity in debt markets on interest rates the Directors have
considerad the ability of the Company (o raise debt and note that there s no requirsment 1o do so in
the Going Concern period.

Based on the above, the Directors believe that the business has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
a5 they fall due.

For these reasons, the Directors believe it appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

New Standards, amendments and interpretations effective or adopted for the first time this period

The Group has not early adopted any standard, interpretation of amendment that has been issued but s
ot yer effective

Foreign currencies

The Group's consalidated financial stalements are presented in British pound sterling, which is also the
parent company's functional currency. Individual transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into local currency at the actual exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into lecal currency at
the rates ruling at the balance theet date. Profits and losses on both individual foreign currency
transactions during the period and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the income
statement except for transactions where hedge accounting has been applied in accordance with IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments’.
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t)

d)

Accounting policies [continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On consolidation, the income statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period and the balance sheets at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The exchange differences arising as a result of translating income statements at average rates and
restating opening net assets at closing rates are taken to the transiation reserve.

Segmental reporting

Operating ségments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, whao is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors,

Revenue recognition

Revenue i recognised to reflect the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
SBMVIDes,

Principal source of income

The Group's principal source of income is from customers in respect of the provision of water and water
recycling services within Anglian Water, the Group's regulated water and sewerage company, at a price
determined annually by its reguiatory tariffs.

The majority of Anglian Water's household customers have meters, but there are a significant number
whao are not metered. This is relevant to how the Group recognises the income over the year, since the
unmeasured customers are hilled at a flat rate bazed on the rateable value of the property, which
reflects their right to an ongoing supply of water, while measured customers are billed in line with thair
usage, which tends to be seasonal,

Linder IFRS 15, the performance obligation for measured customers has been assessed as the provision
of water and sewerage services, and the performance obligation is met as water & supplied to the
praperty, Accordingly, Tor the variable element, revenue is recognised as water is supplied, based on
wolumes supplied at the relevant reporting date.

Related non-wolumetrc, or standing, charges reflect our obligation to stand-ready to deliver water, as is
the case with unmeasured supply (see below), and is accounted for accordingly.

In respect of unmeasured customers, the performance obligation has been assessed as standing ready
to provide water and sewsarage services when required by our customers, and accordingly revenue kg
recognised under IFRS 15 as the stand-ready obligation is fulfilled over tima, Accordingly, revenue from
unmeasured customers s recognised on a time basis under IFRS 15.

Mon-household revence is charged and recognised on the basic of valumes supplied, bated on data
submitted by the market operator,
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e)

Accounting policies [continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Secondary source of income

A secondary source of income far Anglian Water is from grants and contributions in respect of new
connections for water and/or sewerage services, Judgement & reguired when applying IFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’ in determining the customer and the performance obfigations to that
customer. Spedfically, judgement is required as to whether the income is in relation to the provision of
the connection to the Group's infrastructure, allowing the completion of the construction of the
praperty and it to be approved for sale, or to facilitate the ongoing provision of water and wastewater
services to the properties in guestion. Please see note 2 for further detaiis.

The significant components of grants and contributions, and their treatment, are as follows.

i New connection charges
The Group considers the performance obligation to be satisfied on making the connection. Incomse
for new connection charges is therefore recognised as the connection is completed.

i Seif-lay, requisitions and odoption fees
Revenue recognition is consistent with new connéction charges {see (i) above).

i Fair value of assets odopted for Enil consideration
These are principally sewers and pumiping stations that a developer has constructed and then
contributed to the Group, on a £nil consideration basis, in exchange for being relieved of any future
liability. income is recognised on adoption based on the fair value of the asset adopted.

v Infrastructure charges
Infrastructure charges are a developer’s contribution to fund network reinforcement by the Group.
While these charges are a contribution to reinforcement of the network, they have to be paid by the
developer as a condition of obtaining connection to the network and, as such, the Group's
performance obligation Is satisfied by making the connection, As such, the income & recognised as
the connection i made.

v Diversions
Diversions arise where 3 highways agency, or other authority, reimburses the Group for the majority
of the costs incurred in diverting assets that represent an obstruction 1o the construction or upgrade
of roads and ralbway lings, There & no performance obligation to the agency/authority beyond
completing the diversion, therefore income s recognised immediately on complethan.

Non-appointed octivities

The Group also provides additional sendces which are notl categorised as a regulatory appointed
activity. These relate to non-water [ wastewater services and for use of land for water supply
beyond duties imposed by regulation. Activities largely relate 1o the provision of property searches,
referrals for connecting customers o insurance providers, processing of septic tank waste from
households not connected 1o main sewers and from the use of our reservoirs for recreational
activity. Revenue s recognised in fine with the delivery of each performance obligation which is at a
point in time as there is no ongoing cbligation past the transaction date.
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e)

h)

Accounting policies [continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Other sources of revenue

i Other operating income
The principal sources of other operating income are from the generation of power, the sale of
biosolids to farms, rents received and other minor income assocdated with operating activities.

i Service controcts
Revenue from service contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion, as measured
by reference to services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

ili  Property development
Revenue from sake of development properties, which are not held for the long-term, is recorded
when a legally binding contract for the sabe of the development has been entered into and legal
completion has taken place before the period-end, Ravenue includes sales of directly held work in
progress and interests in special purpose subsidiaries and joint ventures if the substance of the
transaction is the sale of the underlying property.

Research and development

Research expenditure is charged to profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
refating to development projects is capitalised as equipment or intangible assets and is written off over
the expected usaful fife of the asset,

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are one-off items that individually or, it of a similar type, in aggregate need to be
disclozed by virtue of their size or nature to enable a reader of the financial statements 1o understand
the rezults for a particular period.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging operational expenses but before finance income and finance
costs.

Taxation

Current income tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be
paid {or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the lizbility method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
staternents. The deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
ar liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates enacted
or substantislly enacted by the balance sheet date and that are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset k& realised or the deferred income tax liability ks setthed.
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i)

il

Accounting policies [continued)
Taxation [continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaitable to allow ail or part of the asset to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
Induded in the accounting for the business combination.

Bividend

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved or committed. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity,

Intangible assets

i Goodwill
On the acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking, or business combination, fair values are attributed to
the net identifiable assets or liabilities acquired. Goodwill represents the difference between the fair
value of the purchase consideration and the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

il Right to-operate intangrble assets
The ‘right to operate’ intangible assets arose on acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking, representing
the fair value of the contracts acquired, and are shown at cost less subsequent amortisation and any
Impairment. Amortisation is calcuiated on a straight line basis over the length of the individual
contracts to which the intangible assets relate,

i Other intangible assers
Other intangible assets reprecent computer software and internally generated assets which mainly
coimprise capltalized development expenditure.

Other intangible assets are shown at cost less subsequent amortisation and any Impairment.
Amortisation of intangible assets ks caleulated on a straight-line basls over their estimated useful
Itves, which are primarily three to 10 years.
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k} Intangible assets [continued)
Software-as-a-Service [Saas) arrangements

Sa3a% arrangements are service contracts providing the Group with the right 1o 3ccess the coud
pravider's application software over the contract period. Costs incurred to configure or customise, and

the ongoing Tees to obtain access to the cloud provider's application software, are recognised as
operating expenses when the services are received.

Some of the costs incurred relate to the development of software code that enhances or modifies, or
creates additional capability to, existing on-premise systems and meets the definition of, and the

recognition criteria for, 8n intangible asset.

These costs 2re recognised as intangible software assets and amaortised over the useful life of the
software on a straight-line basis. The useful lives of these assets are reviewed at least at the end of each
financial year, and any change accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

[} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment comprises.

* Land and buildings — comprising land and non-operational buildings;

»  |nfrastructure assets — comprising a network of systems consisting of maing and sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage reservolrs, sludge pipelines and sea outfall;

» Dperational assets — comprising structures at sites used for water and wastewater treatment,
pumpling or storage, where not classed as infrastructure, along with associated fied plant;

» \ehicles, mobile plant and equipment;

= Ascels under construction.

Al property, plant and equipment is shown at cost less subsequent deprediation and any impairment.
Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the items.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
ppensed.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, anly when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the iterm can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs

are charged 1o the income statement 36 incurred,
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1.  Accounting policies {continued)
il Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Freehold land is not depreciated, nor are assets in the course of construction untll commissioned.
Depreciation of other assets is calculated at rates expected to write off the cost less the estimated
residual vatue of the relevant assets on a straight-fine basis over their estimated useful lives, which are
primarily as follows:
Mon-operational buildings 15 = 80 years
Infrastructure assets — water 50 =120 years
Infrastructure assets — water recycling 50— 160 years
Operational assets 30— 80 years
Fieed plant, intluding meters 12 =40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and equipment 3-=-10years
Items of property, plant and equipment that have no further operational use are treated as having been
decommissioned and are written off immediately to profit or loss. In addition, property, plant and
equipment is assessad for impaiment, in accordance with 1AS 36 ‘impairment of Assets’, if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
mj Investment properties
Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, buildings are depreciated over thair
useiul life and land is hald at cost and not depreciated.
n) Leased assets

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises 3 right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements
i wihiich it & the lessee, except for short-terr leases (defined ac leases with a lease term of 12 months
or hess) and leases of low value assets (defined as leases for individual assets with a value of less than
£5,000].

For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis ks more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benafits from the leated assets are consurmed.

The lease Habllity is Initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not pald at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental barrowing rate.

The lease lability is subsequently measured by increating the carning amount o reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective nterest method) and by reducing the carrying amount 1o reflact the
lease payments made.
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Accounting policies [continued)
Leased assets (continued)

The Group remeasures the lease Hability {and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use aszet) whenever:

»  thelease term has changed or there i8 3 change in the assessment of the probability in exercise of
& purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised distcount rate;

+ the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate, or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed résidual value, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is dug
1o a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used),

* 3 lease contract s modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as 3 separate lease, in
which case the lease lizbility is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

The Group recognisse right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1.e,, the date The
underlying asset is availabie for use, Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulatzd
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease fiabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are deprecisted on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets,

Investments
Subsidiories
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment, if there

are any indications that the carmying value may not be recoverable. Investments in subsidiaries are
eliminated on consolidation for the Group finandal statements.

Joint ventures
loint ventures are thoss entities over whose activities the Group has the ability 1o exercise joint control,

established by contractual agresment. The Group’s interests in jointly controlled enterprises are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the total recognised income and
expense of the jointly contralled enterprises on an equity accounting basis, from the date that joint
control commences until the date that joint control ceases.

To the extent that joint ventures have net fiabilities and a contractual commitment exists for the Group
to settle those net liabilities, the ageregate amount is added back to investments and offset firstly
against boans and trading balances with the joint venture, with any excess transferred to provisions,
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Accounting policies [continued)
Investments (continued)

Investments = cash depaosits

P

After initial recognition a1 fair value, financial investments are held at amortised cost. This is based on
the business' practice of acquiring financial assets to collect thelr contractual cash flows and the simple
nature of the investments made, which consist solely of principle payments and interest on the principle
outstanding.

Inventories

Raw materials are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage and obsolescence,
Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group balance shest when the Group becomes &
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are classified as at fair value
through profit and loss; fair value through other comprehensive income or amortised cost depending on
the Group's intertion in regard to the collection of contractual cash flows (or sale) and whether the

financial assets cash flows relate solely to the payment of principal and interest on principal
cutstanding.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model reguires the Group to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial assets; therefore, this is no longer dependent on the Group first
identifying a credit loss event. This requires consideration of a broader range of information when
aszessing credit risk and measuring expected credit fosses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of
the instrurment.

In applying this ferward-fooking approach; a distinction is made between:

s where credit risk is low or has not increased significantly since recognition ('Stage 1');

s where it has inoreased significantly since initial recognition (“Stage 2°); and

»  where the financial asset is credit impaired (Stage 3).
"12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for Stage 1 while “lifetime expected credit losses’ are
recognised for Stage 2,

Expected credit losses are defined as the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risk of
default oceurring as the weights,

A loss allowarce for full ifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial

Instrurments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12.month ECL
The Group manages credit risk exposures through a comprehensive counterparty credit risk policy. See
the financial instruments disclosures for further details,
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Accounting policies [continued)

r) Trade receivables

Trade recefvables are initially recognised at their transaction price.

The Group makes use of 2 simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records
the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the trade receivable.

In calculating the expected loss, the Group applies expected recovery rates, based on actual historical
cash performance and forward-looking information,

The Group assesses impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis and where they possess shared
credit risk characteristics they have been grouped; these groups are residential, non-household and
developer services, and other customers,

In particular, existing or forecast adverse changes in financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debl obligations 15 taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Debt is only written off after all available ecomomic options for collecting the debt have been exhausted
and the debt has been deemed to be uncollectable or is subject to a settlement agreement or
forgiveneas scheme. This may be because it is, unrealistic, impractical, inefficient or uneconomic to
collect the debt.

Situations where this may arise and where debt may be written off are as follows:

*  Where the customer has absconded and attempts to trace the customers whereabouts prove
unsuccessful;

» Where the customer has died without leaving an estate or has left an insufficient estate on which to
lesvy execution;

*  ‘Where the debt is subject to insolvency proceedings and there are insufficient funds to settle the
debt;

*  Where the value and/or age of debt make it uneconomic to pursue;

= Where debt becomes statute barred,

We algo write off debts following a settlement arrangement on an outstanding balance and for eligible
custorners on our debt forghveness scheme (Back on Track) as part of payment matching.

Debt that is still subject to enforcement activity is not written off unless it becomes uneconomic to
pUrSUS.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months or les,
and outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other short-term deposits with a tenor of more than three months are classified as investmants - cash
deposits.
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Accounting policies [continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs. Trade payables are non-interést bearing and are normally settled at the end of the following

month. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid
within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incumred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction ¢osts)

and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative instrumaents are used for hedging purposes in line with the Group's risk management policy
and no speculative trading in financial instruments is undertaken.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently re-measured at fair value. The method

of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a
negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financial
statements unless the Group has both a legally enforceable right and intention to offset. The impact of
the master netting agreements on the Group’s financial position is disclosed in note 19. A dernvative is
presented as a non-current asset or a non-current [ability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is
mare than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or seftled within 12 months. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities,

The Group designates certain derivatives as either a fair value or cash flow hedge in accordance with
IFRS 9 ‘Finandial Instruments’. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
refadionship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with how the hadge aligns
with the Group’s risk management strategy. Furthermors, at the Inception of the hedge and on an
gngaing basts, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes
I the fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged ritk, which 15 when the
hedging relationships mest all of the following hedge effectivenass requirements.

» there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

» the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

* the hegge ratio of the hedging relationship s the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Group actually uses 1o hedge that quantity of hedged item,
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v)

Accounting policies [continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The Group rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comply with the hedge ratio requirements
when necessary. In such cases discontinuation may apply to only part of the hedging relationship. For
example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such a way that some of the volume of the hedged item is
no longer part of a hedging relationship, hence hedge accounting & discontinued only for the volume of
the hedged item that is no longer part of the hedging relationship.

In some hedge relationships, the Group excludes, from the designation, the currency basis spread of
cross currency hedging instruments. In such cases, the fair value change of the currency basis element of
the cross currency interest rate swap is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the cost of hedging resarve, and reclassified from equity to profit or lost on a straight-line basis over the

terri of the hedging relationship. The treatment for the currency basis element is optional and the
aption is applied on an individual hedge relationship basis.

Embedded derivatives

An ambedded derivative is a component of a hybrid contract that alsa includes a non-derivative host
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with a financial asset host within the scopeof IFRS 9 are not
separated, The entire Fybrid contract 12 classified and subsequently measured as either amortised oost
or fair value as appropriate.

Derivathves ermbedded in hybrid contracts with hosts that are not financial assets within the scope of
IFRS @ (e g. financial liabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of 3
derivative, thelr risks and charactenistics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPLL

If the hybrid contract & a quoted financal Babtlity, Instead of separating the embedded derivative, the
Group generally designates the whole hybrid contract at FVTPL

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or non-current liability if the remaining

maturity of the hybrid instrument 10 which the embedded derivative relates s more than 12 months
and i not expectad to be realised or settled within 12 months,

| Fair value hedge
Changes In the falr value of derivatives decignated and qualifying as fair value hedges are recorded
In the Income statement within “fair value gains/(bosses) on derivative financial instruments’,
together with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or Bability attributable to the hedged
risk.
If 3 fair value hedge is discontinued, the hedged item is not adjusted for any subsequent movements
in the hedged risk. The cumulative amount of fair value adjustment on the hedge item at the point

of discontinuation is then amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the original hedge
based on a recalculated effective interest rate.
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1.  Accounting policies {continued)
v) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamaortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or Hability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or boss,

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and gualifying a3 cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedge
reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement within ‘fair value gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the
hedged item will affect profit or loss (for example, in the periods when interest income or expense is
recognised, or when the forecast hedged cost takes place).

When a cash flow hedge is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to oceur, the cumulative gain
of loss that was reported in equity is immeadiately transferred to the Income statement.

The group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging refationship (or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebatancing, if applicable). This includes instances when
the hedging instrument expires or i€ sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is acoounted

for procpectiieky.

Derivatives that de not qualify for hedge ocrounting

Certain derivative instruments, princpally index-linked swaps, do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Such derbvatives are classified at fair value through profit and loss, and changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

w) Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. If the effect of time value of money I material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at 2 pre-tax rate that reflects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, When discounting
I5 wsed the Increase in the provision due to the passage of time (s recognised as a finance cost.

Regarding onerous lease costs, @ provision is made for the expected future costs associaled to property
and other leases, not Included in the calculation of the ROU asset, 1o the extent that these costs are no
pxpecied 1o be of future benefit to the business, net of any recoveries from sub-leases,
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1.  Accounting policies {continued)
x) Retirement benefit obligations

i Defined benefit schemes
For defined benefit schemes, pension scheme azsets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at the
current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
|iabilities. The current service cost, which is the increase in the present value of the liabilities of the
Group's defined benefit pension schemes expected lo arise from employes service in the period, is
charged to operating costs.

The net interest on the schemes’ net assets/(liabilities) is included in other finance charges. Actuarial
gains and losses are recoghised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, or deficits, are
recognised in full and presented on the face of the balance sheet.

i Defined contribution schemes
The: cost of defined contribution schemes is charged to the income statement in the period in which
the contributions become payable,
2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Directors have made judgements; estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 1, and the reported amounts of assets, lHabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ
from these estimates,

The ectimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions [o estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods.

Climate change

A key consideration, but not one which the Group views as representing a material estimation
uncertainty or judgemant, is climate change. The risks associated are long-term in natura, and whilst
they are likely 1o have a matenal impact on future Investment reguirements, which will be fully Tunded
through the regulatory pricing structure, we deem there 15 no material impact on the carrying amount of
assets or liabilities recognised in the financial statements. Based on the nature of this funding, and the
Impact it may have on strategy, there is the potential for this to change future treatment, as such, we
are aware of the ever-changing risks associated to climate changs and will continue to regularly assess
these risks against judgements and estimates made In preparation of the Group's financial statements.

For further detall, see strategic ambitions, risk and Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Dischosure
sections of the Annual Report.

Climate change s embedded into everything we do and the risks associated are fully integrated in our
strategy and our fong-term strategy effectively identifies, manages and mitigates these key risks.
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L

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment (continued)

In assessing the impact of dimate change we have considered not just the impact on our asset base as a
result of no action but also the impact of our 2030 net zero route map has been incorporated into our
normal assessment of asset UEL Nothing has been identified within our net zero plan which has the
potential to impact on our existing assets base or their net book values. We have akso set out the risks
posed by climate change and how we will address them in our latest Adaptation Report.

As a result of the impact of severe weather events there is the risk of impairment to our assets, There
have been no such adjustrents in the current financial year this therefore supporting our current UEL
paolicy. This will be kept continuoushy under review 1o ensura appropriste treatment.

Areo of Higher Risk

Infrastructure assets within property plant and eguipment, specifically in relation to the water mains
network, are at higher risk, These have a net book value of £3,126 9 million and an associated annual
depreciation charge of £33.9 million {£3,092.0 million, £32.8 milion 31 March 2023}. The impact of
climate change on these assets is highly dependent on several factors, Including but not limited to, the
geology of the region these assets go through and the material they are made from.

As part of our PR24 submmission we have put forward an investrnent 1o renew BEEkm of dimate
vulnerable mains in AMPE as part of a multi-AMP programme of removing 75% of our 8,241km of
clirnate vulnerable main by 2060. The Group’s intention is to accelerate the depreciation on these assets
gnce certainty is given aver funding in the Final Determination. No adjustment has been made in the
current year financial statements as our current funding arrangements would be to repair rather than
replace, therefore recording such costs within the income stalement

Critical accounting judgments
The areas where the most critica! judgements have been applied are as follows:

| Capitalised expendifure
Additions 1o intangible assets, and to property, plant and equipment, include £158.6 million (2023
£132.5 millign) of own work capitalised, Judgement is made 1o ensure these costs relate 1o relevant
assets and that future economic benefit will flow to the Group.

il Asset fives
The property, plant and equipment usad in the Group & primarily the infrastructure and operational
assets of the regulated water business, Infrastructure and operational assets have estimated useful
lives of between 30 and 160 years and the depreciation charge is clearly sensitive 1o the fives
allocated to the various types of asset.

Asset lives are reviewed regularly and changed where necessary to reflect the current view on their
remaining fives in fight of technological change, prospective economic utilisation and the physical
condition of the assats,
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2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment {continued)
a) Critical accounting judgments (continued)

il Recognition of grants and contributions
@)  Income from connections to the water and wastewater nefwork

The Group receives income from developers for new connections to the water and wastewater
netwiorks gither in the form of cash or infrastructure assets. The significant components are as
follows:

1) MNew connection charges £13.4 million (2023: £14.2 million) — developer request for the
provision of new connections to the network;

2] Infrastructure charges £11.4 million {2023. £18.6 million) = developers’ contribution to offsite
network reinforcement as permitted by the Water Industry Act;

3} Self-lay, requisitions and adoption fees £10.9 million (2023: £7.1 million) = providing the
developer with azsistance in the construction of assets which enable the development ta be
connected to the network;

4) Adoptad assets at nil consideration £48.2 million (2023: £46.0 million) = devaloper contributes
assets on a nil consideration basis that have been Installed on a new development.

ludgement is required when apphying IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customears n

detarmining the custamer and the performance obligations to that customer. Specifically,

|udgement is required as 1o whether the income is in relation to the provision of the connection o

the Group’s infrastructure, allowing the completion of the construction of the property and It to be

approved for sale, or to facilitate the angoing provision of water and wastewater senvices 1o the
properties in guestion,

For 1 and 2 above, all communication is between the Group and the developer/site owner and the
agreement |5 signed by sald developer/fsite owner, The agreements set out components of the
charge and what Is 1o be delivered. Our conclusion is therefore that the develaper is the customer
and our obligation 1o the developer is met when properties are connected to the network, and
therefore this is considered the refevant trigger for income recognition. We believe the ongoing
obligation to maintain the connection to the property is a separate contract with the property
owner (in most cases the household customer) and separate from the contract with the developer.

For 3 and 4 it is the developer who constructs and transfers the asset, and therefore similar to the
above, the agreement is between ourselves and the developer. The occupants of the properties
served are unaware of the transaction and indifferent to who is maintaining the asset, they receive
no bereht from the transaction.

Our obligation is to inspect and adopt the assets. As such, the Group considers that the ongoing
obligation to maintain the assets is a separate contract with the property owner (in most cases the
household customer) and separate from the contract with the developer. Therefore, revenue from
these streams should be recognised at a point in time when the contract with the developer is
fulfilled; on conrection, completion, or adoption.
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2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment {continued)
a) Critical accounting judgments (continued)

Our obligations to maintain and reinforce our infrastructure do not constitute performance
obligations as these are imposed on us by the regulator. A performance obligation invalves a
transfer of control of benefit from the seller to the customer, however, maintenance and
reinforcement of the infrastructure does not transfer any benefit outside of Anglian Water, because
the assets being maintained or reinforced are Anglian Water's own assets, The promise to the
customer is to provide water/sewerage services, the promise 1o the developer i to provide a
connection and there is no performance obligation in respect of upkeep of the assets.

b}  Diversions

The Group also receives income from various authorities which is reimbursing the cost of diverting
assets due to them presenting an obstruction to the construction or upgrade of infrastructure such
as roads or rail. Diversion income within the year amounted to £13.9 million {2023 £6_Bmillion).

A similar revenue recognition approach is taken with diversions. The obligation here is that we divert
the sewer or water main at the reguest of the relevant authority or agency, and our obligation is
fully met once the diversion is completed, and therefore the contribution s fully recognised as
revenues at that point in time.

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumplions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying amounts
of agsets and ifabilities within the next financial year, are described below,
The Group based its assumplians and estimales on parameters avallable when the concolidated
financial statements were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or clrcumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

The key areas involving estimation are outlined below,
i Retirement benefit actuarial Gssumptions

The Group operates a number of defined benelit schemes (which are closad to new members and
future accruals) as well as a defined contribution scheme and an unfunded arrangement for former
employess. Under 145 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, the Group has recognised an actuarial loss of £28.5
million {2023: loss of £206.5 million] in respect of the defined benefit schemes which affects ather
comprehensive income and net assets. The actuarial valuation of the scheme liabilities is reliant on
key assumptions which include: the discount rate, szlary inflation and life expectancy. The main
assumptions and associated sensitivities are set out in note 21 of the financial statements,
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2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments (continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

1]

Level 3 devivative financial instruments

The company enters into a varety of derivative financial instruments 1o manage its exposure 1o
inftation and interest rate risk In ling with the company’s risk management policy, Level 3 derivative
financial iInstruments comprise CPl-linked inflation swaps which are traded based on a spread to
liquid RPIinflation markets often referred to as 'the wedge’. As the market for CPI swaps is still
developing, the wedge is not currently observable in a liguid market and as such these swaps have
been classified as level 3 instruments. The impact (on a post-tax basis) on the income statement of
reasonably possible changes in the CPlinflation rate assumptions used in valuing instruments
classified as level 3 can be found in note 19,

¢} Other area involving estimation

Expected credit loss on trode recelvabies

IFRS 9 requires that historical loss rates are adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and
estimates of future economic conditions.

The actual level of receivables collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which
could impact operating results positively or negatively.

Management apply judgement when determining impact of the wider economy on future cash
collection {macro-economic).

The extent to which future cash collections will be impacted by macro-econamic trends is uncertain,
Management have estimated the potential impact through scenario analysis considering the
correlation between cash collection rates against & combination of unemployment rates and real
household disposable income [RHDI). Office for Budget Responsibifity, Office of Mational Statictics
and Bank of England forecasts for thiese measures have then been utilised to forecast changes in
future cash collection rates.

The: Bank of England forecast at February 2024 now predicts unemploymient to peak at 5% and The
Office for Budget Responsibility forecast for RHDI predicts a peak of £22.0k per person in the
medium tarm. Based on management's calcutations, this is consistent with predictions at March
2023 the additional provision required against bills raised to the balance sheet date has remained
broadly the same, at £6.0m.

Sensitivity of 4/- 1% for employment and £1k per parson for RHDI has been modelled to astess the
[mpact on the figura. +/- 1 has been wsed 35 this reflects a reasonable market movement based on
historical and forecast data. Unemployment shows a range of -13.3 million 1o +2.0 milllon and RHOI
shows a range of -11.2 million to +13.2 million when applying the sensitivity. This therefore gives a
range from a low of £13.3 million to a high of £13.8 million.
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2.

c)
i

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments (continued)
Other area involving estimation (continued)
Measured fncome accrual

For Anglian Water the measured income accrual is an estimation of the amount of main water and
wastewater charges unbilled at the vear end. The accrzal is estimated wsing a defined methodology
based upon weighted average water consumption by tariff, which is calculated based upon historical
billing information. The calculation is sensitive to estimated consumption for measured domestic
customers. For 2023/24 the average consumption for measured household customers was 96 cubic
rmeters, a fall or rise of two cubic metres (2 per cent) in average annual consumption will reduce or
increase revenue by approsimately £14.2 million respectively.

Segmental information
By class of business tor the year ended 31 March 2024

The Directors consider the Board to be the Group's chief operating decision maker in relation to
segment reporting in accordance with IFRS B "Operating Segments’,

At 31 March 2024 the Group was organised into the following main businesses:

= Anglian Water - regulated water and water recycling services provider to customers in the East of
Emgland and Hartlepool;

= Anglian Venture Holdings = comprising:

¢ Alpheus Environmental Limited — operates industrial and commercial wastewsater treatment
works in the UK;
Celtic Anglian Water Limited — operates water and wastewater treatment works in the
Republic of Ireland,
Tide Services Limited — operates property comveyancing, residential insurances and the
provision of web hosted infarmation services for utilities on behalf of other group companies,
Wave Ltd — a 50:50 joint venture with Northumbrian Water Group Limited to provide water
services to non-household customers in the UK,
OHL Property Holdings Uimited - oversees the construction of a new water reeycling centre;
and
o OHL Piper Limited - a property rental business.

[}

oy

[}

[N]

* Head Office and Other ~ comprises head office and other Group functions, including Property.

There has been no change in the basis of segmentation or in the measurement of segmental profit or
lerss in the year.

Mo operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments,

The Directors consider the Board to be the Group's chief operating decision maker in refation to
segment reporting in accordance with [FRS 8 'Operating Segments’. Segmental performance is evaluated
based on both profit and loss and cash flows (zee table below). Segmental assets and liabilities do not
form part of the Board's performance assessment and, as such, are not included in the segmental
information.
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3.

Segmental information (continued|

Inter-segment revenues and profits are fully eliminated on consolidation and are shown separately in

the following tables, The segment result represents operating profit.

By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2024

&ngiian Haad ImEac-
AngaEsn Venture DOiffice sEpment
Watsr Hoitings  andOthes  gliminasions Total
Erm Lim Em Em Em
Revense
External 16266 432 0.3 - 1,676.1
Inter-zegment - e [10.8) -
1,626.6 GO0 0.3 [10.8] i,676.1
Segment result
EBITDA Bigs 17 [22.1) 8051
Depreciation and amortisation 3885} 3.4} 03 - {391.7)
Share of joint verture’s operating profit 6.1 . 6.1
4309 104 (218 - 4195
Cash flows
Dperating cash flow 7671 43 [27.7) 743.7
Capital expenditure {9923} {05} 0.1) - {992.9)
Met debk excluding derivative financial
instruments {6,976.9) i 31 {27574 = (3.731.2)
By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2023
Anghan Hesd IntRr-
Anglian Veoture Ofifice sEEmeat
Watsr Holgings  and Othes  silmimations Tatal
£Em £m Em £m Em
Revenue
External 1,484 8 544 03 B 154596
Inter-segment . 54 . [9.4] -
14249 638 03 94) 15495
Segment result
EBITOA BIZR 21 (115 8000
Depreciation and amartisation (373.1) {2.5} o2 = {38L7)
Share of jpint venture's operating profit 21 - - il
42137 3.4 (11.7] = 4204
Cazh Flows
Operating cash flow F1019 55 (1335 - 725
Capital expenditure (EE0.0) {0.3) L {§55.9]
Ket debt excluding derivative financial
NSt _ (6.247.9) (L7)  (26875) - iBsary)
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3.

Segmental information (continued|

By geographical segment

The geographic information below analyses the Group's revenue, segment résult and non-current

assets by geopraphical location.

Revenue
United Kingdiom
Other courntries

Segment result
United Kingdom
Citheer countries

Mon-cwrrent assets
United Kingdam
Other countries

Wear
enidod
31 Marth

Em

12,4371

Year
ended
31 March
023

£m

15101
395
1,549 5

177
.7
4104

11 m=l
6.4

11,7105

In presenting the above information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of

CLSTONHATS.
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3.  Segmental information (continued)
Reconciliation of segmental information

Year Year

ended ended

31 March 31 Masnch

2024 2023

£m Em

Segment result 419.5 04
Finance costs [693.3) (E32.B)
Fimance income 273.5 6891
Share of joint ventures interest payable [2.6) {2.3)
Share of joint ventures tax (1.1) {22j
[Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations (4.0} 2682
Total operating cash flow by segment 7437 25
Income taxes paid (0.6} (0.6
Met cash flows from operating activities 7431 nis
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment [943.3) {588.5]
Purchase of intangible assets [51.5) (75.8]
Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment 19 44
Capital expenditure spend by segment [992.9) {£55.9)
Cash and cash equivalents 654 5180
Cash deposits 552.1 3167
Borrowings due within one year (1,103.6) (L7130)
Borrowings due after more than one year {9,785.1) (8,058.8]
Net debt by segment [9,731.2) [8337.1)
Derwative financial instruments (633.9) {697.7)
Net debt (10,365.1) (9.834.8)

I Derivative financial instruments exclude the net fability of £21.4 million (2023: net asset of £0.7
million) in respect of the fair value of energy hedges, as these are not dassified as part of net debt
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4, Revemnums

Water and water recycling services:
Angiian Water
Household - measured
Househotd - unmeasurad
Mon-household - measured
Granis and contrebutions
Dther

Anglian Venture Holdings
Inter-segment eliminations

Property revenue

Year Yaar
ended wnded
31 March 3L Marnoh
2024 PIIPE]
Em £m
5610 8559
23598 237
2508 2606
or.a8 1050
-
1,606.6 14349
B0 603
[10.8) (5.4)
156758 15458
0.3 3.8
16761 1,348.6

The Group derives 1S revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services at 3
paint in time in the above révenue categories, with the exception of Household — unmeasured which is
recorded on a straight-line basis throughout the year, see our accounting policy in note 1 for further

details.

Included in Grants and contributions are adopted assets of £48.2 million (2023; £46.0 million) which are

fiafi-cash.

Other includes £25,6 million (2023: £25.9 million) of revenue related 1o non-appointed business

activities.

The above analysis excludes other operating income and finance income see note 6.
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4.

Revenue {continued)

Revenue recognised which exceeds the amounts billed is recorded as a contract asset while payments
received prior to delivering the service is recorded as a contract liability. Refer below for the mavement

ir contract assets and liabilities:

Group snd Company

024 2023
Em £m
Contract liability
At 1 April {345.5] {338 3]
Reverue recognised 1,200.8 1083 6
Cash recenved in advance 1,185.6) {1.090.8)
At 31 March {330.3) {3455}
Contract asset
At 1 Apil 3315 EF1ERY]
Asvenue recognised 1,251.8 11005
Amounts billed [1,176.8) {1,055.00
At 31 March 406.5 3315
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5.  Operating costs

Raw materials and consurmables

Staff costs

Research and development

Contribution to Anglian Water Assistance Fund
Short-term lease costs

Hired and contracied senvices

Rates

Power

Aegulatory fees

Indurance

Vehicles and fuel

Other expenses

Dwn work cagitalised

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1=
Dperating costs before depreciation, amortisation and loss allowance for
expected credit losses

Depreciation of property, plant 3nd equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of imestment propertiss
Depreciation and amortisation

Loss allowance for expected credit losses

Dperating costs

Year
onded
31 Marth

40.4
3354
1.5

29
imM.2

165.4
2.7

17.7
48.9

{158.5)
5

333.3
58.2

391.7
i

1,278.5

Yar
sndad

31 Masch
3023

401
3031
78

15

3z
2615
59.1
B9 7
327
10.8
16.8
a5.4
{132.5)
(3.9)

7354

332.8
489

3|y
302

1,147.3

(21 The profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment refates to various sales of surplus land and

assats,

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the company’s Auditor:

Fees payable to the Company's Auditor for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Fees payable to the Company's Auditor for the audit of the wbsidiaries
Fees payable to the Company's Auditor for other services
Nor-audit services

Yaar Yaar
ended gnded
31 March 31 March
224 13

Em £m

01 01

0.5 0.5

04 0.3

1.0 a4a
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5.  Operating costs {continued)
The Company's Auditor for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 was Deloitte LLP. Audit
retated assurance services predominantly relate to regulatory reporting to Ofwat, review of the Group's
half-year results, and other agreed-upon procedures throughout the year.

6.  MNetfinance costs

Year Yimar
ended endad
31 March 31 Maxch
2024 0523
m Em
Finance casts
Interest expense on bank loans and overdrafis {45.0 [25.5])
interest expense on other loans including finandng expenses {350.4) {284.2)
Incexation”™ [359.9) {561.4)
Amortisation of debt issue costs [8.0) [7.6)
interest on leases (L1] o8}
Total finance costs {T6a.4) {879.5)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying asuwets 711 40.7
[6493.3) 1238 8]
Finance income
interest income an short<term bank deposits 527 227
Other interest income 22 19
Amartisation of fairvalue adjustments 111 128
Defined benefit pension scheme interest 26 5.3
BE.6 438
Fair value galns/[losses) on derivative financial instruments
Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedges 1.9 03
Derivative financial instruments not designated as hedges 207.8 6521
Recyciing of de-designated cach fow hedge relationship © (4.8) (9.2)
Fal X 453
Finance income, including fair value gains on derivative financial instruments 2735 6891
Net finance costs (919.8] {1458.7)

3 Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedges comprises fair value losses on hedging instruments of
£22.5 million (2023: loss of £35.2 million), offset by fair value gains of £24.4 million on hedged risks
(2023 gains of £35.5 million).

(@ Please refer to note 23 for breakdown of hedging reserve,

(# Indexation comprise of £229.9 million in borrowings (2023: £363.0 million) and £130.0 million in
detivatives (2023. £198.4 million).
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7.  Taxation
Year Yaar
ended wncad
31 March 31 Masch
Faivl 033
Em £m
Cusrrent tas

in respect of the current period 0.6 0.7
Tolal current tax charge 0.6 .y

Deferred bax:
Cirigination and reversal of temporary differences 10.3 62.6
Adjustments in respect of previous periods {3.8) 12
Total deferred tax charge B.5 63.8
Total tax charge on {loss)/ profit from continuing operations 71 845

The current tax charge for both years reflects 1ax payable in overseas territories. Tax losses arose in the
United Kingdom due mainly because capital allowances exceed the depreciation charged in the
accounts, 25 well a8 some income not being taxable 2nd the availability of 1ax reliefl on pention
contributions paid in the year, This is offset by disallowable costs and interest,

The deferred tax chargs for both years mainly reflects capital allowances claimed in excess of the
depreciation charge, a charge on the fair value gains on derivatives, offset by a credit on losses carried
forward to future years,

The deferred tax adjustments in respect of previous periods for both years retate mainly to the
agreamaent of prior year [ax computations.

The armounts included for tax Babilities in the financial statements include estimates and judgements. if
the computations subsequently submitted to HMRC include different amounts then these differences
are reflected a3 an adjustment in respect of prior years in the subseguent financial statements,

To address concerns about uneven profit distribution and tax contributions of large multinational
corporations. various agreements have been reached at the global leved, including an agreement by over
135 jurisdictions to introduce a global minimum tax rate of 15%. In December 202 1, the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) released a draft legislative framework, followed by
detailed guidance released in March 2022, that is expected to be used by individual jurisdictions that
signed the agreement to amend their local tax laws. The United Kingdom substantively enacted the tax
legislation related to the top-up tax on 20 June 2023 in the Finance Act and the legislation is effective in
the UK for periods commencing on or after 1 lanuary 2024, In addition, amendmernts to IAS12
"International Tax Reform = Pillar Two Model Rules’ were endorsed by the UK Endorsement Board on 19
luly 2023 and the exception from recognition and dischosures of deferred taxes in this regard as required
by 1AS 12.44A has been taken. The legislation is not expected to have a significant iImpact on the financial
statements.
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7.  Tanation (continued)

The tax charge on the Group's profit before tax differs from the notional amount calculated by applying the
rate of UK corporation tax of 25% {2023: 19%) to the (loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations as

fallows:
Year
ended
31 March
Foivd ]
Em
[Loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations [4.00
(Loss)fprofit before tax from continuing operations at the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 25% (2023 19%) (L0}
Effects of recurring items:
ems not deductible for tax purposes
Depreciation and [osses on assets not eligible for tax relief 0.7
Dizallowable expenditure 1.9
Interest restriction 103
ftems not taxkable 62
Difference in overseas tax rates (0.6
Jgént ventures results reported net of tax 0.6}
10.9
Effects of non-recurring items:
Effect of capital allowance super deduction 5
Effects of differences between rates of current and deferred tax -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods [3.8]
Tax charge for the year 11

Year
anded
31 Mzrch
033

Ern

o8 2

510

0.6
12

9

[03)
01

56.7

{10.8)
174
12
s45

In addition to the tax charged o the income statement, the following amounts of tax relating ta

components of ather comprehensive income were recognised:

Yaar
ended
31 March
2024
Em

Deferred tax:
Defined benefit pension schemes [7.1)
Cash flow hedges (1.9
Total deterred tax charge (9.0
Total tax charge recognised in other comprehensive income 9.0

Yaar
ended
31 March
X173

[5LTI
o3y
(518

(513
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B. Employee information and Directors’ emoluments
d) Employee information

Staff costs

Wizges and salariss

Sorial security oosts

Pension costs - defined comtribution
Pension costs - defined benefit

Yéar
anded
51 March
HEra

Em

283.3
2B.0

24.0
0.1
335.4

Year
andad

31 March
2013

om

339
68

223
0.1
303.1

Eraff costs for the year ended 31 March 2024 in the table above are shown inclusive of £75.9 million
(2023: £101.2 milllon) of posts that have been capitalised, as shown within ‘own work capitalised” in

note 5.

Average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (including Executive Directors) employed by

the Group:

Anglian Water
Anglian Venbure Holdings
Other

The Company
The Coampany has no employess {2023; none),

Yaar
ended
31 Manch
5,295
191
i
3,331
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8. Employee information and Directors’ emoluments (continued)
b) Directors’ emoluments

Year Yaar

endad andad

51 March 31 March

kA 213

£ (i £'00:

Agpregate emoluments 1,890 2,425

Aggregate emoduments of the Directors comprise salaries, taxable benefits, cash payments in lieu of
company pension contributions and amounts payable under annual bonus schemes. No retirerment
benefits are accrued for Directors (2023 none) under a defined benefit persion scheme. Retirermnent
benefits are accruing to two Directors {2023 two Directors) under a defined contribution pensian
schame,

c)  Highest paid director

Year Yaar
ended ended
1 March 31 Maren
203d 2073
O E000
Ageregate emaluments 1,304 1391

9.  (Loss)/profit of the parent company

The Company has not presented its own income stalement as permitted by section 208 of the
Companies Act 2006, The Company’s boss for the year was £13.0 million {2023: profit of £96.4 million).
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10. Goodwill
Group
H24 023
Em im
Cost
At 1 April and 31 March 9354 935.4
Accumlated impabrment
At 1 April and 31 March {489.5) |483.5)
Met book amount
At 31 March -HE.E B EEB
Allocation of goodwill

All goodwill is allocated to the Anglian Water business segment, the Group’s UK regulated water and
water recycling services provider.

Impairment testing of goodwill allocated to Anglian Water
The recoverable amount of the Anglian Water segment is determined based on a fair value less cost to
sedl methodology.

Thic caleulation uses a multiple of Regulatory Capital Value [RCV) with reference to the recent
Transactions that have taken place in the sector and the market value of the listed companies in the
sector, The bask applied has been deemed appropriate as it s consistent with the economic value as
assessed by management and other market participants.

The current comparable transactions in the sector indicate that current multiples have been betwesn
1.14x and 1.48% RCY in recent years, The implied mubltiples for the listed water companies are also
around 1.0x 1o 1.17x on a nen-controfling basis, based on current market capitalisation.

Adopting & current market average RCV multiple of 1.16x at 31 March 2024 results in headroom of
£2,001.B million (2023: 1.25%, £2,756.3 million). The headroom at 31 March 2024 is efiminated at an ROV
multiple of 0.97x (2023: 0.97x).

Goodwill is also assessed using forecast discounted cashflows which also demonstrates that there is
headroom above the carrying value,
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11. Other intangible assets

B ) _ Gooup
Intangihia
Computer Right to Other  assets under
Sofvware  operaie assel  im@Engibles  coREUUCTROR Toal
Em Ermi Em Em Em
Cosk
AL 1 Aprll 2003 4174 il 147.0 1217 7.7
Additions - - 0l LR 2 58.3
Transfer on commissioning 192 - 222 [41.4) .
Dispasals - - (115.2) - as2)
At 31 March 2024 436.6 21.6 L1 138.5 &50.8
At 1 April 2022 370.9 216 1424 101 2 6373
Additions - - B27 B2.7
Transfer on commissioning 58.8 - 3.8 [62.4] =
Disposals (123) - = - (123}
At 31 March 2023 4174 216 470 1217 TOr7
Accumulated amortssation
At 31 Masch 2023 {300.5) (16.4)  [13L4) - [sa8.4)
Charge for the year [44.7) (2.4} {11.1) - (58.2)
Disposals - . 1152 - 115.2
&t 31 March 2024 {345.3) [1B.8) {27.3) = {3914
At 1 Aprl 2022 {2812 (140}  [1168) - (41LB)
Charge for the year (31.7) (24} {14.8] & (48 9]
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking 123 A = - 123
At 31 March 2023 {300.6) (164)  (1314) - [sas4)
Met book amount
At 31 March 2024 513 2.8 26.8 1385 59.4
At 31 March 2023 1168 52 156 1217 553

For increased clarity, and for consistency with note 12, Property, plant and eguipment, the above table
has been reformatted this vear to separate out intangible assets in the cowrse of construction. Of those
intangible assets under construction, £28.7 million (2023 £65.4 million) relates to software systems
under development and £39.7 million (2023 £56.1 million) to internally generated assets.

Included in the intangible asset under construction balance s £74.0 million (2023: £43 5 milllon) in
relanion 1o our SAP replacement project which is now expected to go live in 2025

Other intangible assets mainly comprise capitalised development expenditure,
Included within additions above s £6.8 million (2023 £6.4 million) of interest that has bean capitalised
on qualifying assets, atan average rate of 9.5 per cent (2023: B.6 per cent).

The ‘right to operate’ asset arose on the acquisition of Celtic Anglian Water Limited in June 2016, whilst
the internally generated intangible assets mainly comprise capitalised development expenditure.
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11. Other intangible assets {continued)

Intangible assets with a cost of £115.2 million and a net book value of nil were disposed during the year
(2023 £12.3 million, nil net book value). The 2024 retirement mostly represented a house-keeping
exercise, where fully depreciated data-models and other similar assets were retired from our fixed asset

register.

The Company
The Company has no intangible assets {2023: none).

12. Property, plant and equipment

Group
Wehicles,
Infra- mobile fazets
Land and structuie  Dperaticnal plant and T
buwildings FRERTE #EETS  PQUipmMent  ConsEtTucTion Torai
Em Em Em Em Em Em
Cost
A1 April 2023 925 14455 6ria2 11314 8548 15,2594
Additions . . . 05 10440 1,044.5
Transfers on commissioning 15 553 2757 1206 (673.1) -
Disposals (0.3} - {34.5) {34.8) - (69.5)
At 31 March 2024 99.7 7,701.8 6,969.4 1,237.7 12257 17,2343
At 1 April 2022 84.0 721 6,507.4 10508 6373 155717
Additions = . - 0.2 7335 Ti3h
Transfers on commissioning 419 il 2337 1129 {516.0) -
Disposals {o4) - |ng @28 - (459
AT 31 March 2023 98.5 74465 67182 11314 3.8 16,159 4
Accumulated depreciation
Transfers on commissioning (23.E) {9E2 6] [3.885.1) (7015} - {%553.2)
Charge for the year (3.0 528 {200.8) {66.8) : (333.3)
Dispasals 03 . 344 345 - 69.2
A1 31 March 2024 ~[265)  (L025.2)  (4,031.5) [734.2) - (38174
At 1 April 022 (2004 {900 3) [3,674.7) (6708} - (5,265 8]
Charge for the year 4.2] [e2.3) 202.9) 1635} * {3321 8]
Dispasals 0.4 : 125 35 - 454
At 31 Asarch 2023 [23.E) {952.6) [3.B85.1) (7018} = [5553.2)
Met book amount
At 31 March 2024 32 666 39579 3.5 12257 11,4168
At 31 March 2023 J4E  BAE3S  ZIEEI1 4237 8347 1b7oel

Praperty, plant and equipment at 31 March 2024 includes fand of £31.4 million (2023: £30.2 million),
which is not subject to depreciation. Included within additions above is £64.3 million {2023: £34.4 million)
of intarest that has been capitalised on qualifying assets, at an average rate of 9.5 per cent (2023: 8.6 per
cent).
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Right-of-use assets held under leases

Included within the amounts shown above are the following amounts in relation to right-of-use assets
held under leases:

Group
Vihickas,
Irifra- maokile
Land and structure  Operational plant and
busldings as58ls assels  squipment Total
im £m £m Em Em
At 31 March 2024
Dpening net book value 180 50 365 &R 671.7
Addtions - - = 36 3.6
Disposals {01} - - 3.7 (3.8
Depreciation charge 2.7} {0.1) (13} {2.9] [6.9)
Depreciztion on disposals 01 : = 37 i8
ket book value 163 48 357 75 oA
A 31 March 2023
Opening net book value 219 5.0 382 30 E8.1
Bddtions 01 - - Ll L |
Desposats - - 22 (0.2 0.2)
Depreciation charge {3.0) . (13} 2.2) {6.5)
Depreciation on disposals = - - 0.2 0.2
Net book valus - 18.0 50 389 5.8 81.7
The Company
The Company has no property, plant and equipment (2023. none).
13. Investment properties
Group
el 33
Em £m
Ciost
At 1 April 3.7 3.?
At 31 March 3.7 17
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April (0.1} (@.1)
Charge for the vear o2y .
At 31 March (0.3} o)
Met ook amount
At 31 March 34 36

Investrment properties are accounted for using the cost model, In line with the accounting policy for
praperty, plant and equipment.
The fair value of investment properties is not materially different from their book value,
The Company
The Company has no investment properties [2023; none],
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14.  Investments

Group Company
i 2033 Hila 023
Eomi £ Em Erm

Mon-tourment
lgink ventures 146 122 - -
Subsidiary undertakings . . 1,695.3 16749
14.6 122 1,695.3 16789

Current

Cash deposits 552.1 3167 - -
552.1 3167 s .

On 2 February 2024, the Company purchased one newly isued 55p ordinary share in Algrette Financing
Limited {AFL) at a premium of £36.0 million.

Cash deposits disclosed within investments represent short-term bank deposits with maturities at the
point of deposit of three to six months.

a) Joint ventures

Group

224 013

£Em im

At 1 Agril 122 116
Profit/{loss] for the year 24 (0.4
At 31 March 146 122

The profit for the year comprises the Group’s share of the results of its joint ventures as follows:
operating profit of £6.1 million {2023: profit of £2.1 million), an interest expense of £2.6 million (2023
£2.3 million], and a tax charge of £1.1 million (2023: charge of £0.2 million).

The Group's initial investment in the Wave joint venture was £31.3 million, comprising an eguity holding
of £15.6 million and a £15.7 million 5.5 per cent medium-term loan repayable on 31 August 2027 or
such other date as mutually agreed between the parties. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group undertook a debt for equity swap of £5.0 million, resulting in an equity holding of £20.6 million
and a £10.7 million 5.5 per cent medium-term loarn.

A full Nsting of the Group's jaint ventures can be found in note 31, none of which are matarial to the
Group.

Osprey Holdco Limited and Anglian Venture Holdings Limited are party to indemnities in respect of the
Wave joint venture in relation to whalesale water charges payable to Anglian Water Services Limited for
£14.5 million and another wholesaler for £10.0 million. Additionally, Angllan Venture Holdings Limiged is
party to an indemnity in respect of the Wave joint venture in relation to wholesale water charges
payable to other whoblesalers for £12.5 million,
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14.

Investments (continued)

a) Joint ventures (continued)
In addition, Anglian Venture Holdings Limited has undertaken to discharge any defined benefit pension
scheme liability arising on amy of its employees, including those of Anglian Water Business (National)

Limited, transferring into the Wave joint venture,

The joint ventures have no significant contingent liabdlities to which the Group is exposed.

b) Subsidiary undertakings

Cost

At L Aprd 2023
Additions
Repayments

At 31 March 2024

At 1 April 2022

Repayments
At 31 March 2023

Prowvision for mpairment
At 1 April 2022, 3t 31 March 2023 and at 31 March 2024

Met book amount
At 31 March 2024
Mon-current asset imvestments

&t 31 March 2023
Mon-current asset investments

Company
Loans to Shares in
subsidiary subsidisry
undertakings  undertakings Toral
Em Em Em
4.2 17665 1,790.7
36.0 36.0
4.6 1,B02.5 1,807.1
oA 17665 1825
{LB) = (LB}
2.2 1,766.5 1.780.7
= {111.8} (11LE8]
45 L6307 1635.3
4.6 1,690.7 1,695.3
42 L6547 1678.9
242 16587 lEmes

The £24.2 million loan 1o Anglfan Venture Holdings Limited carries interast at SONIA plus 3.03 per cent,
Including the credit adjusted spread and is repayable on 1 December 2025,

The Directors are of the opinion that the value of the invesTments is supported by the underlying assets.

Subsidiary underzakings are fisted in note 31.
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15.

Trade and other receivables
_ Group Company
Lk 033 it | 23
Em £m Em Em
Trade receivables 3504 4430 - -
Loss alfowance for expected credit losses {212.2) {258.2) . .
Net trade receivabies 178.2 182 E - =
Amounts receivable from group undertakings - 0.1 0.5 0.7
Loans receivable from joint ventures 20.0 213 . .
Other amounts receivabie 326 413 ¥ =
Prepaymients 17.5 17.0 - -
Bocrued income 5.1 3324 - -
B57.8 5289 0.5 0.7

Atcrued income as at 31 March 2024 incdudes water and water recycling income not yet billed of £405.0
million (2023: £331.5 million). Of the trade receivables, £376.2 million (2023 £427.3 million) relates to

Anglian Water Services residential customers, £1.4 million {2023: £0.7 million) relates to Anglian Water
Services non-household retailer balances and the remaining balance of £6.2 million relates to developer

services and other receivables. The majority of non-household customers are billed in arrears and are
therefore included within accrued income above,

Other amounts receivable incdudes £22.1 million VAT dabtor (2023: £19.4 million).

Loans receivable from joint ventures at 31 March 2024 comprise the following amounts due from the
Wave joint venture:
s = A F15.7 million (2023: £16.7 million] loan at 12 month SONIA plus 2.75 per cent plus credit
adjusted spread (CAS) with no fixed repayment date (previously at UBOR plus 2.75 per cent),
s A£3.3 million (2023: £4.6 million) short-term working capital facility at ane month SONIA plus
2.75 per cent plus CAS [previously at LIBOR plus 2.75 per cent), and
In addition to loans recervable from joint ventures in the above table, the following additional amounts
due from joint ventures have been included:
o Accrued income of £13.4 million (2023: £8.3 million) and int2rest receivable of £2.2 million
{2023: £1.7 million), included within accrued income,
The Group manages its risk from trading through the effective management of customer relationships.
By far the most significant business unit of the Group is Anglian Water, which represents 96.5 per eant
of the Group's revenue and 96.3 per cent of its net trade recehvables. Concentrations of credit risk with

respect to household trade receivables are limited due to the Anglian Water customer base consisting of
8 large number of unrelated households.
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15.

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Water Industry Act 1991 {as amended by the Water Industry Act 1999) prohibits the disconnection
of a water supply and the limiting of supply with the intention of enfarcing payment for certain premises
including domestic dwellings. However, allowance is made by the water regulator in the price limits at
each price review for a proportion of debt deemed to be irrecoverable. Considering the above, the
Directors balieve there is no further credit risk provision required In excess of the allowance for doubtful
receivables.

Following the introduction of market reform on 1 April 2017, the provision of water and wastewater
services to non-household customers was transferred to a relatively small number of liceniced ratallers.
Anglian Water bills the retailers ona monthly basis, and they are contractually obliged to pay in full
within one maonth and therefore the credit risk is limited to ong month’s revenui relating to non-
household customers,

The principal retailer that Anglian Water transacts with is Wave Ltd, with £nil receivables (2023: £nil)
and £13.4 million of income accrued at 31 March 2024 (2023: £8.3 million).

The movement on the expected credit loss provision, all of which relates {o trade receivables, was as
foliows:

Group
20izd 2023
£Em Em

At 1 April 258.2 2365
Lo== allowance for spected credit losses 3.7 0.7
Amounts written off during the year (B4.9) 8.7
Amounts recovered during the year 0.2 0.2
At 31 March 122 7581

There iz no fived payment date for amounts owed by Group undertakings and no interest is applied.
Amounts are payable on demand.
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15.  Trade and other receivables (continued)

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and accrued incorne based on the
Group's provision matrix. As the Group’s histoncal credit loss expenence does not show significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group's different customer segments. The
majority of nan-household customers are billed in arrears and are therefore included within accrued

incnime.

At 11 March 2024

Not past due

Up to 1 year past due

Up to 2 years past due

Up to 3 years past due

Up to & years past due

Up to 5 years past due

Up to B years past due

More than 7 years past due

Miscellansous loss allowsnce adjusements

At 31 March 2023

Nok past due

Up to 1 year past duse

Up to 2 years past due

Up to 3 years past due

Up to & years past dus

Upto 5 years past due

Up to & years past due

More than 7 years past due
Mizcellaneais koss allowance adjustments

Growe snd Company
Eupected  Gross camying Loss
loss rate armounk allowance Moet carrying amount
% Em Em £m
13% 4337 G4 17 3
34 85 9.9 (348} B5.1
53.59% Sr.O (30.7) 263
SH 9% 475 (28.0) 195
T2.8% a7 (28.9) 10.8
T1.5% 358 [25.8) 10.2
BL.A% 0.z (24.7) "5
1008 35.7 (35.7} .
4.6 16
799.5 [212.2) 587.3
Group and Company_
Gross

fxpaman EETYINg LoEs
logs At amaunt allowsnce  Net carrying amount
] £m Em £m
1.05% ER 1370 3660
19.9% s (30.4) 712
4555 580 (275} 315
BI0.5% 470 (288} 1E4
B4, 15 i1 6 {25.9) 127
T5.65% 3al (27.3) ES
TB.5% in3 {238} 65

10 815 {315}
15 15
7774 {258.2) 318.2
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16. Analysis of net debt

At 1 April 2023

Cash flows
interest pasd
Issue costs paid
Interest on leases
Increase in amownts
borrowed
Repayment of amaounts
borrowed
Repayment of principal on
derivatives
fiepayment of principal on
lpames
Kon-financing cash flows =

Movement in interest accrual
on debt

Piew lease agreements
dumoriisation of isswe costs
Amartiation of fir valus
adjustments

Indexation of bormowings and
APT sieane

Forelgn exchange gains and
losses

Fair vaiue gains and losses and
foresgn exchangs

At 31 March 2024

Met debt at 31 AMarch 2024
comprises:

Mon-current assets
Current assets

Cuirent llabilites
Mon-current liabifites

Current asset Lbilities from fnancing actwities
Metcash  imvestments Derwpative Tota] Rabilites
and cash - Cakh financal from financing ot
aqunalenTs depesits  Bormowings. instramsents ACTHATES debt
Em Em £ Em Em fm
5180 3167  {3.7718) (697.7) (104635]  [9,634.8)
{340.6) = - 7 - {3440.5)
{15.8) . 173 . 173 0.5
{11) - - - - (1.1)
14210 {1,421.0) {1,4210)
{537 6] = 537.6 - B3l e -
{11.5) - - 115 115 -
(7.0 . 7.0 - 70 .
{4290 1354 B - - (193.6)
g7.4 235.4 [B63.1) 11.5 {857.6) (534.8)
{55.0} . [55.0 {55.0)
- . (4.0) - {4.0) (4.0)
. (8.0} ; (8.0) {8.0)
- - 111 - 111 111
- [229.9) {130.0) [355.9) [359.9)
491 {431}
. < {111} 2314 M3 2203
605.4 5521 (10,888.7) (633.9) (11,522.6)  (10,365.1)
£ = X M1s 2318 316
BG4 5521 - . 1,157.5
- T 11,1036} {79.68) (1,183.2] [1,183.2)
. {3,785.1) (785.3) (10,5710)  (10,571.0)
605.4 5521  (10,B8R.7) (633.5)  (11,522.6) (10365.1]
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16. Analysis of net debt (continued)

At 1 April 2022

Cach flows
Interest paid
Issue costs paid
Interest on leases
Incregie in amounts
borrowed
Repayment of amounts
borrowed
Repayment of prindpal on
leaszes
Non-financing cash flows ™

Maovement in interest accrual
on debt

Mew lease agreements
Amortisation of ssue costs
Amortisation of fair valee
adjustments

indexation of borrowings and
RIM swaps

Falr value gains 2nd bosses and
forergn exchange

At 31 March 2003

Group
Current assat LasbStie= from financing actantizs
Mstzasm  investments Desivarive  Total Fabilinizs
and cash - cash financial  from financing
aguwsiann™ dapasits  Borrewirgs  imstrumanrs® activities Total
&m B . . . Em B B ..
Fi3 g 4307 {9,351 .4} [Li1E2.00 (E0513 .4} |9,453.3]
{3005} - 76 {3.5) 1 (1Ta.4)
(2.4) - 17 . 27 0.3
{08} - - - - {0.B]
L1178 {1,117.8) {11178}
{1,005 - 10058 - Logs3 -
{E.4) - EA i 84 %
kS a—t L = % 5 (113}
jas.4) {114.0) (753} {35} {7E.B} {z8a.2)
= 23 - 232 132
: I {5.5) - 550 {5.9]
{7.E) . {76} (7.8}
- 123 - 129 113
- - {363.0) [198.4) {5614} {5614
% : T =L BES L2
2130 H67 @78 (697,70  (10469.5) (5 E)

11 Included within cash and cash equivalents & £6.5 million {2023: £7.6 milllon) of cash which is ring
fenced to be used to fund projects awarded by Ofwat in relation to their innovation fund;

@ Derivative financial instruments exclude the Rability of £21.4 million {2023: asset of £0.7 million) in
respect of the fair value energy hedges, as these are not yet classified as part of the debt;
= Non-financing cash flows comprise: net cash flows from operating activities of £743.1 million {2023:
£701.9 million), less net cash wsed in investing of £1,172.1 million {2023: £507.4 million).



Osprey Holdco Limited

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

16. Analysis of net debt [continued)

Energy hedges, excluded from net debt, are included within derivative financial instruments as follows:

a8 1073

£m £m

MNon-current asssts 1.5 115
Currank assets 0.9 14
Current liabilities (13.2) [21.9]
Mon-current lisbilites (10.6) [7.3)
fzLa) 07

Current asset investments above comprise £552.1 million (2023: £316.7 million) of short-term cash
deposits with an original maturity of more than three months.

At 31 March 2024, £474.1 million (2023: £335.1 million) of the Group's cash and cash egquivalents and
£530.0 million {2023: £298.0 million] of the short-term deposits were held by Anglian Water and its
financing subsidiary. In order for these amounts to be made available to the rest of the Group, Anglian
Water Services Limited must satisfy certain covenants, which were put in place on 30 July 2002
foliowing a financial restructuring, prior to declaring dividends. A further £0.2 million (2023: £0.2
rrillion] of the Group's cash and cash equivalents was held as collateral for outstanding loan notes. In
addition, £2.2 million (2023: £0.8 million) of the Group's cash and cash equivatents and £2.1 million
(2023: £3.5 million) of the short-term deposits were held by Rutland Insurance Uimited (the Group’s
captive insurance company) in order to maintain its required solvency ratio.

Company
et cash Cisrrent
and cash 2552C
egEvalents recaivables Borrowings Taotal
Em £m £m £m
At 1 April 2023 176 . (10292} | LO1LE)
Cash flows
Interest paid {25.4) - - {25.4)
Increase in amounts borrowed . H & .
Repayment of amounts borrowed z i z 5
MNor-financing cash fows © 181 - - 18.1
73 . " (7.0)
hovement in interast accruad on debt . . 11 B} (218}
At 31 March 2024 10.3 5 {L051.00 {L040.7)
Met debt a1 31 March 2024 comprises:
Current assets 103 . . 10.3
Current Eabilities - - 1545.0) [548.9
Won-current fiabilities _ - - {503.1) [503.1)
10,3 - {LosLo) [1,040.7)
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MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2024
16. Analysis of net debt [continued)

Al apnl 2022
Cash flows

Interest paid
Mor-financing cash flows ™

At 31 March 2023

Coampary
Mot cash Currant
and casn I5HIL

equivalsnts receivables Bormowings Taot=l

£m Em Em Em

118 E (1,039.3} {L.017.E)

{25.4) . - {25.4)

314 - - ild

ED - &d

17.6 {10293} (L0115}

% Non-financing cach flows comprise of net cach flows used in operating activities of £0.3 million
{2023; £0.5 million) less net cash from imesting activities of £18.4 million {2023: £123.7 million).

17. Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Czpital creditors and aconuals
Receipts in advance

Amaunts owed to group undertakings
Dther taxes and social security
Accruals and deferred mcome

Dther payables

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 023

£m &m ¢m £m
57.4 325 .

155.9 1895 - -

3710 354.0 . .

- - 1.6 1.6

0ng 18 = =

146.6 1014
163 153 = =
7381 100.4 16 L6

Receipts in advance includes £330.3 million (2023:; £301.7 million] relating 1o payments on account in

advance of work being completed.

Accruals and deferred income is made up of £138.6 milllon accruals (2023: £90.0 million) with the

remainder attributable to defemed income,

Amounts relating to capital creditors and accruals have been separately presented in the above table 1o
aid consistency with the presentation required by Ofwat in the Annusl Performance Report of Anglian

Water 5ervices Limited.

The Directors consider that the carrying values of trade and other payables are not materially different

from thelr fair values.

There is no fixed payment date for amounts owed 1o group undertakings and no iInterest i applied.

Ampunts are payable on demand.
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18.

Loans and other borrowings

£ 300 millian & 875% Ted rate 2023

US51 0 million 3543 fixad rate 2033

£53 milleon 3.537% fixed rate 2023

£75 millken 3 B65% BP| inde-linked 2024

£100 rmillion 1. 5855 foed rate 2024

£250 million 1 625K fixed rate 2025

£200 million 4. 5% fxed rate 2026

£55 million 2 53% fixed rate fixed rate 2026

LSS50 million 3, 25% fixed rate 2028

E20 millien 2 93% fxed rate 2026

5535 million 1.165% fxed rate 2026

£75 millsgn EIB amortising 0.53% BP indes-inked 2027
£75 mlllign EIB amortising 0, 72% &M Inda-linked 2027
£ 000 million 2 62253 fixed rate 2027

£330 million 4. 5% fioed rate J0I7

£L50 million EIB amortising 05 AP indax-finked 2028
£73.3 million 4 394% fived rate 2028

£300 milllion 6. 625 % fed rate 2020

£S5 miliion 2 ER% fived rate 2029

5553 miflion 4275 fxed rate 3029

£65 milllion BB amorsang 0.41% BF indss-linked 3022
£E65 million 2 E7% fived rate 2029

£12%5 million EIB amortising 0 1% RP index-linked 2029
£300 milllion 2. 75% fiked rate 2028

£75 million floating rate X289

£60 millign BB amortising 0.00% RF index-linked 2030
£248 million & 293% fwed rote 2030

£25 million 3.0% fixed rate 2031

£33 million Noating rate fised rate 2031

£300 miillion 5 875% fed rate 2031

£ 50 mrillion wrapped 3.07% BP index-finked 2032
£60 milllion wrapped 3.073% &M index-linksd 2032

5 150 millon 4. 525% fived rate 2052

£75 million flosting rate 2032

£30 millign 2.05% B9 inde-dinked 2033

€25 miliion 6. 875% fiked rate 2034

JPY 8.5 billlon 1 517% fisved rate 2034

£407 rrdllion 2.4% 29 inded-iinked 2035

£50 milfion 1 T6% fioed rate 2035

£36.1 milion 0.013% CM Index-Brnked 2035-1

£ 1 millian 0.01% CM index-Snked 2035-2

£315 million 2 314% fixed rate 2036

D millign 3 14% fived rats 2036

£ 343 eerllie & 875 fiwod rate 2037

Sub-total carmed forward

Sraup — Tumpany
2024 2023 2034 1033
£m B Ern- Em £m
- 2052 - =
= 1388 -
= a4 5 -
163.8 151.3 - -
100.4 1004 -
240.2 2338
196.3 1948 -
55.5 EE5
1156 118 4
0.1 201 -
5.3 256
35.8 458 .
35.8 456 .
193.5 1917
233.9 2336 +
2R 1105
&4 5.2
208.9 2102 -
5.0 B4G
421 430
488 35E -
B5.6 B5.5
10520 1149 =
301.2 D0 E B
T6.1 756
53.2 251 =
1.6 2621 -
5.0 A5 0
4.8 B =
ili4 - -
458.0 2240
1342 1187 -
a1 201 -
T5.8 756 -
T84 T4E -
5.1 50
447 S x
549.4 5058 -
50.0 SO0
47 334 o
3.5 3.2 z
58 161
3.5 55 =
247 8 4T -
51936 ST :
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1B.  Loans and other borrowings (continued) Growp
2034 23 FiFl Y
i i -

Sisb-total brought forward 51936 520417 -
£24 miltion 6.07% fixed rate 2037 2d.6 248 -
P T billion 0.855% fiked rate 2039 36.6 437 -
ESED milllian 6.00 Mhead rate 2039 STE.6 = -
£B5 million ammortizing §.835% CH index-linkad 2040 8.5 754 -
E100 millicn 2. 427% CPl index-linked 2040 99,6 - =
£ 100 milllien amortising 3.017% CAH index-finkad 2040 1ara 1020 -
IR T billion 0.85% foued rate 2040 258 116 &
£35 million 1.141% AP indes-finked 2042 53.7 =11 &
£110 millibon fioating rate 2043 110.5 1104 .
£375 millbon 5. 75% fived rate 2043 3726 . -
£130 millon 2 2625 BPI indey-linked 2045 2337 1132 -
£50 miltion 1 7% BP| index-linked 2046 -1 1029 g5 0 z
£50 miltion 1.7% AP index-linked 2046 - 2 102.0 852 -
EBD millon L 7503% RPI indey-linked 2085 126.2 1173 -
£50 miffion 1.52% K& index-finked 32055 90,4 B1d .
£40 milfion 1.7188% BP| index-lmiked 2056 B5.0 43 -
£50 millon 16777% BPI indas-linksd 2056 105.8 226 -
50 milfion L 28255 RP| index-linked 2056 96,2 843 -
£108) million wrapped floating rate 2057 100.5 1006 -
E100 mlllign 1 3784% RP indax-linkad 2057 1925 1787 -
£ 75 million 14435 B9 indes-linked 2062 1355 4 -
FFRS 16 [eases 8.5 313 =
ACF £550 milion (1.8) 1.7 -
HOF £375 million (0.4) 0.7 -
RCF £50 milllion bitateral - 1 {0.1) 0.1 ¥
RCF £50 million bitataral - 2 {0.1) . .
Liquidity facilities 04 03 -
£140 milllngn 4 (5% Nixed rate bond A6 4401 £39.8 -
£100 million figating teren facility 2027 1006 1.1 -
£ 300 million 2.0% fioed rate bond 2028 300.1 g C
E105 mrilllian 2 2% private placemants 2023 105.2 1051 E
£100 million 2 7% private placements 2031 100.5 1004 -
£ 100 million 6.555% private placement 2033 100.2 100 3 =
AICF Facllicgs O4L 3 EER -
Loan notes 0.2 02 -
Other loans 1.6 18 -
£10.5 mition fued to fioating rate notes 2037 10.7 10.7 -
£145 million feed to foating rate notes 2028 147.7 1477 -
£120 milllion 4 82% fxad rate 2030 118.9 1187 -
£30 million floating rate notes 2030 1 inag ‘
£50 milficn ficed to floating rate nobes 2030 s0.0 a5 5 -
£95 million Aoating rats private placements 2017 9.7 960 -
ET5 million prodate placerment 2030 7.3 7o 8 -
125 million floating term fadility 2026 125.7 1247 -
£75 miltion Aoating tarm ficlity 2026 2.5 s =
£462 million unsecured loan notes 5031 481 32 503.1
£548 millllon interest free loan 548.0 g0 548.0
£11 83 million 3 302% flxed rate 2026 s nr -
Total loans and other borrowings 10,8887 87718 10511
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MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
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18. Loans and other borrowings (continued)

Group Coampaniy
0da 1023 FLLED 2023
Em Em Em =
Inchusded in:
Current labdlives 11036 1,730 La.0 1,029.2
Non-current liabilities 37851  EOSEE 5031 -
Of which are leases:
Current [iabilities 54 5.4 -
Mon-current liabilities 31 55 - -

The value of the capital and Interest elemeants of the index-linked lpans s linked to movements in
Inflation, The incraase in the capital value of index-linked loans during the year of £229.0 million {2023
£363.0 million) has been taken to the income statement as part of interest payable.

These loans are shown net of Issue costs and borrowings premium of £44.6 million (2023: £35.1 million).
The Issue costs are amartised at the effective interest rate based on the carrying amount of debt over
the life of the underlying instruments,

A security agreement dated 30 July 2002 betwesn Anglian Water Services Financing Ple, Anglian Water
Services Limited, Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings
Limited and Deutsche Trustes Company Limited (a5 Agent and Trustee for self and each of the Finance
Parties to the Global Secured Madium Term Note Programme) created a fived and floating charge over
the assets of Anglian Water Services Limited to the extent permissible under the Water Industry Act
1991. In addition there is 3 fived charge over the issued share capital of Anglian Water Services
Financing Plc, Anglian Water Services Limited and Anglian Water Services UK Parent Limited, 4t 31
March 2024, this charge applies to £7,947.7 million [2023. £6,845.0 million) of the debt listed above.

A security agreement dated 31 January 2011 between Anglian Water (Dsprey) Financing Plc, Osprey
Acguisitions Limited and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited (as agent and trustee for itself and each of
the Finance Parties to the Guaranteed Secured Medium Term Note Programme) created a fiked and
floating charge over the assets of Anglian Water |Osprey) Financing Plc and Osprey Acguisitions Limited.
In addition there is a fixed charge over the issued share capital of Anglian Water (Csprey) Financing Ple
and AWG Parent Co Limited. At 31 March 2024, this charge applies to £1,021.1 million (2023: £1,018.4
million) of the debt listed above.

Loans and other borrowing liabilities dischosed within borrowings on the balance sheet are the only
instruments designated as fair value hedge items by the Group.
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18.

Loans and other borrowings (continued|

The table below details the impact of fair value hedge adjustments on the instruments subject to fair

value hedge accounting:

2004

£250 million Green Bond 1.625% 2025

£200 million 4.5% flzed rate 2026

U55150 million 3, 25% private placements 2026
U5535 milion 1.16% private placements 2026
210 millbon 262 25% fived rate 2027

£73 3 million 4 394% private placements 2028
£246 million B, 293% fixed rate 2030

£35 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

£40 million 2.14% fived rate 2036

1Py 7 biflios 0 85% Tixed rate 2040

2023

Us5170 million 3.84% private placements 2023
£250 million Green Bond 1.625% 2025

E200 million & 5% fixed rate 2026

UE5150 million 3 225 private placements 2026
L5535 million 1.16% private placements 2026
£200 million 2 6235% foced rate 2027

£73 3 miflion 4.394% private plzcements 2028
245 million §.293% fixed rate 2030

£35 miflion 2.14% fixed rate 2036

£30 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

IFY T biflion 0.825% fiead rate 2040

Accumulated  Discoonted
Carrying  Proportion hedge hedge
walug hadged adjustment ¥ adjustment
Em " Em Em
2a0z 10D 11.8 -
igg3 50 8.1 5
ii6 7B 45
5.3 ioo 13 -
1935 =L 73
T4 100 T4 -
51 4 0 29
ix4 100 83 -
2095 106 105
A58 100 10§ -
1170.8 718
13238 L] 14 Z
2338 100 178
1948 50 53 -
1ip.4 TE i
Z5:.8 100 L& =
5L7 11 84 -
GE_2 100 8.5
503 F{i] a3 -
63 100 9.0
158 100 102 -
21 E 100 a4
13084 &30 -

M The accumulated hedge adjustment noted above is included within the carrying value of each
Instrument. The movement in the accumulated hedge adjustment is shown within fair value gains an
derivative financial instruments in the income statement,
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19. Financial instruments

Financial assets by category
Group
Aasels Bt Basets a1
fair value amartsed
through  Derivatives cost and Irvestments
iprofit usad for agh 3t amartised
and lozs hedging  equivalents st Taotal
Em £m Em £m tm_
At 31 March 2024
Investments
Current - cash deposits 5531 5521
Cath and cash eguivalents
Current = EAC 4 EiN5. 4
Trade and other receivables
Current . E17.7 E17.7
Derivative financial instruments
Current - o - 0.3
Mom-current 2iE3 15.2 - - 233.1
2169 LY 12231 55231 20081
At 31 March 2023
iInyestments
Current - cash deposits - - 318.7 k7
Cash and cash eguivalents
Current - 5130 5140
Trade ard other recefeables
Current =+ 5819 S81.9
Derivative financial Instruments
Current e 47.8 - 55.8
Norn-current 1291 5.3 it g
1874Q 113.2 A 0Esy 316.7 1 6668

Trade and other receivables above excude prepayments and VAT,
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19. Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets by category (continued)

Company
Aszets at
amartised
costand  Derivatves Investments
cash Used for at amortised
equivalents Hedging coat Total
Em i £m £m
Al 31 March 2024
investments
Mon-current - - 16953 1,695.3
Cash and cash equivalents
Current 10.3 = - 10,3
Trade and other receivables
Current 05 : i 05
108 : L6953 17061
Ak 31 March 2023
Investments
Non-current - - 16789 16789
Cash and cash equivalents
Current 176 - - 176
Trade and other recetvables
Current o7 N - 0.7
183 N 16789 16572

Trade and other receivables above exclude prepayments and VAT.
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19.

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial kabilities by category (continued)

At 31 March 2024

Barrowings
Current
Mor-cuerreit

Trade and other payahles
Cumrent

Dernvatve financial instruments
Current
Mom-current

At 31 March 2023

Borrowings
Current
Mor-Cuwrrent

Trade and other payables
Current

Dernvative financial instruments
Current
Non-current

Trade and other payables above exclude receipts inadvance, other taxes and deferred income.

Group
Liabidties a1 Dthier
fawr vakuz liahilites
throuagh Derivatives held at
prodit used far amqrtized
and los= hedging coat Taotal
Em £m Em £m
N - 11086 1,103.8
= - §7851 9,785.1
358.1 358.1
T9.6 13.2 92.8
589.9 108.6 - T96.5
T68.5 11%.8 112468 17136.1
7130 17130
- EOSER 8058 8
= = 3386 3336
246 BB - 534
2077 Bo1l - B2 8
B323 1145 101104 11,0576

148



Osprey Holdco Limited

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
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19. Financial instruments [continued)

Financial liabilities by category (continued)

At 31 March 2024

Borrowings
Current
Meon-Current

Trade and other payables
Cuwrrent

At 31 March 2023
Borfowings
Cuprrent
Trade and other payables
Current

Trade and other pavables sbove exclude receipts in advance, other taxes and deferred income,

Company
Oaker
abilitias
il a1
amartised
cosl Total
Em £m
54810 580
5031 503.1
16 1.6
1,052.6 1,051.6
102012 1,029 2
16 16
10302 1,030.8
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19. Financial instruments [continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Group
2024 2023
As5ens Lizbilities Aggans Liablitles
£m Em Em £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
interest rate swaps . (0.2} 313 (0LE)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 71 {15.4} 160 6.2
Emergy swaps 24 [23.8) 298 (29.2)
9.5 {43.4) 772 HE.I};I
Designated a5 fair value hedaes
Interest rate swaps - {54.8) 0= [54.1)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 7.6 {21.6) 35.1 (14.8]
7.6 (76.4) 360 (78.9)
Derivative financial instruments designated as
hedges 17.1 [119.8) 1132 {114 5
Dermvative financial mstruments not designated as
hedges
interest rate swaps 69.1 (80.2} 04 {104 9]
RPI swagps 129.3 [484.3) 1219 {505.0)
CPl swaps 15 (2050) 187 (224)
Total derivative financial instruments 234.0 (883.3) 2502 {347 2]
Derivative financial instruments can be analysed as
Tollows:
Current 0.9 [92.8) 55.8 (53.4)
Non-current 331 (7963) 1944  (E238)
240 (8893) /02 (3473

AL 31 March 2024, the fixed interest rates vary from 1.70 per cent ta 5. 86 per cent, floating rates vary
from SONIA plus 11,20 bps to SONIA plus 326,36 bps, RPI-linked interest rates vary from 1.27 per cent 1o
2.97 per cent plus RPI and CPiHinked Interest rates vary from negative 1.21 per cent plus CPI to 1,69 per
cent plus CPL Gains and losses recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated In the cash
flow hedge reserve on interest rate and cross-currency Interest rate swap contracts will be continuously
released 1o the income statement within finance costs in line with the repayment of the related
borrowings. Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash
flow hedge reserve on energy hedges will be released to the income statement within operating costs in
line with the expiry of the power seazon to which the gains and losses relate.

The Company
The Company has no derivative financial instruments {2023, nong).
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19.

Financial instruments (continued)

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are
reguired to be separately sccounted for if they do not meet certain requirements set out in the

standard. There were no amounts recorded in the income staternent for gains or losses on embedded

derivatives for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: £nil).
Leases

The minimum lease payments in respect of all leases fall due as follows:

Within one year
Between twio and flve years
After frve years

Future finance charges on leases
Prazent value of bease lizbilities

(6.2)
28.5

2073
Em
59

00

30

167)
313
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19.

Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Group
2024 2023
Carrying Fair Cartyirg Falr
walue walue WEILE walus
Em Em £m £m
Cash and cash equiialents B05.4 B05.4 51840 5184
Current asset investments - cash deposits ESLi 15K | 36T 3167
Bormowings
Current {L102.8) {1,000.3) (13,7130 (L7150
MNor-owrent {9,785.1) {3,911.3) (B 0568 |&.597 5)
Interest and cross currency interest rate swaps - assets
Current - 3.0 30.0
Mon-owrent a3.8 838 3.7 517
interest and oross currency interest rate swaps - Habllities
Current {L.1) L1} (18,7 {18.7)
Mon-current {175.1) {175.1) {1799} (175.9)
APl swaps - assets
Current - - 13 13
MNon-current 129.3 1293 170.0 110.0
APl swaps - liabifities
Current (2.5) {78.5) {20.3) {203}
Mon-current {405.8) {405.8) {a8a7 (e84
CPl swaps - assels
Current . . 55 5.5
Mon-current 185 185 47 L
CPl swaps - lizhilities
Current - . (0.5 i0.5)
mon-current {205.0) (205.0) (22L.9) (21219
Nzt debt [10,365.1)  (10,489.0) [3,E34.8) {10,175.4)
Energy derivatives - assets
Current 0.3 0.3 18.4 18.4
Mon-current L5 15 115 115
Energy derivatives - liabifities
Current [13.2) [13.2) 1218 {20.9]
Mor-current [10.E) (10.E) (7.3 {7.3]
_ {1o.38e5)  {10510.4) [@E301]  (102757)
Company
o : =
Carmying Fair Carrying Fair
wilae walise walus wliE
Em Em £m im
Cash and cash equivalents i3 163 176 176
Borrowings
Current (s48.0) (1,080.3) (1029 2) (1,030.3)
Mon-current (503.1) - o -
Net debt (L040.7)  (1,020.0) (Lo11e) (o127
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19.

Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of finandal assets and liabilities (continued)

The fair value of loans and other bormowings represents the market value of publicly traded debt
instruments or, if in respect of debt not publicly traded, the cost which the Group would incur if it
elected to repay these borrowings before their maturity dates, calculated by discounting future cash
flows at prevailing rates including credit spreads experienced on publicly traded debt instruments.

The fair value of interest rate derivative financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
methodalogy with reference to discounted estimated future cazh flows using obzervable yield curves.
The fair value of cross-currency interest rate derivatives is determined using discounted cash flow
methodology, with the foreign currency legs calculated with reference to observable foreign interest
rate yield curves and the forelgn exchange rate as at 31 March. The falr value of the Group's energy
derivatives is calculated using discounted cach flow analysis, with reference to observable market
energy prices at 31 March.

Fair values of othar non-current investmants, non-current trade and other recefvables and non-current
trade and other payables have been estimated as being materially equal to carrying value.

Derivative transactions expose the Group to credit risk against the counterparties concerned. The Group
has eredit protecticn measures in place within agreements which provide protection in the event of
counterparty rating downgrade or default. The Group only enters into derfvative transactions with
banks of high credit standing (as measured by reputable rating agencies) and also seeks to diversify
exposure such that concentration with individual banks is avolded.

In accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement', the financial instruments carried at fair value on
the balance sheet have been cassified as either level 2 or level 3 for fair valuation purposes, Both
classifications are valued by reference to valuation technigues using observable inputs other than
quated prices in active markets, Level 2 instruments are valued using inputs that are observable for the
asset or liability either directly or indirectly. The level 3 instrument valuation relates to CPi-linked
transactions whers inputs are obtained from 3 less liquid market. In both cases, valuations have been
obtained by discounting the estimated future cash flows at a rate that reflects credit risk.

There have been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements in the year,
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the
date of the event or change in circumstances that cawsed the transfer ocourred,

Level 3 derivative financial instruments

Level 3 derivative financial instruments comprise CPl-linkad inflation swaps which are traded based on a
spread to liquid AP inflation markets often referred to as ‘the wedge'. As the market for CPl swaps is still
developing, the wedge is not currently observable in a liquid market and as such these swaps have baen
classified as level 3 Instruments.
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19. Financial instruments [continued)

Movements in the year to 31 March for assets and liabilities measured at fair value using level 3
valuation inputs are presented below:

M 2023

_ Em Em

At 1 April {207.7) {322.7)
Met [lossesligains for the period [2.5) g4
Settlements 24K 0.5
At 31 March {185.5) {207.7)

Gains and losses in the pariod are recognised in the income statameant

The impact [on a post-tax basis) on the incorne statement of reasonably possible changes in the CPI
Inflation rate assumpbons used in valuing instruments classified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy

are as follows:;
024 PP
Em Em
Gain/{loss)
1% increase in inflation rates {124.9) 1435
13 decrease in infiation rates 108.7 1211

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this
represents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
term.

Control of treasury

The treasury team, which reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer, substantially manages the
financing, including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange for the Group. Treasury policy continues
to be focused on the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the
Group. The activities of the treasury function include the following:

* ensure that lenders’ covenants are met;

s secure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities;

* manage interest ratés to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs;

*  nyvest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk,

*  maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies,

* enhance controd of financial resources;

*  monitor countarparty oradit exposune,
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19.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financing structure

The Group's regulated water and water recycling business, Anglian Water Services Limited, is funded
predominately by debt in the form of long-term bonds and other debt instruments through its financing
subsidiary Anglian Water Services Financing Plc. At 31 March 2024, Anglian Water's net debt to capital

value ratio {net debt as defined in the Common Terms Agreement expressed as a percentage of Angfian
Water's regulated capital value) was 68.8 per cent (2023: 65.6 per cent).

The Group has also raised finance within the Company, and Osprey Acguisitions Limited through its
financing subsidiary Anglian Water [Osprey) Financing Pic.

Borrowing covenants

The Group's borrowings are raised by the company, Osprey Acquisitions Limited, Anglian Water {Osprey)
Financing Pic and Anglian Water Services Financing Pic. The treasury function monitors compliance
against all financial obligations and it is the group’s policy to manage the balance sheet so as to ensure
operation within covenant restrictions. There were no covenant breaches in the year,

Management of financial risk

Financial risks faced by the Group include funding, interest rate, contractual, currency, liquidity and
credit risks. The Group regularly reviews these risks and has approved written policies covering treasury
strategy and the use of finandal instruments to manage risks.

A Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, including the Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Treasurer, meets monthly with the specific remit of reviewing treasury matters. Refevant treasury
matters are reported to the board.

The Group aims to meet its funding requirements primarily through accessing a range of financial
rrearkets such as public bond markets, private placements, bank loans and finance leazes. Surplus cash s
invested in short-term bank deposits, commeercial paper, certificates of deposit, treasury bifls and AfA
rated money funds,

The Group also enters into derivative transactions (comprising currency, index-linked, interest rate and
energy swaps) to economically manage the interest, currency and commodity ricks to which the Group
I5 exposed.

Market risk

i) Foreign currency

The Group has currency exposures resulting from debt raised in currencies other than sterling and very
small purchases in foreign currencies. The Group's foreign exchange policy allows for a range of hadge
instruments, induding forward foreigh exchange, swaps and options, 1o hedge such expasures. All
hedges are undertaken for commercial reasons with the objective of minimising the impact of exchange
rate fluctuations on net assets and profits, The Group has no materisl unhedged monstary assers and
lizbifities denominated in a currency different from the local currency of the particular operation and
has no material net exposure o movernents in curmency rates,
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19. Financial instruments [continued)
a) Market risk (continued)

f| Forelgn currency

Where exposures anse out of debt issuances in currencies other than sterling, this risk is hedged using
CTOSs CUrrency interest rate swaps on the date the debt issuance is contracted. The Group assesses the
economic relationship by comparing the currency cash flows on the underlying debt item with the
currency cash flows on the hedge instrument to ensure an exact offset of the specific foreign currency
flows of the debt is achieved. This results in a notional hedge ratio of one for all foreign currency hedge
refationships. Both cash fiow hedge accounting and fair value hedge accounting are applied to manage
fareign currency risks as appropriate and detailed befow.

Within Batursen Batween

anm ano wnd frem and

yEar five yaars 15 years Totsl
At 31 March 2024
Foreign currency bomrowings - hedged item
7Y . - 725000  22,500.0
Ls0 - 23B.0 - 238.0
CAD - - 3500 350.0
Cross curmency interest rate swap - cashflow hedge
IPY - - (1550000  {15,500.0)
UsD - (89.00 - (89.0)
CAD : : {350.0) {350.0)

Cross currency interest rate swap - fair value hedge

18¥ .
LSO - (146.0)
'EIUI.D - =

(7.0000]  (7,000.0)
- {149.0)

Met curmency exposure -

Weighted average spot rate
1PY . . 154 4
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19. Financial instruments (continued)
a) Market risk (continued)
i} Foreign currency (continued)

Group
Withan Batwaen Batween
one o Bnd fiwe and
yEar frwe years 15 years Tatal
m m m m
At 31 March 2023
Foreign currency bormowings - hedged item
Y = - 120000 120000
ush 1700 185.0 330 4080
CAD . . 350.0 3530

Cross currency interest rate swap - cashflow hedge

(1o} T - (7.0060.0] (700000
LISD (10.8) (36.00 (53.00 (98.3)
CAD - - {350.0) {350.0)

Cross currency interest rate swap - fair value hedge

Iy - - (7, 000.09 {(7.000.0)
LsD [159.2) (125.00 - {308.2)
Met currency exposure -

Weighted average spot rete

I - - 1383 .
LsD L3 14 13 =
CAD - - 14 -

Hedge ineffectivensss on currency hedging primarily results from situations where we have taken the
economic decision {in line with Treasury policy) to change our fixed and floating portfolio mik, Where
this has required existing hedged positions to be changed, the existing hedge s de-desighated and the
replacement hedge will generate effectiveness. This ineffectiveness represents the difference between
the amortisation of the effective balance of the hedge on the date of de-designation (released on a
straight line basis) and the dynamic change in the value of the derivative as it trends to 2ero. In addition,
ineffectiveness can result from credit risk {which is present in the derivative but cannot be modelled as
part of the hedged rigk).

Fair valuation movements related to foreign currency basis which forms part of the pricing of cross
CUFFEnCY Interest rate swaps, are treated as a cost of hedging for all foresgn currency hedge dessgnations
within the Group. As such, it is excluded from hedge relationships and = only a source of ineffactiveness
where hedge accounting has been Interrupted.

The changes in fair value of the foreign currency basis spread, accumulated in the cash flow hedging
reserve, are amortised 1o profit or loss on a rational basis over the term of the hedging refationship.
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a)

Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk (continued)

i) Interest rate and inflation rate risk

The Group’s policy for the management of interest rate risk i to achieve a balanced mix of funding at
indexed (to RP1or CPI), ficed and floating rates of interest. To guard against the adverse movements in
interest rates having a detrimental impact on the buginess and to enable covenanted obligations and
credit ratings to be met, the overall underiying debt portfolic is maintained at between 45 and 55 per
cent of RCV for index-linked debt and between 5 per cent and 15 per cent for floating rate debt, with
the remaining being fixed rate. Within these hedging levels, the Group endeavours to obtain the finest
rates {lowest borrowing and finest depositing rates) consistent with ensuring that the relevant treasury
objectives are met in full, f.e. the provision of adeguate finance for Anglian Water Services Group at all
times and malntaining security of principal on investmeants,

The Group’s interast rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variabie rates
pxpose the Group 1o cash Mow interest rate risk, which [s partlzlly offset by cash held at variable rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rate expose the Group 1o fair value iInterest rate risk. Treasury manages its
Interest rate risk by monitoring market rates in relation 1o the debt (and investment) portfolios,
analysing the effect of lkely movements in interest rates and taking action as deemed appropriate,
within the hedging limits outlined above.

The table below summarises the impact of derlvatives on interest rate and inflation risks within the debt
portfolio:

Past Effective
bt Swap WAR ImTErest
pasitiaon impact positicn rate
Em Em Em M

At 31 March 2024
Fixed {6,035.7) 1816 (4,114.1) 45
Floating {1,399.7) {5393} [1,939.0} B3
Index-linked {3,3193) (1,735.9) (5.0552) 88
Leases {241 - (24.1) 27

{10,778.8) (353.6)  (11,132.4)

At 31 March 2023
Fixed [5,620.9) 15050 (4,1159) 12
Floaking {936.7) {1228} {1,059 5) 3.4
Index-linked [3.073.00 (1,722.1) (4.795.1) 14.1
Leases {71y . 27.1) 16

(9,657.7) (31398) (99976

Where exposures ansing out of debt issuances are swapped this risk s hedged using cross currency
interest rale swaps, interest rate swaps or inflation swaps. The Group astesses The economic
relationship by comparing the cash flows on the underying debt instrument with the affsetting cash
flows on the hedge o ensure an exact offser of the specified notional value of the debt is achievad. This
results in @ notional hedge ratio of one for all interest rate hedge relationships. Both cash flow hedpe
accounting and falr value hedge accounting are applisd as appropriate.
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19.

a)

Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk (continued)

i) Interest rate and inflation rate risk {continued)

Derivatives that do not quality for hedge accounting primarily consist of those relationships which swap
debt into inflation. The table bebow outlines the Group's exposures to interest rates from derivative
swaps in isolation (excluding offsetting debt instrument cashflows).

. o o . . . Group
Within Betwen Between
Bve one and fiveand After 25 Mark o interesl Fate
year fiweyears 25 years FEACE marker  |weighted averags]

Em Em Im Em Em payahle  receivable
At 31 March 2024
interest rate swaps
Floating to fixed . 994 25000 - (22 3] 412 53
Fixed to floating 75.0 295 G450 . [45.5] &0 EE
rixed to fioed E: jl62 5151 = 6.2 3.0 15
inflation swaps
Fhoating to AP 1500 - 23514 =03 (35E4) 32 57
Fixed £io O . . 5655 1000 {157.5) 10 i
Floating to CM - - 1504 - (29.1] 1.0 55
Cross cCUrmency swaps
»y - - 1458 - (30.4] 48 13
usD . 1598 . 143 Lo 32
CaD - - 2248 . (10.1) 3B 45
Total 250 13145 2749 2909  (633.8) B
At 31 March 2003
Interest rate swaps
Floating to fixed = 934 45010 - 13 2.8 43
Fixed ko fioating - 73112 1483 - (7&.1) 28 18
Fixed to fixed - 2188 3625 - (5431 is 1.7
infiation swaps
Fixed o AP - = = = = - =
Fioating to AP z 1500 2250 1208 (3910) 35 k]
Fixed to COF . . 5655 1000 {185.1) os 36
Floating to TP £ 5 1504 ] (42 5 0.8 18
Cross currency swaps
™ = 2 1oz = [16.7] 3z .3
Lso 1105 1287 40.3 - 470 £ 35
ELIR . . 2248 - 03] 3B 45

Total 1105 13287 22682 2009 (8976
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19.

a)

Financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (continued)
i) Interest rate and inflation rate risk {continued)

We follow critical terms match approach for assessing hedge effectiveness. Hedge ineffectiveness can
result from counterparty credit risk (which is present in the derivative but not In the hedged nsk). The
maturity profile of interest rate swaps in a cash flow hedge or fair value hedge relationship are given

below.

AL 31 March 2024
interest rate swaps
Floating to fixed - Cash
flow hedge
Fived 1o fioating — Fair
Yalue hedge

At 31 March 2003
Interest rate swaps
Floating to fixed = Cash
fiow hedge

Fixed to floating = Fair
Value hedge

Within

one ang and
year  five yaars
(1,1 Em
= 230
5545

250

- 4812

Eetween

frve and
25 yaars

5.0

250.0

1483

#fer 15
YOars

Wark 1o
markat

2.2}

{54 B}

IGE

{531l

Group and Company

Interes rEe
{weighted average]
payable  receivable

4.1 a.d
5.6 i
1B 23
29 18

The Group analyses its InTers<t rate exposure on & dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration refinancing, renawal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging
derivatives. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined

Interest rate shift.

The sensitivity of the Group's profits and equity, including the impact on derivative financial
instruments, 1o potential changes in interest rates at 31 March ks a5 Tollows:

Increasef{decrease] in equity
155 increase |nintsrest rates
1% decrease in interest rates

increase{decrease] In profit before tan

1% increzse ininterest rates
1% decrease in intenest rates

Group

24 M
Em £m
03 152
{0.2) (17.00
T1.8 1890
{90.3] {217 B}
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a)

Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk (continued)
i) Interest rate and inflation rate risk {continued)

Given the long-term maturity of the financial Instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current enviranment, ane per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this
represents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
term,

The following assumptions were made in calculating the interest rate sensitivity analysis;

¢ cash flow and falr value hedge relationships remain effective;

& rhe main falr value sensitivity 1o Interast rates is in relation o inflavon-linked derivatives;
s cash flow sensitivity s calculated on floating interest rafe net debt; and

+ all other factors are held constant.

Debt instruments
The following analysis shaws the impact of a one per cent change in RPI and a one per cent change in
CPlaver the 12-manth period to the reporting date on index-linked debt instrumenits.

The finance cost of the Group's index-linked debt instruments and derivatives varies with changes in
inflation rather than interest rates. These instruments form an economic hedge with the Group’s
revenues and regulatory assets, which are linked to RP and CPI-H inflation.

Inflation risk is reported monthly to the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, which manages
Inflation risk by identifying opportunities 1o amend the aconomic hedge currently in place where
desmed necessary,

The sensitivity at 31 March of the Group’s profit before tax to changes in RP| and CP1 on debt and
derivative instruments is set out in the following tables:

Group
Ml FaarL]
£m Em

Increasef{decredse] in profit before tax
1% Increase ininfiathon [28.1) [22.8]
1% decrease in inflation 281 28

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cent has been used for sensiivity analyskc 35 this

reprasents 3 reasonable afternative market movement, a5 well as a useful benchmark change in the long
term.
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a)

Financial instruments [continued)

Market risk (continued)

i) Interest rate and inflation rate risk {continued)
RPi-linked devivatives

The fair values of the Group's RPI-linked derivatives are based on estimated future cash flows,
discountad to the reporting date, and these will be impacted by an increase or decrease in RPI rates as
shown in the following table. The sensitivity to CPI rates has been included in the level 3 disclosure and
a5 such has not been repeated.

. Group
034 023
£m £m
Increasef{decrease] in profit befors tax
1% increase in RPI {137.1) {143.2)
155 decrease in RFI 112.5 1323

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this
represents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
T,

The Group recovers its electricity costs through revenue, set in real terms by Ofwat, to cover costs for

each five-year regulatory pricing period. To the extent that electricity prices remain floating over this
period, this exposes the Group to volatility in its operating cash flow.

The Group's policy is to manage this risk either through forward purchases to fix the cost of future
blocks of electricity with the contracted energy supplier, through the purchase of wholesale electricity
swaps with financial counterparties, or through direct generation. Where swap contracts are utilised,
the Group designates the swaps in cash flow hedge relationships.

G oup
Within Betwaen Betwasn

ong ane and free aind Mark ta

wEar e years 215 years marksr

MW MW LY £m
AL 31 March 2024

Electricity swap T2 1.0 = (213}
At 31 March 2023

Electricity swag 827 855 4.0 Q.7

Hedge ineffectiveness primarily results from counterparty credit risk (which 15 present in the derivative
but cannot be modelled as part of the hedged risk), There is no hedge ineffectivensss on any of our
SWap contracts,
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a)

B)

Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk (continued)
iif} Commodity price risk (continued)

Assuming all energy hedges were in effective hedging relationships, a 10 per cent intreass/decreass in
commaadity prices would have the following impact:

Group
00 mzy
£m im
increasef{decrease] in equity
105 increase in ofiginal prices 3.7 103
10% decrease in original prices (3.7 (10 3}

10 per cent has been used for sensitivity anakysis as this represents a reasonable alternative market
movement, as well as a useful benchmark change.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises principally from trading and treasury activities. From a trading perspective, the Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk due to minimising the risk through the effective
management of customer relationships and through the collateralisation inherent In the licensing of
business retail activities. The Group's largest trade receivable balance is in Anglian Water Senvices
Limited, whose operating licence prevents the disconnection of water supply to domestic customers
even where bills are unpaid. Irrecoverable debt is taken into consideration as part of the price review
process by Ofwat, and therefore no additional provision is considered necessary in excess of the
pravision for axpected credit loss allowance included in note 15,

Placements of cash on deposit expose the Group to-credit risk against the counterparties concemned.
The Group has credit protection measures in place within agreements that provide protection in the
event of counterparty rating downgrade or default. The Group only places cash deposits with banks of
upper Investmiant grade (as measured by reputable rating agencies) and also seeks 1o diversify exposure
such that concentration with individual banks s avoided. The credit rating applied to all counterparties
Is reviewed monthly and on an ongolng basls,

All cash and cash deposits are held with Institutions with a minimum of two short-term ratings of

P1/AL/FL ar higher, or in the case of money market funds with a minimum of two ratings of Aaam
MR1+/AAAm/ AAAMMIT or higher.

In the case of derivatives, the following table sets out the Group’s financial assets and llabilities and the
Impact of any enforceable master netting arrangements.

Financial assets and labilities on different transactions are only reported net if the transactions are with
the same counterparty, 3 legal right of offcet exists and the cash flows are intended to be settled on a
net basis. Amounts that do not meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance sheet but could be settled
net in the event of default of either party have been reflected in the offsetting column below.
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19. Financial instruments [continued)
b) Credit risk {continued)

Group policy requires that transactions are only executed with counterparties which are both (a) from
the lending Group and (b) rated at least A- (long-term) or Al (short-term) by Standard & Poor's,

Moody's or Fitch.
. = i Group
Difsetting
Me1 amount nat
Gross  presented n prEsented
CAITYNE tho balarnce tho balanoe Nt
Enrounts sheel sheet mmenunt
L £m_ m £m
At 31 March 2024
Derivative financial assets 234.0 2340 {12.4) ek M 13
Derivative financial lkabilities _ [BE9.3) {B89.3) 124 (876.9)
At 31 March 2023
Derivative financial assets 250.2 502 [93.1) 1571
Derivative financial fiabilities (947.2} (947 2] 53.1 {B54.1)

Gross amounts offset raprosent egual and opposite transactions with the tame counterparties and sarme
tarms on which no settlements are pald, Offserting not presented in the balance sheet reflects the
extent 1o which derivative azsets and liabilities could be offser with the same counterparty in the event
of counterparty default.

At 31 March, the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group s reprasented by the carrying amaunt
of each financial asset in the Group balance cheet;

Group
2004 0713
Em _Em_
Cash and cash egquivalents BO5.4 GIED
Trade and other recsivables 657.4 55E9
Imvestments - cash deposins 5521 367
Derivative financial assets 234.0 7503
Company
2004 023
Em £m
Cazh and cach equivalents 103 I7.6
Trade and other recevables 0.5 0.7

Mote 2t details the assestment made for the expected oredit losses for trade and other neceivables.
Mone of the other financial assets are credit impaired.
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b

d}

Financial instruments (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

The Company, as part of the Anglian Water Services Financing Group, guarantees unconditionally and
irrevocably all the borrowings and derivatives of Anglian Water Senices Finanding Plc, which at 31
March 2024 amounted to £8,911.9 million {2023: £8,080.1 milfion). The borrowings of Anglian Water
Services Holdings Limited and Anglian Water Services UK Parent Co Limited are also guaranteed
unconditionally and irrevocably by the Company. Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited and Anglian
Water Services UK Parent Co Lirited had no outstanding indebtedness at 31 March 2024 (2023: £nil).

During the peniod to 31 March 2024, there has been no change to the Group’s position from that
disclosed inthe 31 March 2023 consolidated financal statements.

Capital risk management

The prime respansibility of the Group’s treasury function i the efficient and effective managemaent of
financial resources within the Group, Le. the provision of adeguate finance and liguidity at all imes
while maintaining security of principal. This involves focus on efficiency, quality and effective control to
improve cash flow centainty and profitability. The treasury function will actively seek apportunities to
raise debt, 1o reduce the cost of funding and the cost of hedging interest rate and foreign exchange risk
while maintaining a risk-averse position in its iquidity management and in its control of currency and
interest rate exposures. The Group does not have externally imposed capital reguirements,

Recognising the level of gearing in the Group, and the long-tarm nature of the Group's asset basa, the
Group ks primarily funded from the debt capital markets. It is the Group’s policy to maintain sufficient
cash and/or borrowing facilities to meet short-term cormmitments and to provide working capital
support/flexibility in treasury operations in the event of short-term difficulties in the capital markets,
The treasury team actively maintain & good financial reputation with rating agencies, investors, lenders
and other creditors, and aims to maintain the relevant key financial ratios used by the credit rating
agencies to determine the respective credit ratings. The Group does not have any externally imposed
capital reguirements.

Liguidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access
to different markets and debt instruments. Dally cash management is undertaken to calculate cash
position and dealing requirements, and weekly and monthly cash forecasts are prepared to demonstrate
short/medium-term liguidity, covenant compliance and to inform investment strategy. Regular mestings
are held with cash forecasters to understand cash variances and challenge latest forecasts. Consolidated
cash forecasts are presented to the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group on 2 monthly basis.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity to cover 12 months’ working capital requirements, and the non-
regulated businesses are run on a cash-positive basis. internal policy Is to maintain 18 months' Rouidity
in terms of capital expenditure and operating costs in Anglian Water Services Limited, and 1o refinance
maturing debt at least three months in advance, 1o ensure covenant compllance.
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d)

Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met at that date:

24 2073
Em £m

Expires:
Within pne year 630.0 3750
Bebween two and five years 1,174.0 1 355.0

18040 15300

The Group's borrowing facilities of £1,804.0 million (2023: £1,630.0 million) comprise Class A debt
service reserve facilities totalling £294,0 million provided by H3BC Bank Pic, Sumitoma Mitsui Banking
Corporation and Assured Guaranty; 8 £131.0 million operating and capital maintenance expenditure
reserve facility provided by Bardays Bank Plc, BNP Paribas Ple, Uoyds TSB Bank Pic and Bank of Nova
Scotia; two syndicated loan facifities totalling £925.0 million for working capital and capital expenditure
reguirements managed by Barclays Bank Pic in the robe of fadlity agent and syndicated to a pool of
relationship banks; a bilateral facility of £50 million with MUFG Bank and a bilateral facility of £50.0
million with Bank of China Limited for general corporate purposes.

Osprey Acquisitions Limited Group's borrowing facilities, additionally, consists of £324.0 million
undrawn revolving loan faclities for general corporate reguirements.

Borrowing facilities at Aigrette Financing Limited Group comprises an additional £30.0 million revolving
loan facility provided by National Wecstminstor Bank Ple

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payable:
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19.

d)

Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

AL 31 March 2029

Trade and ather payables

Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments (nst
settied)

Derpvative financial instruments {pross
settied outfiow)

Derivative financial instruments (gross
settied inflow)

Leases

At 31 March 2023

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments {net
settied)

Derivative fnancial instruments (pross
settled outflow)

Derivative financial instruments (gross
settied inflow)

Leases

Giroup

ang

year
£m

(358.1)
{13200)

{175}
(22.0
6.8

(5.4}
(1,767.2)

{338.5]
(18155)

{11.7}
[131.5])
1595

_169)
[22847]

11502}
2450

(18.8]
15,231.5]

[3,403.4)
(403.8)
{1827}

2080

__ 1300
13.8075)

oy
five and

1% years
Em

{&.790.3)
(BS4.4)
(4723}

366.3

(59)
(8,757.1)

{7.B57.2}
(776.7)
(2220}

3918

L

{8.633.4)

Aleer 25
ears

[2,665.8]

(240.2)

[38)
{2,909.6)

(2,802 3)

{184 2)

37

Bz

Total

Em

(358.1)
(17,766.3)

(1,389.9)
(744.5)
628.1

(34.7)
118,665.4)

{3385)
(15,978 5]

(1,386.4)
{765.2)
a3

L
|17.746.2)
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19.

0.

Financial instruments (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

AL 31 March 2024
Trade and other payables
Bormowings

At 31 March 2023
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Deferred tax

At 1 Aprit 2023
Charged)credited) directly to

income statement
Charped directly to other
Comprehensive income
AL 31 March 2024

At 1 Agril 2022
Charged/{credited) drectly to
incomie statemant

Charped directly to other

cxmprehensive income

Within Bebtaoen
=11 one sind
year five years Total
Em £m £m
(18] - (1.8)
(B02.7) (637.2) [1,239.9)
(604.3) (637.2) [L241.5)
(16) - (LE)
{1,035.8) {12.8) {1,048 6)
(1,037.4) {12.8) (10502
We have used spot FX rates and forward interest rates to caloutate undiscounted cashflows,
Accalerated Ratirement  Tax kossas
1 Financial benefit carried
depreciation  nstruments obdigatien forvrard Ouher Toul
.1 .3 m = L ...
1,860.0 (94 3) 14.0 {366.9) (78 L4050
1389 54.0 14 {1853 {15) 6.5
(L9) (7.1} . = {9.0)
1,538.5 (a2.2) B3 (553.2) (3.3) 14025
16555 {2587 578 {85.3) (85 13331
1712 1e4 6 19 (280.6) o7 638
- 10.2] 1317 - - (31.9]
1 8600 (94.3) 14.0 {356.9) (78] 14050

At 31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset in accordance with 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes'.

The Group has the following deferred tax assets that are not recognised in the fimancial statements:

Corpoeate interast restrictons

Hroup

024 w023
Em Em
71.5 £7.9
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20.

1.

Deferred tax (continued)

Mew legislation was introduced from April 2017, restricting the amount of interest that a group can
offset against its tax fiabilities in any year. Any amounts restricted are available to carry forward against
future tax liabilities, so long as the company has the capacity to do so. The Directors believe it is
uncertain that the Group will have the capacity to utilise this disaliowed interest, and therefore the
Group has not recogniced a deferred tax asset in respect of these restrictions,

The Company
The Company has ho deferred tax (2023 none).

Net retirement benefit surplus

Pension arrangements for the majority of the Company's UK employees are of the funded defined
benafit type through the AWG Pension Scheme ("AWGPS”) Main section and Hartlepool section (a
defined benefit scheme for the emplovees of the former Hartlepool Water Limited, where the pension
scheme was transferred on 1 April 2000 which is now a section of the AWGPS). The defined benefit
pension arrangements are closed (o new pension accrual with effect from 31 March 2018,

The Company also manages an unfunded pension arrangement which has been valued by independent
actuaries to take account of the reguirements of AS19 ac at 31 March 2024, The provizion for unfunded
pension obligations relates 1o the cost of enhancements of fTormer employees, over and above their
gntitlernent in the company’s pension schemes. The rmajarity of these employees ceased their
employment following redundancy programmes principally between 10 and 20 years ago, These
pension enhancements are payable until the death of these former employees (or their dependants)
and payments are sxpected 1o be made over approsdmately 25 years.

The assets and labilities relating to the defined benefit scheme far the employvees of the former
Hartlepool Water Limited are held in 2 segregated section of the AWGPS. Hartlepool Water Limited was
acquired in July 1997, with trade and assets transferred 1o Anglian Water on 1 April 2000. However, a5
the Trustees assess the funding requirements of the Hartlepool section separately from the rest of
AWGRS, the Hartiepool section has been separately disclosed in the tables below.

On 23 May 2022 a buy-out of the Hartlepool section was completed resulting in a settlement of
liabifities. However, we note there are still some residual assets in the section.

On 14 September 2022, the Scheme completed 3 full buy-in of the MPLAP section, with the result that
pensions payable in the MPLAP section are matched by annuity policies.

Wirthin these schameas, employess are entitled to retirement benefits based on thelr final salary and
length of service at the time of leaving, or closure of, the schemes, payable on attainment of retirement
age lor earlier death).

On 31 March 2018, following 2 period of consultation with representatives of all employees, the defined
benefit sections of the AWGPS (including the Hartlepool section) were closed for future sccruals, From 1
April 2018 all employees now have the option to participate in a new high quality defined contribution
scheme which offers an equitable scheme with more flexible benefits.

The Group also has pension obligations to former employees through the Morrison Pension & Life
Assurance Pian ("MPLAF). In addition, pensians [n payment to a number of former employees are
unfunded.
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21.  Net retirement benefil surplus (continued)

The administration and investment of the pension funds are maintained separately from the finances of
the Group.

Full valuations as at 31 March 2020 have been completed for the AWGPS {including the Hartlepool
section) scheme, and for MPLAP, the results of which have been used as a basis for the 145 19
‘Employee Benefits’ disclosures as at 31 March 2024,

The Group has a plan in place with the scheme’s trustees to address the funding deficit for the Main
Section of the AWGPS by 2026, through a series of annual deficit recovery contributions.

Druring the year, the Group contributed £nil (2023: £21.7 million) deficit reduction payments. There
were no deficit reduction payments (2023 none) tor the Hartlepool Section due to the funding position
on the funding basis at the 31 March 2020 valuation.

Contributions to MPLAP, including an allowance for expenses, were £nil (2023: £4.4 million) during the
year.

In the year to 31 March 2025 employers' contributions are expected to be Enil.
The approximate weighted average duration of all the defined benefit obligation for AWGPS is 14 years.

The Group also operates a number of defined contribution schemes in the UK, and contributions to
these schemes amounted to £22.9 million (2023: £20.5 million), There is £nil outstanding balance on the
defined contribution scheme at year end (2023: £nil).

Court Ruling

A High Court legal ruling in June 2023 (Virgin Media Limited v NTL Pension Trustees || Limited) decided
that certain rule amendments between 1997 and 2016 contracted out defined benefit schemes were
irvalid if they were not accompanied by the correct actuarial confirmation, If the ruling stands it will
farm part of case law and will be applied across other pension schemes. The judgement 15 subject 1o
appeal with a hearing scheduled for 25 June 2024,

The lawyers for the IMI 2022 Deferred Fund (the Fund), Squire Patton Boggs, in conjunction with the
Fund administrators, Wills Towers Watson Ltd, are currently carrying out a review of the past amending
deeds. The risk of potential impact remaing and continues 10 be assessed.
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21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)
a) Principal actuarial assumptions
The liabilities of the Group's pension schemes have been valued using the projected unit method and

using the following assumptions:

Group
2034 023
% pa 'li Fa
Discount rate 4.8 a7
Inftation rate
HPI 13 £
CPl 29/ 2.5/ =
Increases to deferred benefits during deferment
e i3 34
(w3 2.9f2. 7% 29/2 75
Increasss to Infiation related pensions In payment
HP 3.2 32
P 2.9/8/A 29NN
years yoass
Longewty 3t age 65 for current pensionsrs (years)
Men 21571214 219921 4%
Waomen 24460723 g4 24,4273 gt
Longevity 3t age 65 for future pensioners {years)
Men 22881133 7% 23,2922 7%
Women 25,5025 24 25 gE/75 34

(h 1]
|

For RPl pension increases capped at 5 per cent per annum;
The life expectancy shown for future pensioners is for those reaching 65 in 2044,

¥ Life expectancies for ‘AWGPS, "Hartlepool’ and ‘'Unfunded pensioners’;

" Life expectancies for 'MPLAP';
B Inflation related assumptions for MPLAP.
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21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)
b) Sensitivity analysis
The following table sets out the sensitivity of the liabilities within the schemes to changes in the
financial and demographic assumptions.
Group
Unfunded
Change in AWGPS  Hartlepood MPLAP  pensions Total
assumptan Em im £m Em Em
e S - 3 . i .
Discount rate +f-0.5% pa 65,73 . g/10 4/2  -75/85
Rate of AP inflation +f- 0.5 % pa 66/-60 . 5/-5 211 73/-66
Life expectancy +f-1year Ealit : b/6 1 41/38
At 31 March 2023
Discount rate +f-05%pa -£3/76 - -10f11 -22 B0/89
Rate of AP inflation +f-05%pa 57/-56 . 515 2/-1 64/-62
Life expectancy H-lyear 3233 2 T/ 11 40/-40
& Dy to Foesding. uome rows may not add up i Bwe total
Changes 1o market conditions that influence the assumptions shove may also have an impact on the
value of the schemeas’ Investmant holdings. The extent 1o which these are managed |5 discussed in
section (¢} below, The sensitivities in the table above have been calculated by changing the key
assumption and leaving all others fixed, with the exception of the RP1 inflation assumption, which hasa
corresponding impact on Consumer Prices Index {'CP1°) inflation, pension increases and salary increases
due to the way the assumptions are darived, These changes in assumptions represent & reasonable
alternative range, as well as a useful benchmark change.
¢} Risk and risk management

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes, in commaon with the majority of such schemes in the UK,

have a number of areas of rsk, These aress of risk, and the ways in which the group manages them, are
set out below,

The risks are considered below from both & funding perspective (which drives the cash commitments of
the Group) and from an accounting perspective, e, the extent to which such risks affect the amounts
recorded in the Group’s financial stalements,

Assel volatility

For the purpose of setting the contribution requirements, the calculation of the value of the liabilities
uses a discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with allowance for additional return
to be generated from the investment portfolio, Under IAS 19, the defined benefit obligation is calculated
using & discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields,

The schemes hold a proportion of their assets in retumn-seeking funds, The return on these assets may
b volatile and are not correlated to the value of the lisbilities. This means that the deficit may be

volatile in the shorter term, which may lead to an increase in the contribution requirements and an
Increase in the net defined benefit liability recorded on the balanoe sheet.
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21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)
¢} Risk and risk management (continued|

The Group befieves that return-seeking assets offer an appropriate level of return over the long-term for
the level of risk that Is taken, The schemes’ other assets are well diversified by Investing in a range of
asset classes including government bonds and corporate bonds. The allocation to growth assets is
maonitored to ensure it remains approprizte given the schemes’ long-term abjectives.

change in bond yields

A fall In bond yields increases the value placed on the llabilities for reporting purposes and for setting
the Group's contribution requirements, However, in this scenario the schemes’ investment in corparate
and government bonds and liability-driven investments i expected to increase and therefore offset
some of the increase in the value placed on the liabilities,

Price inflation

The majarity of the schemes' benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher out-turn inflaticn will
lead to a higher benefit abligation (although in mast cases caps on the level of inflationary increases are
in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). A significant proportion of the schemes’ assets do
not provide a direct hedge against changes in inflation as they are either fixed-interest in nature
{corporate bonds and government bonds), or have an indirect fink to inflation {equities).

Life expectancy

The majority of the schemes’ obligations are to provide benefits for the fife of the member and, as such,
the schemeas’ liabilities are sensitive to these assumptions. This is particularly significant where tha

longer duration and inflation-linked nature of the payments result in higher sensitivity to changes in life
expectancy. The schemes do not contain a hedge against increases in future life expectancy,

173



Osprey Holdco Limited

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2024

21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)
d) Amounts recognised in comprehensive incomse

Group
Unfunded
AWGES  Hartlepool MMpLAR pEnEIanG Torsl
£m Em Em Em Em
2024
Amounts [charged)/credited to finance costs
interest income on scheme assets 513 = (8- - 58.1
Interest cost on scheme habiities (47 2] . e8] (15) (55.5)
Net interest Income/|expense) 41 - . {1.5) 16
Amounts credited flcharged) to the income
statement 4.1 — = {1.5) LE
Amounts [charged)/credited to other
comprehensine INCome
Return on plan assets [exciuding amounts
included in net interest} {56.0 0.5 {19 - {57.4)
Actuarial galns/[losses) arsing from:
Changes in finandial assumptions 31 - 2.4 0g 384
Experience adjustments (8] : (05] (032} {25}
Met (charge)/credit to other comprehensive
mcome (29.7) 0.5 - 07 (15
Urfundec
AWGPS  Hartepool MFLAR pEnsiong Total
£m Em Em £m £m
2023
Amaunts credited/[charged] to finance costs:
lrterest inocome on scheme assets 43.2 0.z .9 - 50.3
interest cost on scheme Habllities {27.4) (.13 [5.4) (1,1} [44.0)
Met interest income/{expense} 58 0.1 L5 (1.1} 6.3
Amounts credited/[charged] to the income
statement 5.8 .1 1.5 (1.1} 6.3
Amounts credited/{charged) to other
comprehensive income:
Return on plan assets [exciuding amounts
included in net interest] [518.2) (3.3) [108.4) . (630.9)
Achiiarial gains arising from:
Changes in finzncial assumptions 438.3 2.3 57.4 2.5 S08.5
Changes in demographic assumptions -
Experience adjustments {7497 - (£.9) (2.3} {84.1)
MNet [charge)/credit to other comprehensive
Income (1548)  (1.0)  (57.9) 72 (206.5)
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21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)
e} Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

1024

Equities

Cotporate bohds

Government bonds

Property

Alternatives

Fooled LD investments [with def of LDI)
Derivatives

Repurchases

Insurance contract

Cash and cash equialents

Total assets

Present vatue of scheme liabiities
Met pension surplus

Comgrising:
Fension schemes with a net surplus,
included in non-current assets
Pension schemes with 2 net deficit,
included in mon-current Eabilities

AWGPS

Em

BE.3
3260
799.7

333

731

752
[26.5]

(4251

1175
10615
(999.1)

6.4

E24

Hartlzpoal

Em

o7

04
11

A

11

MELAR

1456
Fa
145.0
{145 6]

L)

.4

04

Unfuwnded
[REmERNS

(30.9)
(30.3)

{30.9)
(30.9)

Total

Ba.3

794.7
33.3

75.2
(26.5)
(#25.1)
145.6
118.3
1,208.6

[1,175.5)
33.0

63.9

(30.9)
330
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21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet [continued)

€)

023

Equities

Corporate bonds

Government bonds

Property

Alfernatives

Pooled LDI investments (with def of LDI)
Deratives

Repurchases

Insurance confract

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Present value of scheme liabilities
Met pension surplus

Comgrising:

Pension schemes with a net surplus,
Included In nom-current assets
Pension schemes with a net deficit,
included in non-current Ealbilities

AWGPS
£m

B4.0
2571
11397
7.0
B2.5
730
(s0.4)
(730.3]

1552
11178

{1,029.9]
BE.0

BE.O

BE O

Hartlepaal

£m

0.6

06

06

0o

A

MpLAR

1450
0.4
145.4
{145.0}
0.4

e

a4

Unfunded
PEnEEORE

{33.0}
(33.0)

Group

Totl
£m

B4O
2971
1,1403
67.0
B2 6
730
(50.4)
{730.3]
1490
1356
1,257.8
{1,211 5)
56.0

B0

(330
5.0

The scheme asseis do not include any of the Group's own financlal instruments, nor any propearty
occupied by, nor other assets used by, the Group. Most of the assets have guoted prices in activa
markets, but there are corporate bonds, altermative investments and insurance contracts, which are
unguoted amounting 1o £92.8 million (2023: £235.0 million].
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21.
f)

Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)
Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

At 1 Agri 2023

Interest income an scheme assets
Administration costs

Employers’ contritutions

Members' contributions

Benefits paud

Introduction of nsured annuitants
Aeturn on plan assets exciuding interest
incorme)

Al 31 Miarch 2024

At 1 April 2022

Interest income on scheme assets
Employers contributions

Benefits paid

introduction of insured annuitants
Return on plan assets {exciuding interest
Incame]

Akt 31 March 3023

G o

Unfunded
AWGPS  Hartiepool MELAR PEREHINE Toml
Em Em Em Em Em
111749 06 1294 179
513 - [ 8.1
- - 28 29
5L 3 {8.3) (2.5} (62.9)
{56.0) 05 {15) (57.4)
1,061.5 11 1860 - 12086
12320 185 2550 1LEA55
4332 02 6.5 . 502
218 43 2.7 289
{59.9) (0.1} {B.4) 27 (7L1)
{14.7) = (14.7)
{519.2) {3.3) {108.4} [630.9)
11179 & 1494 1,678
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21.  Net retirement benefit surplus (continued)

22,

3.

g} Reconciliation of scheme liabilities

Giroup
Unfunded

AWGPS  Harlepool MBLAR PEnEARE Torsl
im £m im £m £m
At 1 April 2023 (1,029.9] {149.0} (3300 (L2119
Interest cost on scheme lbilities (47.2) |6.8 (15} (55.5)
Benefits pald 5.7 33 19 62.2
Actuarial gains 263 19 0.7 28.9
At 31 March 2024 [959.1) [145.6) (30.3)  (1,175.6)
At 1 April 2022 {1,416 8] (17.00 {202.6) (218 {LE782)
irterest cost on scheme fiabilites (37.4) (0.1) (5.4) {11} (44.0)
Benefits paid 559 01 35 27 32
Achuarial gaing 364 4 23 50,5 T2 424 4
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings 147 - - 147
At 31 March 2023 {1,025.9] - {1490} (330} (L2119

Share capital
Group and Company
2024 w3
Imy Em

Authorised, ssued and fully paid

54 Bi5,751, 651 ordinary shares of £000055 each (2021 £0.03 each] 3.5 s
3015 3015

There were no movements in the number of shares allotbed, ssuad and fully paid in either the cumrent

or preceding year.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no dividends were paid by the Company to its sole shareholder,

Anglian Water Group Limited (2023: £91.8 million (£0.002 per share)).

Hedging reserve

Ar 1 Aperil

Losses on cash flow energy hedges

Amounts transferred to the income statement
[Losses)ygains on cash flow hedges

Amounts transferred to the income statement from discontinuation of cash flow

hedges

Exchange movement on hedging mstrurnents related to debt in cash flow hedges

Deferred tax movemnent on cash flow hedges
Al 31 March

Em
178
{50.2)
275
(0.9)

48
14.6
13
14.3

2003
204
(229)

(40,0}
487

&9
111
il
17.8
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23.

Hedging reserve {continued)
Cost of hedging reserve

Group
2ika 2033
Em £
At 1 Al 1.7 03
[Losses)/gains on hedge relationships [&.7) 18
Deferred tax movement on hedge relationships 0.6 {0.4)
AL 31 March (0.4) 1.7

The hedging reserve reprasents the cumulstive effective portion of gaing and losses ansing on the
change in fair value of hedging instruments, excluding those fair value movements identified as costs of
hedging within the specific hedge relationship. The cost of hedging reserve captures the movement in
the fair value of the cost of hedging component.

The Company
The Company has no hedging reserve (2023 nonel.

The table below provides additional infarmation in relation to the annual movements and cumulative
closing positions an the cazh flow hedge resenves,

Gredp
© Annual movements Cumulstive reserves
Deferred
Hedgze Total hedge  Tomwl hedge tax
Hedged item  ineffectiveness TESETVEE TESErvEs on hedge Total hedge
gainlass) EBin cantinuing  discontinued PEbarves FEdErvEs
£m £m Em Em £m £m
AL 31 March 2024
Cash fiow hedge of
interest rabe risk {75.2) - 31 160 {4.8) 14.3
At 31 March 2023
Cash flow hedge of
interest rate risk {26.1) = 5.2 (39.2) {6.5] 95
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4.

5.

Capital commitments
The Group has a substantial long-term investment programme within Anglian Water, which includes
expenditure to meet regulatory requirements, shortfalls in performance and condition, and to provide

for new demand and growth. The commitments shown below reflect the value outstanding of orders
placed at 31 March.

Hadd 0323

Em £m

Property, plant and equipment 5.8 2158
intangible assets 58.6 263
644 2421

There were no capital commitrments relating to the Group's share of joint ventures.

The Company
The Company has no such commitments (2023: none),

Lease arrangements

The Group leases various items of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets sre included
within property, plant and equipment on the balance cheet, further details can be found in note 12,
Lease liabilities are included within borrowings on the balance sheet, further details can be found in
note 18,

Broup

2024 2023

Em £m

Additions to right-of-use assets 3.6 5.1

Depreciation charge for night-of-use assets (6.9) (6.5}

Earmying amount of right-of-se assets 644 67.7

Interest expense on lease liabilities [L.1] (0.8}

Expense relating to short-term keases 19 3.2

Total cash outfiow for leases comprising inkerest and cpital payments [8.1) 7.2}
Reconciliation of lease liability

Contractual undiscounted cash flows 347 379

Effect of discounting 6.2} (6.6}

Lease liability 85 13

The Group leases certain ams of plant and equipment, as well as vehicles, under short-farm leases, At
31 March 2024, the Group had £0.4 million (2023: £0.1 million) outstanding commitments in respect of
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellzble shor-term leases. The Group doss not typically
lease low value assets and therefore no matenal costs were incurred Individually or in aggregate in
relation to such assets,

Leases as lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties, During the yvear to 31 March 2024, rental income of £1.9
million (2023: £2.0 million] was included within révenue.
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26.

Contingencies

In April 2020, circa 100 property search companies served proceedings on all the Water and Sewerage
Undertakers (“WASCs") in England and Wales, including Anglian Water Services Limited (“Anglian
Water"), seeking damages on the basis that information which the search companies had reguested
should have been provided free of charge or for a nominal fee pursuant to the Environmental
Information Regulations ("EIR"). In comman with its co-defendants, Anglian Water has filed a robust
defense. A first stage trial took place during Nevember and Decemnber 2023 during which the court
heard arguments focusing on the extent to which the information requested by the Claimants fell within
the scope of the EIR. The court also heard evidence regarding the extent to which the information was
rmade available. At this stage the Directoss consider, based on the judgement recsved in relation 1o the
first stage trial and legal advice received, that the claim s unlikely 1o succeed and, In any event, would
nat to be material to the financial standing of the Company.

Ofwat and the Environment Agency ("EA") launched industry-wide investigations in 2021 into
compliance with conditions of environmental permits. Ofwat's focus is potential non-compliznce with
legistation and with license conditions {referred to as the Flow to Full Treatment investigation). In
December 2023, Ofwat issued 3 press release explaining that it had notified Northumbrian Water,
Thames Water and Yorkshire Water of its provisional findings in light of the evidence that had been
gathered and that it was continuing 1o progress three further wastewater enforcement cases opened as
part of its investigation (induding the case against Anglian Water). The EA's investipation (referred to as
Operation Standard) is also ongoing. The Company has provided comprehensive information to both
regulators and continues to engage positively with them.

In December 2023, Professor Carolyn Roberts {acting as proposed the Proposed Class Representative)
iesued proceedings against Anglian Water afleging that the company has abused {and continues to
abuse} its dominant position, in breach of section 18 of the Competition Act 1998. Parallel proceedings
have been issued against five other WASCs. Professor Roberts alleges that the WASCs have provided
misleading information to the EA and to Ofwat with the result that Ofwat has allowed companies to
charge customers higher prices for sewerage services than would otherwise have been permitted. As it
s proposed to progress the claim as a class action in the Competitior Appeal Tribunal on biehatf of all
relevant custormers, the daim will need to be certificated befors it can proceed to 2 substantive trall,
The Directors consider that this apphcation of the Competition Act is axtremely novel and that there are
a number of significant hurdies which must be overcome by the Claimant in connection with this
litigation. Accordingly, therg is no basis to conclude that the claim will be successful. There is also
material overlap between this claim and Ofwat's and the EA's investigations {referred to abave).

As fs normal for 3 company of this size and nature, it s subject 10 @ number of ather daims, disputes and
litigation, The Directors consider an appropriate position has been taken in reflecting such items in these
financial statements.
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28.

B)

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

Osprey Holdeo Limited is a limited liability company incorporated and domicibed in England and Wales.
The Directors consider Anglian Water Group Limited, a company registered in Jersey, to be both the
immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and the controlling party of the group. Anglian Water
Group Limited is itself owned and wltimately controlled by a consortium of investors consisting of the
CPPIB (Hong Kong) Limited, First Sentier Investors, Infinity Investments S.A., Global InfraCo (HK] E
Limited and Camulodunum Investments Ltd.

Anglian Water Group Limited is the parent company of both the smallest and largest group to
eonsolidate the financial statements of the company. Copies of the Anglian Water Group Limited
ftnancial statemants can be obtained from the Company Secretary, af the registered address, Lancaster
House, Lancaster Wiy, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE2S XL

Related party transactions
Transactions with shareholders

The consortium of investors owning Anglian Water Group Limited are considered to be related parties of
the company as they each have the ability to influence the financial and operating policies of both the
company and the Group.

On 09 June 2023, a loan of £462.0 million, with a maturity date of 29 June 2027 and an interest rate of
Bank of England base rate plus 6.5 per cent, was issued to the members of the consortium of investors
owning Anglian Water Group Limited. At 31 March 2024, the amount outstanding was £462.0 million
(2023 £462.0 million), with interest of £41.1 million (2023: £19.2 million] accrued but not paid. During
the vear, Interest of £25.4 million (2023; £25.4 million) was pald In respect of these loan noles,

During the year to 31 March 2024, there were no other transactions (2023: none) with the shareholders,
Transactions with key management

Key management personnel comprise all the directors and metnbers of the managemaent board during
the year. A scheme is in place 1o encourage investment in the Group by key management on an
equivalent basis as the consortiurm of shareholders. During the year £0.1 million (2023: £0.3 million ) was
invested by key management, inclrming a foss of £0.2 milion (2023: £0.1 million earning). No repayment
wias made in the year as part of this scheme. The £1.8m bond held by key management in previows years
has matured and there are no other bonds held by key management as at 31 March 2024

Remuneration of key management personne|

Group

2022 2039

Em £m

Enort-term emoloyes benefitg 7.2 B9
Post-employment benefits 0.4 0.5
15 14
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28. Related party transactions {continued)
) Transactions with joint ventures
The Group's transactions with its joint ventures are summarised below.

During the yvear ended 31 March 2024, the Group made gross sales on an arms-length basis of £204.3
million (2023: £192.0 million) to the Wave joint venture, and recognised interest receivable of £2.2
milion (2023: £1.9 million). At 31 March 2024, the following amounts were due from the Wave joint
VENture:

* A £10.7 million (2023 £10.7 million) 5.5 per cent medium-term loan repayable on 31 August 2027,
or such other date a5 mutually agreed between the parties, included within investments in joint
vEntures;

* A f£16.7 million {2023; £16.7 million) loan at 12 month LIBOR plus 2.75 per cent with no fixed
repayment date, included within trade and ather receivables;

¢ A £33 million (2023 £4.6 million) short-term working capital facility at one manth LIBOR plus 2,75
per cent, included within trade and other receivables; and

s Accrued income of £13.4 million (2023: £8.3 million), trade receivables of E£nil million (2023: £nil)
and Tnterest receivable of £2.2 million (2023 £1.7 million), included within trade and other
receivables,

d) Parent company
The Company’s related party transactions are summarised below:

vl | FuirE]
£m m
interest received from
Subssdiaries 15 11
Dividends received from
Subsidianes 318 1400
Dividends paid to
Parent company = (+1 8]
2024 2023
£m Em
Trade and other payables due to
Subsidiaries 16
Loans and other borrowings due to
Barent company (348.0) {348.0]
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29,  Alternative performance measures

Financial measures or metrics used in this report that are not defined by IFRS are altemative
performance measures, The Group uses such measures for performance analysis because they provide
additional useful information on the performance and position of the Group. Since the Group defines its
own altemative performance measures; these might not be directly comparable to other companies'
alternative performance measures. These measures ane not intended to be a substitute far, or superior
to, IFRS measuraments and have been consistently applied within each year presented in thege financial
sratements,

al EBITDA

Calculated as profit before net finance costs, tax, depreciation, and amortisation 1o give a measure of
the company's overall financial performance. Each element of this APM Is shown an the face of the

Income statement,

Group
2024 23
£m Em
EBITOA B05.1 BOO.0
ket Tinance Incomefcosts) [419.8] {149.7]
Tax charge (7.1} [54.5)
Depreciation & amortisation [391.7) {38L.7)
Share of joint venfures’ loss after 1ax 2.4 (0.4)
Profitf{Loss) for the period {11.1) 203.7

b} Adjusted finance costs

Caleulated as net finance costs excluding fair value gains on dervative financial instruments, These fair
value gains are volatile, non-cash movements that distort the actual underlying economic performance,

Group

w028 2023

im £m

Net finance costs excluding fair value gains on derivative instruments ie2a.7) (7950
Fair value gains on derivative instruments 0.9 E45.5

Net Finance costs; including Tafr value gains on derivative instrements {215.8] {149.7]
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29, Alternative performance measures [continued)
e} Adjusted foss before tax/Loss before fair value gains

Calculated as profit before tax excluding fair value gains on derivative financlal instruments, The
calculation is shown on the face of the income statement. These fair value gains are volatile, non-cash

movernents that distort the actual underlying economic performance.

Group
2034 2023

: e Em

Adjusted loss before tax/Loss before fair value gains (211.3) 3767)
Tax charge (7.1) (B4 5]
Fair value gains/Tiosses) on dervative financial instruments 2049 6453
24 (0.4

Profit/{loss) for the period [11.1) 237

d) Adjusted net debt

Adjusted net debt comprises borrowings, net cash and cash equivalents, and dervative financial
instruments [excluding those in respect of fair value energy hedges). This measure is used because it
provides additional useful information in respect of the financing of the business, See note 16 and

below.
Group
Pkl Fiar]
Em_ Em
Net cash and cash equivalents Bl5.4 L1EO
Current asset imestments 552.1 3167
Borrowings {10,B888.7) {0,771 B)
Met debt excluding derivatives {9.731.2) [B.937.1)
Derivatives [655.3) {687.0)
Less: energy derhatives 1.4 0.7
Adjusted net debt (10,365.1) {9,534 B)
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29,  Alternative performance measures [continued)

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation
of the business is predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this
retationship, the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Services
Limited and therefore interested parties should read the disclosure below, which is an extract from the
Anglian Water Services Limited annual integration report [AIR). A such, the alternative performance
measures referenced below refer to Anglian Water Services Umited.

&) Interest cover

Interest cover 1 the ability of the Company to pay Interest of on itz outstanding debit out of operating
cash flows. The table below shows the operating cash value less ROV deprediation, compared to the net
interast paid during the year to show the interast cover.

Group

2024 023

£m £m

DOperating cash 767.1 7109

RCWY run off fa75.2) {423.5)

914 2878

interest cash {181.9] (124 €]
Net interest income exchuded under CTA ) {2.5) fo-g}

{184.3) {185.2)

Interest cover {1E] 16

fl Capital investment

Capital investment is the total property, plant, and equipment, and intangibles additions less capitalized
Interest, adopted assets, and caphtal additions in the non-appointed business. This is used as 3 measure
to help us monitor how we are achieving our Business Plan commitments,

024 plirE]
£m £m
Property, plant and equipment additions 1,044.0 T334
Intangible assets addition 582 823
Capitalisad interest {71.0) (403
Adopted assets (48.2) (46,0
Norrappointed business (1.3} (13
fiems shown as stock {18.3] [2.5]
Capital investment 963.4 7250
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29,  Alternative performance measures [continued)

gl Free cash flow

Free cash flow i used in determining cash conversion and s calculated as cash from operating activitias,
less net interest of cash deposits, less capital maintenance.

Group

034 1023

b L]

Dperating cash T6T.1 TS
Interest on cash [181.B) {184 5]
Les=: niet interest {income)/ costs excluded under CTA [2.5) (0.5
Capital makntenance {341.0) {326.2)
Free cash flow . 8 1585

30. Ewvents after the balance sheet date

There have been no events between the balance sheet date, and the date on which the finandal
statements were approved by the Board, which would reguire adjustment to the financial statements or

any additional disclosures.
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31 Group undertakings

The Group's subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2024 are shown below. Unless otherwise disclosed. all
subsidiary undertakings are incorporated in the UK, are 100 per cent owned, and with a share dass of

ordinary shares,

Dwned directly by Osprey Holdeo Limited
Anglian Venture Holdings Limited
Morrison Limited

Daprey Acguisitions Limited

All subsidiary undertakings
Algrette Financing Limited
Afgrette Financing |lssuer) Plc
Alexander Morrison Limited
Alpheus Environmertal Lirmited
Ambury Developments Limted
Anglian Venture Holdings Umitsd
Anglian Water (ireland) Limited
Anglian Water [Osprey) Financing Plc
Anglian Water Direct Limited

Anglian Water International Holdings Limited

Anghan Water Internationa Limited
Anghian Water 3endces Financing Pl

Anglian Water Senvices Holdings Limited

Anglian Water Senvices Limited

Anghan Water Services UK Parent Co Limiteq

AVH Parks Lirmited

AVH Solar Limited

AWG Business Centres Limited
AWGE 4 Uimited

AWE Central Services Limited
AWG Corporate Services Limited
AWG Grown Lirmited

AWTG Land Holdings Limited
AWGE Outlet Centers Limited
AWG Parent Co Umited

AWG Property Developments {Irefand) Limited

AWG Property Director Liméted
AWG Property Limited

AWG Residential Liméten

AW Shalf 11 Liméted

Registered Percentage
office holding
a
E|

oo MM B D OB B B M B B G B B B R B B DY B P B B B O B
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31.  Group undertakings (continued)

All subsidiary undertakings (continued)
Cambuslang Retail Portfolio Limited
Chester [1995} Limited
it Amenities Umited
DWWS E19 Limited
DMWS 822 Limited
DS 823 Limited
DMWS 524 LLp &
Ecmund Homes Limied
Graham Strest Alrdrie Retall Porfollo Limited

Macrocom [743) Limited
Morrison {Qidoo) Limited
Marrisan Glosha Limited

Morrison International Limited
MWarrison Property Investments Limited
Osprey Imvestoo Limited

Rutland Insurance Limited

Valuetype Limited

Wave Emvironmental Limited

Wave Holdings Limit=d

Wave LitHities Limited

Wave Wzier Limited

E

hoiding

LI = = R R U o o o o N oD o oD R W %5

7%

95.99%
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31.  Group undertakings (continued)

Joint ventures

anglian Water Business (National} Limited
AWE Outlets {Rathdowney) Limited
Cambridge & LLP

City Road Properties [Chester) Limited
Crowewood Grange Estates Limited
Hallowstone Limited

iangs Waterfront Propertiss Limited
Morrison Gwent Limited

Marrisan Leneghan (RL Limited

Maorriscn Properties Limited

Marrison Residential Properties Limited
WWG Business Limited

Rathdowney Shopping Centre Management Company Limited
NVE Rathdowney Limited

Wave Ltd

Registered

Percentage
holding

= MR o= O OB M O & B R R R e

W The principal place of business of these companies is the same as the registered office address.

Registered offices

b}
c}
d)
e}
fl

Laneaster House, Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambrdgeshire, PE2S BXLI,

United Kingdom,

/o Brodies LLP, Capital Square, 58 Morrison Street, Edinburgh EH3 BBP,

Suire 8, Northwood House, Northwood Business Campus, Santry, Bublin 9, reland.

Gth Floor, Southbank House, Barmow Street, Dublin 4, Ireland.

PO Box 33, Dorey Court, Admilral Park, 5t Peter Port, GY1 4AT, Guernsey, Channel kslands.

Morthumbria House, Abbey Road, Pity Me, Durham, DHL 5F), United Kingdom.

For all companies, the registerad office is located in the country of incorporation.

Under section 4 79C of the Companies Act 2006, Osprey Holdeo Limited gives a parent company
guarantes in respect of all outstanding Ifabilities as at 31 March 2024, until the llabilities are satisfied in
full, fior the following subsidiary companies. Under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006, the

following subsidiaries are therefore exempt from the requirements relating 1o the audit of individual

ACCOURTS,
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31.  Group undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings guaranteed by Osprey Holdco Limited

Alemcander Morrison Limited
Alpheus Emvironments! Umited
Ambury Developments Limited
Anglian Venture Holdings Limited
Anglian Water Direct Limited

Anglian Water International Holdings Limited
Anglian Water International Gmited

AWG Busimess Centres Limited
BWG 4 Limited

AWG Central Services Limited
AWG Group Limited

AWG Land Holdings Umited
AW Parent Co Limited

AW G Property Limited

AWG Residential Limited
AWDG Shelf 11 Limited

AVH Parks Limited

AVH Salar Limited

CWRP Retocation Limited

Graham Street Airdrie Retail Portfolio Limited

Wacrooom [743] Limited
Maorrison International Limited
Morrison Limited

OHL Land Holdings Limited
OHL Praperty Holdings Limited
Tide Services Limited
Valuetype Limited

Wave Water LimAed

Morrison (Ofdco) Limited

SO038RET
024524091
4173203
OB43E2 12
03306995
0024769
D27253ES
05844645
L17E7247
D41TETLZ
02366618
D4530ER3
03536645
SC0E7190
sC0E2292
SC115060
10177651
14277y
12219644
SCAT1032
L2 23103
SCI0652
04700725
12185958
11TEISED
11145202
02555548
DZT0ET4S

SC1T2855
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31.  Group undertakings (continued)
Dissolved companies

Durirg the year ended 31 March 2024, the following Group subsidiaries were dissolved:

Company Name Date of dissolution
Anglian Water Facllities Management Holdings [UE] Limited 20 February 2024
AW Creative Technologies Limited 12 March 2024
AW |UK) Holdings Limited 12 March 2024
AWG Property Solutions Limited 20 February 2024
H2Ga Limited 20 February 2022
Morrison Holdings Limited 20 February 2024
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independent auditor's report to the meémbers of Osprey Holdco Limited
Report on the audit of the financlal statements
Opindon

in our opdrioe

e the finanoal statements of Osprey Holdoo Limitsd (the ‘parent compamy®) and its subsidianies (the groug’) g2
@ true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affalrs as at 321 March 2024 snd of
the group's profit for the year then ended;

e the proup financial statements have been propetly prepaced in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
international accounting stendards and Internafional Financial Reporting Standards [IFASs) 35 issued by the
Imternatonal Accounting Standards Bosrd (1ASB],

& the parent company financial statements have been properiy prepared m accordance with United Bingdom

sdapted internathonal sccounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2008 and

& the financial statements have baen prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies &ct 2006,
We have sudited the financial statements which comprise:

&  the group income statement;

*  the group statement of comprehensive income

*  the group and company balance theets,

o the group and company statements of changes in eguity:
o IR EPOUR 3RS CoMmpany chsh flow stetement. gnd

&« therelated notes 1 to 31

The financisl reporting framewaork that has been applied in their preparation is applcable law snd Unitsd Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards and. a5 regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
aocordence with the pravisions of the Comeanies &% 2006

Basis for opinion

We condurted our audin in accordanse with Intermations Standsrds on Audiming (VK] (1545 [UK]) and applicable law
Cur respensbilities under thoss standards are further described in the suditor’s responsibilities for the audiz of the
financial statements section of cur repart.

We are incdependent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical reouiremants that are
relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the ‘FRC'S'|
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
Beleve that the sudit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and sppropriste to provide & bass for our opinion,
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Conclusions relating to going concern
In gudinng the financa! statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial stetements s appropriate

Qur evaluation of the Directors” assessment of the group’s and parent company®s ability to continue to adopt the

gcing concern basis of accounting included:

»  Understanding the company's position within the Anglian Wator Group and the ability of the Diractors to assess
the poing cantern position;

®  Testing key conirols over the cashflow forecasting and going concem assessment;

s Understending Management's process to mode| the impact of gaing concem and agresing ralevant data points
in the model to supporting documentation;

®  Arsessing the sophistication of the mode! used to prepare the forecasts, testing of the clencal accurscy of those
forecasts and assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by Management;

»  Assessing the assumptions wsed in estabishing Management's base case, including comparison of key

assumptions to plans for the remainder of the Asset Management Period {"AMP®} 7, the submitted AMP B

businsss plan and independent data sources where relevant;

Evaluating liguidity, inthuding in the scenario where future financing is restricted;

Evaluating the external financing to establish and assess the covenant regquirements sttached 1o this fimancing;

Confirming the avaiability of committed undrawn barrowing facikties of £1,174m as disclosed in note 154,

Recalculating and assessing the amount of headroom in the forecasts (quidiby and covenants] and recalculating

compliance with covenants duning the year ended 31 March 2022,

L] Evaluating the sensiivity analysis including downside risks prepared by Management in the contex: of
operational performance challenges, additional spend on capital projects, cyber risks and the broader sofio-
eConomic condibons; and

*  Assessing the appropnstensss of the disclosures in the financizl statements

Bazed an the work we have perfarmed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectivedy, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent company’s abifity
{0 continue as'a going concem for & period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are

authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the respansibilities of the Diractors with respect o gomg concem are descnibed in the
relevant sections of this report

Other information
The ather infarmztion comprisss the informaton includad in the annual report, other than the financizl statements

ardd our auditor’s report thereon. The Dirsciors are responsile for the other information conteined within the
arnusl report. Dur spnien an the finencisl statements does not cover the ather information and, except to the
exntent otherwise gxplicitly stated in our repart, we da not express any farm of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Dur responsibidity is to read the other information and; in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the sudtt, or
otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. i we identify such matera! inconsistenciss or zpparent materizl
misstatements, we are reguired to determing whether this gives nise to @ material migstazemant in the financial
statements themselves. W, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there'ts a material
misstaterment of this other information, we are required 1o report that fact

We haye nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors

As sxplained maore fully in the Directars’ Responsibilites Ststement, the Directors sre reponsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satished that they pive a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine iz necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stetements, the Directors are responsmle for assessing the group's and the parent
company’s adility 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and
wsing the gomg concern besis of scoounting unless the Drectors either intend 1o liguidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements at a whale are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and 0 issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is-a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 154z [UK] will always detect a2 material misstatement when it axisis. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and sre considered meteral if, individually or in the sggregate. they could reasonakly be expecied to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thesz financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Mnanclal statements is located on the FAC'S wehsite
at: www fre.org uk/auditarsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
irregularites, mecluding frawd, ere instances of non-complisnce with laws and regulstions. We design procedures in

line with aur responsibilities, outlined above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, induding
fraud_ The extent ta which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularities, including Traud is detailed below.

We concidared the nature of the groug's industry and ie2 control emvirenment, and reviewed the group’s
documentstion of thewr policiss anad procedures refating 1o fraud and comphiznce with lzws and regulations. We also
engquirsd of management interned audit, Audit Committee end the Directors about thair own identification and
sasessment of the rises of irreguiarmies, including those that gre specific to the group's business sector.
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We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in,; and identified

the key [aws and regulations that:

# had 5 direct effect on the determination of material amounis and dizclosures in the financial statements. Thess
imchuded UK Companies Act, Environmental Agency régulations, pensions legizlstion, tas legislstion and the
lcence conditions imposes by The Water Services Regulation Autharity (Ofwat]; and

«  donot have s direct effect on the financial ststements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
group's ability to operate or ko avoid @ matedial panalty,

‘We discussed among the sudic engagement team and relevant internal spacialisis such as tax, financial instrument
valustions, pensions and IT specialists regarding the opporiunties and mcentives that may exst within the
organisation for fraud and how and whars fraud might occur in the financlal ststemeants

As & result of performing the ebove, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our
procedures perfarmed to address them are described below!

in addressing the risk of fraud through bad deb? provisioning, we:

& ohtained an understanding of relevant controls within the bad debt provision estmation process;

& ytihised dats analytics to perform & recaloulation of debtor ageing to venfy the accuracy of informatian
within the agad debt report in order to assess whether customers are accurately categonsed based an
informatian within Management’s financial reparting system;

# chalienged the base bad debt provision by agreeing the recoverabifity assumptions to cash collection rates
gnd testad the mechanical sccuracy of the calculstion;

#  astesied whether any discrepancies exist behwveen the provision recopnized and that supported by other
macrg-econemic indicators thet may mpact the abidity of Customers o make payments,

#  astezoed whether the provision has been calcufated in line with the palicy of the group and with IFRS 3
‘Financial Instrurnents’; and

e geescead the accuracy and completeness of the cash collection trends used in the provision rate calculation
by reconciling billing and 54AP data and 125ted 3 sample of cash collections both during the vear and post
period end.

in addressing the risk of fraud in respect of the inappropriate capitaksation of costs, we

» obtained an understanding of, and tested, relevant controls sround the classficstion of costs as capial
expeEnsgiture;

& iested ssample of capitel projects by agreeing the costs incurred o third-party documentation and
assessing the sppropristeness of the classification in accordance with the capitalisation palicy

In common with all audits under IBAS UK, we are glgo required to perform specific praceduras o respond to the
risk of management override. In-addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropristeness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements mads in making

accounning 2stimeies are ingicative of & potential bies and evaluslied the business rationals of any significant
transactions that are unusual or sutside the normal course of business.
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in additon to the above, dur procedures £o respond to the risks identified included the following:

& reviewing finanoal statemeni disclozures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provision: of relevent lws and regulations deczribed a2 Raving B direct effect on the financial statements

a  performing analyticsl procedures to identify-any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
materisl misstatement due to fraud;

*  enguiring of Management, internal sudit and in-howse [ external legal counsel concerning achsal and potential
Iitigatian and claims, and Instances of non-comphiance with laws ang reguiations, and

& resding minutes of mestings of these charged with governance, and reviewing internal audit reports; and
reviewing correspondencs with HMRZ

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the cours= of the sudn

& the informaton given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared i5 consistent with the finangial statements: and

a the Sirategic Report 2nc the Directors Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requiremeants

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their emaronment
obtained in the course-of the sudit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the trategic report of the
Directoes Report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we Bre required to repart in respect of the folfowing matters if, in cur opinian

& pdequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit
have not been recewad from branches not visied by us; or

#  theparent company finencial statements are not m agreement with the accounting records and returns; o

s certzin distlosures of Directors’ remuneration speified by law are not made; or

# we have not received all the information and explanations we réquire far our audit

Wa have nothing to report in respect of these matters,
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Use of our report
This repoirt is made salely 1o the company’s members, a5 a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies &ct 2006, Dur awdit wark has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we Bre reguired to state 1o them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by |aw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the compary’s

members as a body, for our sudit work, for this repart or for the opinions we have formed.

Eate Hadley [Senior statutory auditor]
For and on behalr of Deioite LLP
Statutory Augitor

Birmingham, United Kingdom

10 Juby 2024
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